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Future Sessions 

2005 Louisville, Kentucky July 17·20 
2006 Birmingham, Alabama July 16-19 
2007 LiHie Rock, Arkansas July 15·18 
2008 Charleston, West Virginia July 20-23 
2009 Cincinnati, Ohio July 19-22 
2010 Oklahoma City, Oklahoma July 18-21 
2011 CharloHe, North Carolina July 17·20 
2012 Memphis, Tennessee July 15-18 
2013 To Be Determined July 21-24 
2014 Fort Worth, Texas July 27-30 
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-

Officers and Board Members 
General Officers 

Moderator . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Tim York 
Assistant Moderator ................... Wil liam Smith 
Clerk ... . ... . ...... .. . . ........ . .. Ra ndy Brya nt 
Assistant Clerk . . .... . ... .. . . ..... . .... Ernie Lewis 
Executive Secretary-Treasurer ............ . . Keith Burden 

2005 
Indiana: Chris Cloy 
Kansas: Zone Brooks 
Kentucky: James Patton 
Mexico Assn: Bud Bivens 
Michigan: Gene Norris 
Mid-Atlantic: Joy Baines 
Mississippi: J.L Gore 
Missouri: Nathan Ruble 
New Jersey: William Brown 
New Mexico: Mark Shores 

General Board 
2006 
North Carolina: Jim Marcum 
Northeast Dist.: Jim Nason 
Northwest Dist.: A.Dorrell Smith 
Ohio: Mike Stokes 
O~ohomo: Ernest Harrison, Jr. 
South Carolina: Mike Jones 
Tennessee: Charles Thig~n 
Texas: Keith Wcxxly 
Virginia: Glen Johnson 
West Virginia: Carl Vollonce 

Executive Committee 

2007 
Alabama: Rick Cosh 
Arizona: Charles Marshall 
Arkansas: Tim Campbell 
Assn. of Mexico: 

Luis Felipe Tijerina 
Atl. Canada: Fred Hanson 
California: Millard Sasser 
Colorado: Mark Thomas 
Florida: Paul Smith 
Georgia: Len Blanchard 
Idaho: Earl Jenkins 
Illinois: David Shores 

Moderator: Tim York, 12708 Copley Rood, Ashland, KY 41102 
Assistant Moderator: William Smith, P.O. Box 507, Colquitt, GA 39837 
Clerk: Randy Bryant, 2156 54th Avenue, Vero Beach, FL 32966 
Assistant Clerk: Ernie Lewis, Route 1, Box 52, Cisne, IL 62823 

2005 
J.L. Gore (MS) 
Gene Norris (MI) 
Nathan Ruble (MO) 

2006 
Ernest Harrison, Jr. (OK) 
Glen Johnson (VA) 
Keith Woody (TX) 

2007 
Tim Campbell (AR) 
Rick Cosh (AL) 
Fred Hanson (Canada) 

Board of Trustees of Free Will Baptist Bible College 
Chairman: Gory Fry, P.O. Box 991 , Lebanon, MO 65536 

2006 2008 
A. C. Allen (S() Greg Kettemon (TN) 
Richard Barnes (VA) Gene Outland (IL) 
Gory Fry (MO) Archie Ratliff (N() 
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2010 
Steve Ashby (OK) 
Billy Hanna (GA) 
Terry Pierce (MS) 

Board of International Missions 
Chairman: Milton Worthington, 4885 Ayden Golf Club Rood, Ayden, NC 28513 

2006 2008 2010 
Jerry Norris (MO) Bill Jones (TX) Sherwood Lee (S() 
Randy Wilson (OK) Bill Von Winkle (TX) Tom Mc~u~lough (MI) 
Milton Worthington (N() David Williford (TN) Donny W1lhoms (AL) 

Board of Home Missions 
Chairman: James Puckett, P.O. Box 7527, Moore, OK 73153 

2005 2007 
Harold Blankenship (N() Matt Upton (CA) 
Robert Thebeau (MO) Jerry Atwell (MS) 
Lynn Wood (OK) Bobby Shepherd (AR) 

2009 
Ron Porker (LA) 
Loyd Locklear (MI) 
James Puckett (OK)) 

Board of Retirement and Insurance 

Chairman: Ron Barber, 525 S. Main, Ste. 500, Tulsa, OK 7 4103 

2005 2007 
Ron Barber (OK) Bobby Bowers (S() 
Henry Von Kluyve (TN) Craig Cook (TN) 
Milburn Wilson (TX) Jock Word (N() 

Board of Master's Men 

Chairman: Cliff Donoho, 4029 Calumet Drive, Antioch, TN 37013 

2005 2007 
Mike Mounts (OH) Roy Copeland (OK) 
Don Neal (IN) Charles Wolden (MS) 
Ernie Taylor (IL) Rudy Taylor (MI) 

2009 
William Ferguson (MI) 
Jock Daniel (GA) 
James Lowe (OH) 

2009 
Cliff Donoho (TN) 
Rick Stone (KY)) 
Johnny Fowlkes (AR) 

Board of Trustees of the Free Will Baptist Foundation 

Chairman: Henry Von Kluyve, c/ o P.O. Box 5002, Antioch, TN 37011 
2005 2007 2009 

Ron Barber (OK) Bobby Bowers (S() William Ferguson (MI) 
Henry Von Kluyve (TN) Craig Cook (TN) Jock Daniel (GA) 
Milburn Wilson (TX) Jock Word (N() James Lowe (OH) 

Foundation Board also includes directors of national agencies: 
James Forlines (IM) Matt Pinson (FWBB() 
Lorry Powell (HM) Marjorie Workman (WNA() 
Kenneth Akers (MM) Ron Hunter (SS & CT) 

Keith Burden (Exec. Off.) 
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Board of Sunday School and Church Training 
Chairman: Dennis Wiggs, 206 Briorwood lone, New Bern, NC 28560 

2006 2008 2010 
Jeff Crabtree (Canada) Nuel Brown {CA) Tim Eaton {OK) 
Edwi~ Hayes (OH) Donny Dwyer (N() Tim Owen (Fl) 
Denms W1ggs (N() David Reece (TN) Michael Waddell (AL) 

Commission for Theological Integrity 
Chairman: leroy Forlines, 3606 West End Avenue, Nashville, TN 37205 
2005 Daryl Ellis (ll) 2008 Matt Pinson {TN) 
2006 Paul Harrison (TN) 2009 Jeff Manning (N() 
2007 leroy Forlines (TN) 

Historical Commission 
Chairman: Dorrell Holley, 3606 West End Avenue, Nashville, TN 37205 
2005 Dorrell Holley {TN) 2008 David Crowe {TN) 
2006 Joe McKnight (S() 2009 Robert Picirilli {TN) 
2007 Jock Williams {TN) 

Media Commission 
Chairman: Mike Jones, P.O. Box 13266, Florence, SC 29504 
2005 Doug Kite (N() 2008 Sandy Goodfellow (TN) 
2006 Monte McKenzie (TN) 2009 Mike Jones (S() 
200 7 Kevin Norris (MI) 

Music Commission 
Chairman: Randy Sawyer, 124 General Pemberton Street, Stanley, NC 28164 
2005 Chris Truett (NC) 2008 Jerry Carraway (TN) 
2006 Donnie Burke (GA) 2009 Randy Sawyer (NC) 
2007 Doug Uttfe {TN) 
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Proceedings 
The 68th annual session of the Notional Association of Free Will 

Baptists met july 18-22/ 2004, at the Kansas City Convention 
Center in Kansas City, Missouri. //Harvest Time// was the theme for 
the meeting. Dean jones served as convention manager and Chris 
Truett as music coordinator. 

Sunday School-July 18, 2004 
The Sunday School session began at 1 0:00 a.m. as Kendall 

Ross led the congregation in singing "Heaven Come Down" and 
"His Nome Is Wonderful." Nathan Ruble welcomed the assembly 
and led in prayer. Nathan Ruble introduced Bob Farwell from 
Beacon FWB Church in Raytown, Missouri/ as the Sunday School 
teacher. The lesson was taken from Hebrews 7:1-28. Lange and 
Jamie Patrick provided special music prior to Sunday School. 

Sunday Morning-July 18, 2004 
The morning worship service began at 11 :00 a.m. with the con­

gregation singing ''The Star Spangled Banner," led by Kendall Ross. 
The congregation recited pledges to the American Flag, the Christian 
Flag ana tne Bible. Adam Cook led in prayer. The congregation 
sang "Blessed Be The Name" and "Blessed Be The Lord God 
Almighty." An offering was received with Chris Truett providing a 
trumpet ~~!o for the offertory. T~~' congregation s~ng "No~ I"Belon~ 
to Him, Blessed Assurance, Great Is Thy Fa1thtulness, There s 
Something About That Name" and "More Precious Than Silver." 

Glenn Murray, pastor of United FWB Church in West Plains, 
Missouri, was introduced as the speaker. Before he spoke, Lange 
and Jamie Patrick sang nit Is Well." Glenn Murray preached from 
Matthew 9:37-38 on "Harvest Time." The congregation sang 
"Wherever He Leads" for the invitation. 

Sunday Evening-July 18, 2004 
The evening worship service began at 7:00 p.m. with the 

Convention Choir singing, //Glorious City Of God/// led by Kevin 
justice. The congregation sang "When The Roll Is Called Up 
Yonder// //When We All Get To Heaven// and "Victory In jesus." 
David Joslin presided during the service and welcomed the congre­
gation. Tim Campbell led in prayer. The offering was received and 
the Graves Family provided offertory music. The congregation then 
sang ul Will Sing Of My Redeemer/ u "Near The Cross// and "You Are 
My Allin All. u 

A - 17 



Kerry Gandy, pastor of Rolling Oaks FWB Church in Maumelle 
A:rkansas, was introduced as the speaker. Before he spoke, Eddi~ 
Vmcent sang a medley relating to the cross. Keith Woody prayed for 
the speaker prior to the message. Kerry Gandy preached from 
0aHhew !, 3: 24-3~ on the "Wh~! and the Tares." The congrega­
tion san~ Have Thme Own Way. Keith Woody offered a prayer 
of comm1tment for those who made decisions. Following announce­
ments, Nelson Henderson prayed the benediction. 

Monday Evening-July 19, 2004 
The evenin~ wor~hip service began at 7:00 p.m. with a trio 

(Lange and Jam1e Patnck and Brian Hughes) singing "The Doxology." 
The congregation sang " To God Be The Glory " "Bless The Lord 0 
My. Soul" and "Blessed Be The Lord God Alm,ighty," led by La~ge 
Patnck. The Convention Choir sang "I Stand Upon The Rock." Clerk 
Randy Bryant called the 68th Annual Session to order and intro­
duced Moderator Tim York who announced the following commit­
tees: 

Credent~als Committee: Rick Cash, Chairman (AL) 
Paul Sm1th (FL) Mike Jones (SC) 
Gene Norris (MI) Chris Clay (IN) 

~aminating Committee: Tim Campbell, Chairman (AR) 
J1m Marcum (NC) Mike Mounts (OH) 
Robert Hobbs (TN) Ivan Asbury (WV) 
Randy Williams (CA) George Harvey (AZ) 

Re_solutions CommiHee: Tim Hall, Chairman (KY) 
M1ke Wade (OK) Wayne Miracle (GA) 
David Shores (IL) Nathan Ruble (MO) 

O~ituary Committee: J.L. Gore, Chairman (MS) 
Ke1th Woody (TX) Fred Hanson (Atlantic-canada) 
Mark Shores (NM) Steve Faison (VA) 

N?t~an Ruble, executive secretary of the Missouri State 
AssoCiation of Free Will Baptists, welcomed the convention on behalf 
of ~ansas City and the state of Missouri. Rick Cash introduced Randy 
Wn$ht as the speaker and then led in prayer. The offering was 
rece1ved as Legacy of Praise provided offertory music. The 
Convention Choir sang 'jesus, What A Mighty Name" with Adam 
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Carnes as soloist and jeff Manni~~' provid_ing narration." T,~e congre-
gation sang "No Other Name, All Had The Power, I Stand In 
Awe" and "To God Be The Glory." . . 

Randy Wright, pastor of Piney Grove ~WB Church 1n ~~~~' 
Alabama, brought the message from" Revelation 22:20-21. on "H1s 
Last Words." The congregation sang What A Day That Wdl Be as 
the invitation hymn. Tne service was dismissed following announce­
ments. 

Tuesday Evening-July 20, 2004 
The service began with Chris Truett leading the congregation in 

singing "Come Into His Presence," "Great Is T~~ Lord" and "Ho";;' 
Great Thou Art." The Convention Choir sang Holy, Holy, Holy. 
Steve Lytle introduced Ramon Sanchez, president ?f the Cuba 
Association of Free Will Baptists, who brought greetings from the 
churches in Cuba. Stan Bunch served as translator. 

Tim Owen introduced jose Rodriguez as the speaker for this serv­
ice. Following prayer, the offering was received. The Men's Chc_xale, 
under the direction of Daron Dvvyer, provided offertory mus1c by 
singing "The Midnight Cry" with Randy Sawyer as soloist. 
The congregation sang "Crown Him," "Lord, I Lih Your Name On 
High" and /jesus, We Crown You With Praise" with Terri Deel as 
soloist. 

The Georgia Ministers Quartet sang "It Is Finished" prior to t~e 
message. jose Rodriguez, pastor of Ebenezer FWB Church 1n 
Miami, Florida, brought the message from II }Jeter 1 :2-4" on 
"Empowered to Harvest." The congregation sa~g }ust As I Am as 
an invitation, and Tim Owen dismissed the serv1ce m prayer. 

Wednesday Morning-July 21, 2004 
Moderator Tim York called the business meeting to order at 9:00 

a.m. and welcomed the delegates. The moderator brought a ~,evo­
tion from Acts 17:22-30 on "A Message of An Unknown God. He 
then led in prayer. . . 

The clerk read the Credentials Committee report. Mot1on earned 
to receive the report and seat the delegates. . 

The clerk read a partial report of the General Board. Mot1on car-
ried to receive Item # 1 from the report. 

Executive Secretary Keith Burden gave the Executive O~ice 
report. Auditor Terry Hill gave the financial reports of the off1ce. 
Motion carried to receive the report. . 

Nathan Ruble gave the Publications Committee report. Mot1on 
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carried to receive the report and adopt their recommendations. 
A motion was tabled to change the constitution under "Duties of 

Officers," Section 9, D. Publications. 
The constitution presently reads: "He shall be responsible for pub­

lishing the association's official magazine Contact, and to serve as 
editor-in-chief. He shall direct the production of general promotional 
materials, pamphlets, audio visuals and books as approved by the 
Executive Committee." · 

The change would read: "He shall serve as editor-in-chief of the 
association's official magazine. He shall direct the production of gen­
eral promotional materials, pamphlets, audio visuals and books as 
approved by the Executive Committee." 

Director William Evans gave the Retirement and Insurance 
Department report. Ray Lewis gave the financial reports. Motion car­
ried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

Director William Evans gave the Free Will Baptist Foundation 
report. David Brown gave the financial reports. Motion carried to 
accept the report, adopt the recommendations and adopt the bud­
get. 

A motion carried to table recommendation number 1 which 
I 

dealt with a proposed change in the By-Laws of the Treatise under 
Standing Boards, Section 17, page 63. 

Section 17 presently reads: "Each of these Boards (except the 
Board of Trustees of the Free Will Baptist Foundation) shall be com­
posed of nine members who ore elected by the National 
Association, according to an arrangement whereby each member 
has a term of office for six years, and their terms are arranged so that 
they expire in groups of three biennially. A member can serve no 
more than two full consecutive terms. The Boord of Trustees of the 
Free Will Baptist Foundation shall consist of the members of the 
Boord of Retirement and Insurance, the Director of Foreign Missions, 
the Director of Home Missions, the Director of Moster's Men, the 
Director of Sunday School and Church Training, the President of Free 
Will Baptist Bible College, the Executive Secretory of Women 
Nationally Active For Cnrist, and the Executive Secretory of the 
National Association." 

The proposed change would read: "Each of these Boards shall 
be composed of nine members who are elected by the National 
Association, according to an arrangement whereby each member 
has a ter~ o~ office for six years, ~nd their terms ore arranged so that 
they exp1re 1n groups of three b1ennially. A member con serve no 
more than two full consecutive terms. The Board of Trustees of the 
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Free Will Baptist Foundation shall also inclu_de the Director o_f the 
Board of Retirement and Insurance, the D1rector of International 
Missions, the Director of Home Missions, the Director o~ (\!\aster's 
Men the Director of Sunday School and Church Tra1n1ng, the 
President of Free Will Baptist Bible College, the Executive Secretary 
of Women Nationally Active For Christ, and the Executive Secretary 
of the National Association." 

A motion carried to table until 2005 recommendation number 2, 
which dealt w~th change~ in the By-Laws and Rules of Decorum of 
Free Will Bapt1st Foundat1on, Inc. , 

Bylaw number 2, Board of Trustees currently reads: 1 . Number, 
election and authority of Trustees. The Board of Trustees sh_all be com­
posed of the individuals who are serving in the followmg named 
capacity: A) each member of the Board of Trust_ees o~ t~e Boord of 
Retirement and Insurance; B) the Director of Fore1gn M,1ss1ons; C) the 
Director of Home Missions; D) the Director of Masters Men; E) the 
Director of Sunday School and Church Training; F) the President of 
Free Will Baptist Bible College; G) the Executive S~retary of the 
Women Nationally Active for Christ; and H) the Executive Secretary 
of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. The terms of 
the Trustees shall begin and expire with the service i~ the named 
capacity. The Trustees shall act in their Trustee capaCity only as a 
Board and individual Trustees have no power to act for the 
Corporation without prior specific Board a~thority. The B<?ard shall 
institute the overall program of the Corporat1on and the off1cers sha~l 
supervise and administer its operation. The Boar_d shall be r~sponsl­
ble for the actions of the Corporation to the Nat1onal Assoe~at1on of 
Free Will Baptists, Inc." . 

The proposed change would read: 1 . Number, election and 
authority of Trustees. The Board of Trustees_ shall be co_mposed of the 
nine members who are elected by the National AssoCiation, and the 
individuals who are serving in the following named capacity: A) the 
Director of the Board of Retirement and Insurance; B) the D1rector of 
International Missions; C) the Director of Home Missions; D) the 
Director of Master's Men; E) the Director of Sunday School and 
Church Training; F) the President of Free Will Bap!ist Bible C?llege; 
G) the Executive Secretary of the Women Nationally A~t1~e for 
Christ; and H) the Executive Secretary of the National Assoe1~t1on of 
Free Will Baptists, Inc. The terms of the T:ustees shall beg1n and 
expire with the service in the named capacity. ~h~ Trustees shall act 
in their Trustee capacity only as a Board and 1ndlv~dual Tru~t~es have 
no power to act for the Corporation without pnor spec1hc Board 

A- 21 



authority .. The Board ~hall institute the overall program of the 
C?rporat1on and the officers shall supervise and administer its -oper­
ation. The Board shall be responsible for the actions of the 
Corporation to the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc." 

~y-Laws, numb~r 8, Ouorum. Presently reads: "A Quorum shall 
consist of at least SIX duly elected Trustees and a majority vote of the 
Trustees present shall decide the issues brought before the meeting 
except as otherwise required by the Charter, By-Laws or the Board 
of Trustees of this Corporation and/ or by the National Association." 

The proposed change would read: "A Quorum shall consist of a 
majority of the duly acting Trustees and a majority vote of the Trustees 
present shall decide the issues brought before the meeting except as 
otherwise required by the Charter, By-Laws or the Board of Trustees 
of this Corporation and/ or by the National Association." 

0'\otion carried that the 2005 Nominating Committee submit 
nominees to be elected as initial members of the Board of the Free 
Will Baptist Foundation as specified in these recommendations. 

Nine (9) nominees to be elected as the initial members of the 
autonomous Board of the Free Will Baptist Foundation each to serve 
for initial terms as follows: ' 

Number of Members Initial Terms 
3 Two (2) years 
3 Four (4) years 

. 3 Six (6) years 
w1th all futu~e .. members elected upon expiration of the respective 
terms _of the Initial members, for full terms of six (6) years each. 

Dire.ctor Larry Powell gave the Home Missions Department report. 
Chapla~n Col~nel Kerry Steedley brought greetings on behalf of the 
Free Will Baptist chaplains. Motion carried to receive the report and 
adopt the budget. 

Director Ken Akers gave the Master's Men report. Motion carried 
to rec~ive the report, adopt the budget and elect a new board mem­
ber. R1ck Stone (KY) was elected to fill the 2009 unexpired term 
vacated by Clarence Lewis. 

Wednesday Afternoon-July 21, 2004 
The moderator called the afternoon session to order. Assistant 

Mod~rator William S~ith read Galatians 6: 14 and lead in prayer. 
Director James Forl1nes gave the International Missions Department 

report. Rob Conley gave the financial report. Motion carried to 
receive the report and adopt the 'budget. 

A motion carried to ask the International Missions Board to study 
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... ----
the defic.it for Support Services and de~ise a proposal to eliminate 
the deficit through the use of excess designated funds. 

Motion carried to remove from the table the request to change 
the name from "Foreign Missions Department" to "Department of 
International Missions." The motion carried to change the name. Tom 
McCullough (MI), Danny Williams (AL) and SherwOod Lee (SC) were 
elected to the Board ot International Missions for terms expiring in 
2010. 

President Matt Pinson gave the Free Will Baptist Bible College 
report. Tom Sass gave the financial report. Motion carried to receive 
the report and adopt the budget. Terry Pierce (MS), Billy Hanna (GA) 
and Steve Ashby (OK) were elected to the college board for terms 
expiring in 201 0. 

Director Ron Hunter gave the Sunday School and Church 
Training Department report. Clarence Lewis gave the financial report. 
Tim Eaton (OK), Tim Owen (FL) and Michael Waddell (AL) were 
elected to Sunday School Department Board for terms expiring in 
2010. 

Will Harmon was presented with a plaque in appreciation for his 
service as a board member of the Sunday School and Church 
Training Department. 

The clerk read the final General Board report. Item #2- Adopted. 
Motion carried to table a change in the last line in Election of 

Officers. Section 11 of the Treatise. The change would be from: 
"Nominations for the General Board shall be made on Wednesday 
afternoon of the annual session, and nominations for other offices on 
Wednesday or Thursday." 

To: "Nominations for the General Board shall be made on 
Tuesday afternoon of the annual session, and nominations for other 
offices on Tuesday or Wednesday." 

Item #3-Adopted. Item #4-Adopted. Item #5-Adopted. 
Item #6-Adopted. 

The clerk read the Nominating Committee report of General 
Board members. Motion carried to receive report and elect nominees 
for terms ending in 2007. 

Bud Bivens was elected to fill the 2005 term for the Mexico 
Association. 

The clerk read the Nominating Committee report for Executive 
Committee members with terms expiring in 2007. Tim Campbell 
(AR), Fred Hanson (Atlantic..Canada) and Rick Cash (AL) were elect­
ed. 

Leroy Forlines gave the Commission for Theological Integrity 
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report. M?tion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 
Jelt Mannrng was elected for the 2009 term on the commission. 

Wednesday Evening-July 21, 2004 
. ~he yYednesday ,even in~ seNice began with the congregation 
s.mgm~ jesus Saves and Song For The Nations," led by Doug 
Lrttle. Jrm Marcum welcomed attendees to the seNice and introduced 
Glen johnson as the speaker. 

Home and International missionaries were introduced while Brian 
Hu~hes sang "I Will Go." A commissioning service led by James 
~orlines. and Larry Powell was held for new missionaries entering their 
freld~. Jrm P~~kett praye,? t~e commissioning prayer. The Convention 
Chorr song Our Heart wrth Ruth McDonald as soloist. 

Glen johnson, pastor of Good News FWB Church in Chesterfield 
Virginia, brought the message from Romans 1: 16-17 on "The Effect~ 
<?f the Gospel." A missions. offering. w<?s received following prayer by 
Jrm Marcum. The Convention Chorr drrected by Chris Truett provided 
offertory music with a Finale Medley. 

Thursday Morning-July 22, 2004 
.The morning session was called to order by Moderator Tim York. 

Assrstant Clerk Ernie Lewis read Proverbs 19:20-21 and led in 
prayer. 

A mot!on carrie? to remo~e from the table the change to the By­
Laws. Dutles,of Offrcers. Sectron 9. D. Publications. As changed, it 
now reads: He shall serve as editor-in-chief of the association's offi­
cial ma$azine. He shall direct the production of general promotion­
al matenals, pamphlets, audio visuals and books as approved by the 
Executive Committee." 

The By-Laws change was adopted. 
A: moti.on car~ied to remove from the table the By-Laws change 

dealmg wrth makrng the Foundation Board a separate board. 
The By-Laws change was adopted. 
':motion c.arried to r~move from the table the change in By-Laws. 

Elec,!ron of Offrcers. Sectron l l. As changed the section now reads: 
The procedure for the election of officers of the National 

Assoc:iation shall be as follows: The Nominating Committee shall be 
appornted by the moderator one year in advance. The committee 
shall consist of seven members, shall meet at least three months prior 
to the annual session and present at least one name for each vacant 
offic~, excepting the .General Board and Executive Secretary. The 
fundmg of the commrttee shall come from the Convention fund. A 
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brief resume shall be submitted with each nomination. Nominations 
for the General Board shall be submitted on Tuesday ahernoon of the 
annual session, and nominations for other offices on Tuesday or 
Wednesday. 

"Aher the committee's report the floor shall be open for further 
nominations and the election shall proceed in regular manner." 

The By-Laws change was adopted. 
jack Williams gave the Historical Commission report. Motion car­

ried to accept the report and adopt the budget. Robert Picirilli was 
elected to the 2009 term on the commission. 

Mike jones gave the Media Commission report. Motion carried 
to receive the report and adopt the budget. Mike jones was elected 
to the 2009 term on the commission. 

Randy Sawyer gave the Music Commission report. Motion was 
made to accept the report and adopt the budget. Motion carried to 
amend the motion by adding "and that we officially commend the 
Music Commission for the superb job during this year's convention." 
The motion carried as amended. Randy Sawyer was elected for the 
2009 term on the commission. 

Dean jones gave the National Youth Conference report. Motion 
carried to receive the report. 

Marjorie Workman gave the Women Nationally Active For 
Christ report. Motion carried to receive the report. 

Melvin Worthington gave the Educational Task Force Committee 
report. Motion carried to receive the report as information and adopt 
the recommendation to form a Higher Education Commission, and 
that the matter be referred to the Executive Committee to study the 
details and parameters of the commission. 

Executive Secretary Keith Burden gave the Registration 
Committee report. Motion carried to receive the report. 

Executive Secretary Keith Burden gave the Budget Committee 
report. Motion carried to adopt the report. 

The clerk gave the Obituary Committee report. Motion carried to 
receive the report. The delegates stood in silence for those listed, and 
J.L. Gore offered a prayer of remembrance. 

The clerk read the Resolutions Committee report. Motion carried 
to receive the report and consider each resolution separately. 

Resolution # 1. Motion carried to amend the resolution by chang­
ing "men" to "people" in the final section of the resolution. Resolution 
adopted as a mended. 

Resolution #2. Adopted. 
Resolution # 3. Adopted. 
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Resolution #4. Adopted. 
Resolution #5. Adopted. 
Motion carried to ask the Commission for Theological Integrity to 

researc~ _and present an amen?ment to our Articles of Faith reflecting 
C?ur pos1t1on on same-sex marnages. The commission will report its 
f1ndmgs to the 2005 convention. 

M?tion carried to go on record thanking the city of Kansas City 
for be1ng a gracious host for our 68th annual convention. 

Th~ clerk gave the final report of the Nominating Committee. The 
followmg General Officers were elected. 

Moderator-Tim York (KY) 
Assistant Moderator-William Smith (GA) 
Clerk - Randy Bryant (FL) 
Assistant Clerk - Ernie Lewis (IL) 
Motion carried to adjourn. George Harvey led 1n a dismissal 

prayer. 
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Credentials Committee Report 
We, the Credentials Committee, have examined the letters from the 

following states, districts and local churches and found them to be in 
order as presented below. 

1. From the following state associations which are entitled to be rep­
resented by five delegates: Alabama, Arkansas, California, Florida, 
Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, Kansas, Kentucky, Michigan, Mississippi, 
Missouri, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, South Carolina, Tennessee, 
Texas, Virginia and West Virginia. 

2. We received representation fees from Idaho, but no letter. 
3. From the following district associations which are entitled to be rep­

resented by three delegates: Arizona, Association of Free Will Baptists of 
Mexico, Atlantic-Canada, Colorado, Mexican Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Mid-Atlantic, New Jersey, New Mexico, Northeast and Northwest. 

4. From the following local churches entitled to be represented by one 
delegate: Hawaii, Puerto Rico, Madison, Wisconsin (fwin Valley) ; Virgin 
Islands and South Dakota. 

5. We received no representation fees or letters from churches in 
Montana. We received a letter but no representation fees from Green Bay, 
Wisconsin (Grace). 

6. We recommend that all delegates from local churches be seated 
when required representation fees are paid. 

7. We recommend that all lay delegates entitled to represent by virtue 
of their positions on standing boards be seated if properly registered. 

Submitted by Credentials Committee, 
Rick Cash (AL), Chairman 
Chris Clay (IN) 
Paul Smith (FL) 

Mike Jones (SC) 
Gene Norris (Ml) 

General Board Report 
The General Board of the National Association of Free Will Baptists 

met on Monday, July 19, 2004, at the Downtown Marriott Hotel in Kansas 
City, Missouri. As a result of this meeting, we offer the following recom­
mendations: 

1. We heard the reports of the Executive Office, the Publications 
Committee, WNAC, Board of Retirement and Insurance, the Free Will 
Baptist Foundation, Home Missions Department, Master's Men, Foreign 
Missions Department, Free Will Baptist Bible College, Sunday School and 
Church Training Department, the Commission for Theological Integrity, 
the Historical Commission , the Media Commission, the Music 
Commission and the Budget Committee. We recommend their reports be 
received and budgets adopted. 

2. We recommend that the Thursday morning national convention 
session be eliminated and that we conduct business Tuesday afternoon 
and Wednesday effective 2005. 

3. We recommend Fort Worth, Texas, for the July 27-31 , 2014, national 
convention. 
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4. After meeting with the Foreign Missions Board, staff and their attor­
neys, we find that they are in agreement with the Treatise and their char­
ter regarding the Hanna Project (NGO). 

5. Concerning the 2003 resolution regarding a proposed $10 registra­
tion fee for convention attendees: We recommend that no action be taken 
at this time in light of increased representation fees ($100). We suggest 
that the registration fee idea be revisited in 2006. 

6. Concerning the 2003 resolution regarding biennial conventions: We 
recommend that the annual convention format continue. 

Publications Committee Report 
The Publications Committee completed a three-year feasibility study 

of combining the departmental magazines/newsletters into a single publi­
cation. The committee is indebted to the departmental directors and edi­
tors who gave a great deal of time and labor working out the logistics of 
producing a single publication. They are to be commended for their 
labors. The resolution adopted in 2001 suggested the following 
reasons for changing to a single publication: 

1. Avoid needless duplication of the mailing lists. 
When the mailing lists of the departments were combined and the 
duplicates removed, the combined mailing lists were decreased by 
over 20,000 names. 

2. Demonstrate good denominational stewardship. 
While a single publication will be more cost effective, it will not result 
in a dollar savings. For example, at present the Home Missions 
Department has the largest mailing list of over 34,000 and the 
Master's Men the smallest with over 2,000. By combining the depart­
mental mailing lists, each department will be reaching over 60,000 
households. With what the departments currently spend and with 
Randall House, the Foundation and the Board of Retirement volun­
teering to participate, the magazine can be published. 

3. Promote cooperation and unity among the departments. 
The committee believes this to be true. A consultant from Publishing 
Support met with the directors and editors and stated the following 
in his report: 
"First, as I stated, I believe your overall concept is a positive step for 
your denomination. It conveys a new day of working together . . . . It 
also will reflect a much stronger publication for your denomination 
than each of the individual publications are on their own." 

4. Provide a complimentary monthly magazine. 
Because of the cost of printing and mailing a complimentary maga­
zine of approximately 48 pages, the magazine would have to be a bi­
monthly (6 times a year) publication. 
While there will be challenges to overcome, based on the findings of 

our study, we offer the following recommendation: 
We recommend that the magazines/newsletters of the following 

departments of the National Association of Free Will Baptists be com­
bined into a single publication to begin in 2005: Executive Office, Board 
of Retirement, Foreign Missions, Free Will Baptist Bible College, Free Will 
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. F ndation Home Missions, Master's Men, Randall House. 

BapW~ f~~er rec~mmend that the directors of the various depart~ents 
· ght committee with the Executive Secretary servmg as 

act .as a~ ~~~!•committee and editor-in-chief of the magazine. The ov~r­
c~ahtrma 'ttee shall have the authority to determine the start-up date m 
stg t commt d · · d managing editor of the 
2005 budgets publication name, a verttsmg an . . h d t 

' ' th t d te all regular pubhcatwns of t e epar -
publ~ca~~?n; O~ear7b=~~ ~Xste~'s 'Men Newsletter, Bible College f!ull~tin, 
~e~ s h C~ntact) will cease and be combined into a single pubhcatwn. 

u e~~' in to a single publication will be a dramatic change for o~r 
den;min!tio~. However, it offers us a great opportunity t~ present a umt­
ed front and a united effort for the cause of world evangelism. 

The Publications Committee 
Nathan Ruble (MO), Chairman 
William Smith (GA), Secretary 
Edwin Hayes (OH) 
Jim Marcum (NC) 
David Williford (fN) 

Nominating Committee Report 
International Missions Board (MI) 

· · s (IL"' Tom McCullough 2010 Replacmg DaVId hores •J • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 
Replacing Danny Williams (AL) ... . ....... Danny Wtlhams 
Replacing Sherwood Lee (SC) .......... · · · Sherwood Lee 

Free Will Baptist Bible College Trustees . 
· · (MS"' Terry Pterce 2010 Replacmg Terry Pterce ·; .... · · · · · · · · · · . 

Replacing Billy Hanna (GA) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · Btlly Hanna 
. Ashb (OK) Steve Ashby Replacmg Steve y . · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

Sunday School and Church Training. Board n 
0 2010 Replacing Will Harmon (AR) ... · · · · · · · · · · · T~m Eato C K) 

. T' 0 (FL' Tlffi Owen Replacmg tm wen 'J · · · • · • · · · · • · • · · · (AL"' 
Replacing Michael Waddell (fN) .... · . · · · · Michael Waddell 'l 

Master's Men Board 
2009 Replacing Clarence Lewis (fN) .... · · · · · · · .Rick Stone (KY) 

Commission for Theological Integrity . 
. . (NC) Jeff Manrung 2009 Replacmg Jeff Mannmg . · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

Historical Commission . . . . 
P. . .11. (fN) Robert Ptctnlh 

2009 Replacing Robert tctn 1 . • • · · · · · • · • · 

Media Commission 
esc) Mike Jones 

2009 Replacing Mike Jones · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

Music Commission 
2009 Replacing Randy Sawyer (NC) · · · · · · · · · · · .Randy Sawyer 
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General Board 
2005 Mexico Assn. (replacing Carlos Rubio) ..... Bud Bivens 

2007 Alabama (replacing Rick Cash) ............ Rick Cash 
Arizona (replacing Charles Marshall) ...... Charles Marshall 
Arkansas (replacing David Joslin) ......... Tim Campbell 
Assn. of Mexico (replacing Luis Felipe Tijerina) Luis Felipe Tijerina 
Atlantic-Canada (replacing Fred Hanson) ... Fred Hanson 
California (replacing Doice McAllister) ..... Millard Sasser 
Colorado (replacing Mark Thomas) .. . . . .. . Mark Thomas 
Florida (replacing Paul Smith) ............ Paul Smith 
Georgia (replacing Len Blanchard) ......... Len Blanchard 
Idaho (replacing Earl Jenkins) . . .......... Earl Jenkins 
Illinois (replacing Larry Cook) ............ David Shores 

Executive Committee 
2007 Replacing David Joslin (AR) .............. Tim Campbell (AR) 

Replacing Doice McAlister (CA) ........... Fred Hanson (Canada) 
Replacing Rick Cash (AL) . .. . ... . .. . .. . .. Rick Cash 

General Officers 
Moderator: Replacing Tim York (KY) ......... Tim York 
Asst. Moderator: Replacing William Smith (GA) William Smith 
Clerk: Replacing Randy Bryant (FL) ... . ...... Randy Bryant 
Asst. Clerk: Replacing Ernie Lewis (IL) ........ Ernie Lewis 

Nominating Committee: 
Ernest Harrison, Jr. (OK), Chairman 
Milton Worthington (NC) 
Chris Clay (IN) 
Will Harmon (AR) 

Bill Van Winkle (TX) 
Gary Fry (MO) 
Edwin Hayes (OH) 

2004 National Youth Conference Report 
The 2004 National Youth Conference met for its 37th annual confer­

ence in Kansas City, Missouri, July 18-21. The theme, "Extreme 
Cause ... Extreme Cost," was emphasized in many ways. NYC registration 
totaled 3,218. 

Seven hundred seventy competitive entries were conducted during 
the four-day conference, with 1,640 young people parrticipating in com­
petitive activities. A complete list of NYC winners will be sent to each state 
office. 

Worship services were conducted for Preschool (ages 3-5) with an 
average of 100 attending; Children Ost-3rd grade) and Tweeners (4th-6th 
grade) with an average of 300 attending, and Youth (7th-12th grade) with 
an average of 1, 700 attending. Services were held Sunday morning and 
Sunday through Tuesday nights with Trula Cronk, 1st Lt. Steven Pierce, 
Craig Portell and Neil Gilliland speaking. Many decisions for Christ were 
made throughout the week, including several who answered the call to 
full-time Christian service. 

Over 1,100 students and adults participated in Reach That Guy, our 
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area service project porgram. Proj7c~s inclu?ed the H~esters Fo?d 
Network Gracious Promise Prison Mmtstry, Chtld Evangelism Fellowship, 
Crosslin~ Towers and the Mental Health Association. We also had a blood 
drive with the Kansas City Blood Service (92 units of blood were collect-

ed). . nf f h"l Thirty-six workships were presented dunng the co erence or c 1 -

dren youth children's workers, youth workers and adults. 
Our p~ticipants have been challenged to make sacrifices, follow an 

extreme cause and be willing to pay an extreme cost. Our prayer for the 
coming year is that our students will return to their local churches better 
equipped and in touch with their Lord. . 

We will not leave Kansas City untouched. Rather, we leave haVIng 
shown the light of Christ to a needy city. We also leave with many people 
knowing that Christ makes a difference in the lives of o~r students. 

The 38th annual National Youth Conference IS scheduled for 
Louisville, Kentucky, in July 2005 where our theme will be "Yes, Your 
Majesty-Psalm 145:5." 
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Minutes 
of the 

Sixty-Ninth Annual Session 
of the 

Women Nationally 
Active for Christ 

Convention 
of the 

National Association of 
Free Will Baptists 

when convened in 

Kansas City, Missouri 
July 19-20, 2004 
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WNAC 

P.O. Box 5002 
Antioch, TN 37011-5002 

Executive Committee 

President 
Debe Taylor 

103 Chisholm Trail 
Hot Springs, AR 71913 

501-760-4824 
taylorgolf@juno.com 

Vice-President 
Joanne King 

426 Woodlawn Extension 
Cramerton, NC 28032 

704-827-9772 
kjking39@aol.com 

Secretary 
Phyllis York 

12708 Copley Road 
Ashland, KY 41102 

606-928-5136 
timbyork@aol.com 

Members at Large 
Linda Harvey 

19225 N. 30th Place 
Phoenix, AZ 85050 

602-569-687 4 
nvfwbc@trynetics.com 

Shirley Jackson 
428 Kimberly 

St. Peters, MO 63376 
636-397-6399 

rsjacksson 1 05@juno.com 

Carolyn Hendrix 
138 Lewis Lane 

Madison, AL 35758 
256-461-7 453 

carolh 1952@yahoo.com 

Executive Secretary-Treasurer 
Marjorie Workman 

1408 Revenna Court North 
Antioch, TN 37013 

615-366-0573 
marjorie@nafwb.org 

Theme: Great Expectations 
Scripture: Psalm 62:5 

Music Coordinator/Worship Leader: Sheila Haas 
Pianist: Cathy Deckard 
Organist: Barbara Cox 

Proceedings 

WNAC Seminar 
Monday, july 19 

I/HG1V-WNAC Style" was the title of the two-hour seminar for 
women on Monday ahernoon. Presenters Debe Burden, Joyce Little 
and Wanda Powell captivated the attention of the women with their 
1V-Iike production. The seminar was filled with tips and ways to 
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share hospitality, grace, treasures and values. Sandy Atwood served 
as WNAC's TV nost for the seminar. 

Business Session 
Tuesday, july 20 

Kansas City Convention Center 

Women Nationally Ac.tive for Christ met Tuesday morning, july 
2?, 2004, ~t 9:0? a.m. m the Convention Center, Hall A, Kansas 
C1ty, M1ssou.n. President ~ebe Taylor presided over the meeting, 
an~ the sess1~n open~ w1th congregational singing. The convention 
en1.oyed spee~a l mus1c by Fresh New Wind from the Beacon Free 
Wdl Bapt1st Church, Kansas City, MO. Missouri WAC State 
Pr~side~t Shirley Jackson welcomed the convention to the state of 
M1ssoun. President Debe Taylor introduced her son Bradley Taylor 
to the attend~s and shared how he was an answer to prayer. 
Attend~s en1oyed a mini-concert presented by the Mountain Grove 
Free Wdl Baptist Hand Bell Choir. Aher the concert Arkansas WAC 
State President Lisa Bowden led in prayer. ' 

S~rah Fletcher, editor of CoLaborer magazine, presented the 
Creat1ve Arts Awards. The winners were as follows: 

Articles 
Betty Griswold Jones, Kirksville, MO - "The Widow's Plight" 
Anne Worthington, Ayden, NC - "Poison Ivy and Venomous Snakes" 
Betty Griswold Jones, Kirksville, MO -"Homeland Security -Are You Ready?" 

Devotionals 
Waynelle Scott, Marshall, MO -"When Teardrops Fall" 
Waynelle Scott, Marshall, MO - "The Worth of Prayer" 
Freeda Lucas, Cromona, KY - "Putting Christmas Away" 

Art 
Kay Brown, Charleston, AR -"Eternal Love" 
Kay Brown, Charleston, AR - "He Is Risen" 
Janis Williams, Antioch, TN -"In My Father's House" 

Plays 
Wanda Kellett, Lawton, OK - liThe living Will" 
Donna Jewell, Perry, GA - "Fawlen Angel" 
Wanda Kellett, Lawton, OK -"Climb the Mountain of Faith" 
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Skits 
Mary Burris, Lowell, AR - "Unwrapping Your Spiritual Gifts" 
Sue Winchester, St. Louis, MO -"A WAC Autopsy" 
Jan Efird, Elm Gty, NC -"Vessels for Service" 

Photography 
Kay Brown, Charleston, AR - "Ancient Words of Old" 
lisa Ball, Fresno, CA -"And God Created" 
Kay Brown, Charleston, AR - 11 

• •• So Panteth My Soul After Thee" 

Programs 
Ruth Bivens, Monett, MO - "Set Your Table for a Tea Party" 
Sue Winchester, St. Louis, MO -"Working Out With Jesus" 
Pamela Hackett, Boiling Spring, SC - ~~soldiers of the Cross" 

Poetry 
Vicki Turner, Carterville, MO -1/Sand" 
Vicki Turner, CartervUie, MO -"Tributary" 
Ruth Bivens, Monett, MO - ''The Down Hill Runner" 

The Credentials Committee (Chairman joanne King, NC; Rachel 
Horne, GA; Kelly Reed, TX; Rebekah Bragan, WY) submitted the fol­
lowing report: 

The following 19 state conventions submitted rep0rts and paid dues: 
Alabama, Arkansas, California, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, 
Kentucky, Michigan, Mississippi, Missouri, North Carolina, Ohio, 
Oklahoma, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia and West 
Virginia. 

The following three districts with no state conventions submitted 
reports and paid dues: Arizona, Kansas and New Mexico. 

The following three local groups with no district or state conven­
tions submitted rep0rts and paid dues: St. Croix, Virgin Islands; 
Kennewick, Washington; Cheyenne, Wyoming. 

In addition, 37 aelegates from local groups in good standing 
with their representing higher body (district or state) paid $5 repre­
sentation fees. 

Motion carried to accept the report and seat the delegates. 
Marjorie Workman gave the Executive Secretary-Treasurer·s 

Report. She reported that WNAC has a deficit in the general fund. 
This deficit is partially due to giving being down in all areas. She 
reported that the office has maae cutbacks, which includes the book­
keeper retiring. Her position will not be filled at this time. On the pos-
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itive ~ide, m_issions' giving has been up. Mrs. Workman spoke about 
speCial pro1ects that would help to bring in needed revenue. The 
body was asked to pray for the WNAC office. 

The next item reported on was scholarships. Three scholarships 
were gr?nt~d from the Cleo Pursell Foreign Student Scholarship Fund. 
For_the f1rst time,~ $1,000 scholarship was given to the FWB Marie 
Wnght Hanna B1ble Institute in Conoor, Tamil Nodu, South India. 
The ~edors of lebanon Seminary in Cuba continues to receive scho~ 
orsh1ps along with Paul and Robert in Cote d'lvoire. 

A s~rvice proiect was announced for those in our armed forces . 
All exp1red product coupons con be sent to our military for use 

Mrs. Workman reported that the organ for Free Will Baptist .Bible 
College has been purchased and that the account would remain 
open for those who would _like _to make one final monetary gi~. 

The CoLaborer mogozme 1s now full color. This change was 
mode at no extra cost. Next year's theme, "let Us Pursue," was 
announced. The 2005 Program and Plan books are available as 
well as Bible studies. The book Over Mountain or Plain or Sea .:Vrit­
ten by former missionary Trula Cronk is also available through the 
WNAC office. 

. Re_treot s~he?ules for the upcoming year were announced. The 
f1rst wdl be m R1dgecrest, North Carolina October 29-30 Carol 
Kent will be _the featured speaker. The se~ond retreat scheduled for 
March 3-5, m Bronson, Missouri, will be a missions retreat. 

!he bud~et was presented. Motion carried to adopt the budget. 
Mot1on corned to accept Mrs. Workman's Executive Secretory­
Treasurer Report as information. 

~oy Br~wn, chairman, gave the Resolutions Committee report. 
Mot1on corned to accept the report and vote item by item. 

Item # 1: W~ recommend that scholarships be given from the 
Cleo Pursell Fore1gn Student Scholarship Fund as follows: 

a,- T~ continue the scholarships for Paul and Robert in Cote 
d lvo1re and Philippe for a total of $1,250. 
b. To continue the scholarship for the Cuban Cedars of 
lebanon Seminary but reduce the amount to $500. 
c. To continue the scholarship assistance for the five students 
at the Voleno Wilson Bible Institute in Conoor Tamil Nodu 
South India, for a total of $1,250. ' ' 

Motion carried to adopt Item # l. 
Item ~2: We recommend doing a Notional 50/50 pro·ect, 

enc~urog1~g each local WAC to participate in sending a $50/$50 
offenng w1th $50 for Central Asian women to participate in their 
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"Sisters' Prayer Fellowship for Revival for the Notions of Central Asia" 
and $50 to the WNAC general fund. If there is on overage in the 
Central Asian women's fund, it will be used by the Central Asian 
women for a mission proiect. All money needs to be in by January 
15, 2005. 

Motion carried to adopt Item #2. 

Item #3: We recommend that WNAC send a letter of support 
for the Decency Act to the FCC. We further recommend that each 
member write the FCC in their local broadcasting networks in sup­
port of the Decency Act. For more information, log on to American 
Family Association or Focus on the Family website. 

Motion carried to adopt Item # 3. 

Item #4: We recommend that the WNAC send a letter of com­
mendation to President Bush for his position on the Constitutional 
Amendment stating that marriage in the United States shall consist 
only of the union of a man and a woman. 

Motion carried to adopt Item #4. 

Item #5: Be it resolved that all members toke a stand for marriage 
as the union between a man and a woman and that each member 
send a letter to her Congressmen voicing her support of this definition 
of marriage. Enter your zipcode at Congress.org to find contact 
information for your state and local representatives. 

Motion carried to adopt Item #5. Members were reminded that 
timing was important, that we needed to oct quickly and that we also 
needed to voice our appreciation to those who hove supported Pro­
Family legislation. 

Suzanne Lewis, chairman, presented the Appreciation Committee 
report. Their recommendations were as follows: 

We wish to express our sincere thanks to: 
1 . The Executive Committee for time spent praying, planning and 

preparing for this year's WNAC convention. 
2. The WNAC staff for their work throughout the year. 
3. All the instrumental musicians, special singers and speakers in 

the services, seminars, missionary service and WNAC luncheon. 
4. Our hostesses, the Missouri Women Active for Christ, for their 

efforts in making us welcome and for all the preparations in making 
this year's WNAC convention a success. 

5. We also recommend that we give all of those mentioned a 
rising vote of thanks. 

Those serving on this committee were Suzanne Lewis, IL; Koty 
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Taylor, Ml; Khristi Shores, NM; Sandy Mounts, OH; Jean Marie 
Rogers, OK. 

Motion carried to adopt the Appreciation Committee's report. 
The Registration Committee chairman, judith Ruble, gave a par­

tial report as follows: 

Number of persons registered: 

WNAC National Officers (Standing Delegates) ....... 6 
State Presidents (Standing Delegates). . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 2 
State Field Workers (Standing Delegates) . . . . . . . . . . 1 0 
State Delegates (Elected Delegates) . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 22 
Local WNAC Delegates (paying $5 representation fee). 37 
Total Delegates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 87 
Non-Voting Attendees: 

Visitors. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 724 
Missionaries (U.S. & Foreign) ... . .............. 25 
Grand Total Registered ..................... 936 
This committee consisted of judith Ruble, MO, chairman; Janie 

Aldridge, AL, and Dot Gore, MS. 

Motion carried to accept the partial report of the Registration 
Committee. 

Rev. James Forlines, director of Foreign Missions, offered thanks 
for the efforts made in supporting world evangelism through projects 
like the missions house, Central Asia prayer retreat, the Laura Belle 
Barnard offering, Provision Closet, Sister Marjorie Workman and the 
staff of WNAC. Rev. Forlines then prayed the benediction. 

11 :00 A.M. Missionary Service 
The Mountain Grove Free Will Baptist Hand Bell Choir called the 

assemb~ to worship. Debe Taylor gave a welcome to the attendees. 
Sheila Haas led the congregation in singing. A $3,005 offering was 
received. Missionary speak:ers, Don and Ruth McDonald, were intro­
duced. Ruth and daughter Katie sang "I Worship You" prior to the hus­
band-wife team addressing the attendees with thoughts centered 
around the convention theme, "Great Expectations" (Psalm 62:5). The 
couple shared what we could expect God to do. We can expect Him 
to be at work. He is at work in all the nations. We can expect Him 
to work through us, and we can expect Him to work through prayer. 
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Fellowship Luncheon 
Tuesday, july 20, 2004, 12:302:30 p.m. . 

The fellowship luncheon was held in the convention center 
Tuesda ahernoon in Room 1204 A/B. The gu~st speaker w~s 
l neHe ~organ who shared her vision for Central ASIO, the church 1d 
lmerica and the world. Using passages. from Hagga1 an 
Habakkuk, she chided Americans who _l1ve 1n co~fort while ,~he 
house of God is in ruins. She challenged l1stener~ to be amazehd hat 
the work God wants to do in and through bel1evers to reac t e 

wor~.fellowship/tea for state presidents and field workers was herr· 
ed by the WNAC sta~ in the Kansa_s City Mar~1o~ Tea Room o­
lowing the evening serv1ce of the Nat1onal AssoCiation. 

Synopsis of the Mi~utes of . 
WNAC Executive Comm1ttee Meeting 

Wednesday, December 1 0, 2003 

The WNAC Executive Committee met in the WNAC conference 
room. Members present: Marjorie Work~an, Debe Taylor, Jo~nne 
King, Phyllis York, Carolyn Hendrix, Sh1rley Jackson and Lmda 

Harvey. .d R d th 
Plans were finalized for the 2004 R1 gecrest etreat an e 

WNAC 2004 convention. 
05 

WNAC b d 
The committee approved: ( 1) the suggeste~ 20 . u -

et and its submission to WNAC convention; (2) select1on of 
0NAC themes lor 20 l 1-201 2; and 13) Marjorie Workman to 
negotiate a contract with Chateau on the Lake m Branson. 

Synopsis of the Min_utes of . 
WNAC Executive Comm1ttee Meeting 

Sunday, july 18, 2004, 1 :30 p.m. 

The WNAC Executive Committee met in the Executive B<?a~d 
Room of the Kansas City Marriott. Me_mbers present: Maqo~le 
Workman, Debe Taylor, joanne King, Phyll1s York, Carolyn Hendnx, 
Shirley Jackson and Linda Harvey. II . f 

Plans were finalized for the 2004 Women Nationa Y Act1ve or 
Christ 69th Annual Convention. b h 

The committee approved the following items to e sent tot e con­
vention for approval: 
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1 . The 2005 Proposed Budget. 
2. The 50/50 National Project - $50 for the Central Asian 
women and $50 to WNAC General Fund. 
3. Scholarships to be given to Paul and Robert in Cote d •lvoire, 
and to add Philippe for a total of $1 ,250; to continue the schol­
arship for the Cuban Cedars of Lebanon Seminary, but to reduce 
the amount to $500; and to continue the scholarship assistance 
for the five students at the Volena Wilson Bible Institute in Conoor, 
Tamil Nadu, South India, for a total of $1 ,250. 
The Committee also approved the launching of the new theme 

for the upcoming year at the july convention. This would not begin 
until 2006. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Executive Committee of the 
Women Nationally Active for Christ 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the Women Nationally 
Active for Christ (an auxiliary of the National Association of Free Will Baptists) (a nonprofit organization) 
as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years 
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audita in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes 
examirung, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. We believe that our 
audita provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
Lhe financial position of the Women Nationally Active for Christ as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the 
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

January 30, 2004 
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WOMEN NATIONALLY AqnyE FOR C~IS~aptists) 
(An Auxiliary of the National AssOClatlOn o~ ~ree Will 

Statements of financial Posltion 
December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Cash 
Accounts receivable - Note 1 
Inventory · Note 1 
Notes receivable, net of allowance fo~ 
doubtful accounts of $2,427 {$2,458 m 2002) 
Accrued interest receivable 
Property and equipment at cost, less 
accumulated depreciation of $35,743 
($33,943 in 2002). Notes 1 & 2 

Total assets 

ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Deferred revenue · Note 7 

Total liabilities 

Commitments . Notes 4 

Net assets 
Unrestricted . (deficit) 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountants' reoort and aCCQmpanymg 
notes to the financial statements, 
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2003 
$227,092 

9,066 
12,089 

1,997 
2,105 

6.925 

$259.274 

$ 32,730 
46.074 
78.804 

( 15,633) 
178,917 

11,166 
180.470 

$25~,gH 

2002 
$213,086 

8,610 
9,663 

3,248 
1,878 

8,725 

$2i5.2.l0 

$ 34,345 
45.975 
80.320 

( 4,686) 
152,999 

16.271 
164.890 

$245,210 



WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
<An Auxiliary of the National Association of Free Will Baptists) 

Statements ofActiyities 
For the Years Ended December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Unrestricted 
Revenue and other support: 

Dues and fees 
Designated contributions 
Magazine and literature sales 
Convention and retreat income 
Gifts and offerings 
Interest income 
Gain (loss) on value of investment 
Net assets released from restrictions: 
Satisfaction of program restrictions 

Total revenue and other support 

Expenses: 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Cost of magazine and literature printing 
Travel and promotion 
Conventions and retreats 
Office expense 
Postage 
Rent expense 
Professional fees 
Administrative expense 
Depreciation 
Bad debts 
Insurance expense 
Dues and subscriptions 
Special projects 
Continuing education 
Designated contributions 
Miscellaneous 

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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( 

(~ 

2003 

$ 64,603 
322,786 
109,707 
29,461 
67,038 

506 
2,620 

1.959 

598.680 

113,673 
34,764 
43,937 
2,738 

36,326 
15,556 
4,035 

24,600 
4,167 

403 
1,800 

31) 
768 
51 

1,676 
2,090 

323,074 

609.627 

IQ,941) 

( 

$ 

2002 

$ 65,408 
344,219 
136,681 
20,540 
77,404 

673 
1,179) 

20.290 

664.036 

108,318 
33,692 
64,513 
2,527 

24,837 
14,307 
4,112 

24,600 
3,700 

203 
1,799 

789 
1,269 

153 
19,482 
1,259 

343,825 
1.271 

650.656 

13.380 

WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CH~IST . 
(An Auxiliary of the National Associa~i~n. of Free Will BaptiSts) 

Statements of Actmttes 
For the Years Ended December 31. 2003 and 2002 

(Continued) 

Temporarily restricted 
Gifts and offerings $ 

Interest income . . 
Net assets released from restrtcttons: 

Satisfaction of program restrictions ( 

Increase in temporarily restricted net assets 

Permanently restricted 
Gifts and offerings 

Increase in permanently restricted net assets 

Total increase in net assets 

Net assets . beginning of year 

2003 

21,090 
6,787 

1.959) 

25,918 

609 

609 

15,580 

164.890 

Net assets - end of year ~ 180,410 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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2002 

$ 14,119 
7,708 

( 20,290) 

1,5~7 

1.360 

1.360 

16,277 

148.613 

i 1~.§~ 



<An ~?MEN NATIO~ALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
Auxiliary of the Na tiona I Association of Free Will Baptists) 

Statements of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Operating activities 
Increase in net assets 
Adjustment to r~oncile increase (decrease) in net assets to 

net cash prov1ded (used) by operating a t ' .t. . 
D 

. t' c IVl 1es. 
eprooa 100 

Bad debts 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in inventory 
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 

. Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 
Net cash proVIded by operating activities 

Investing activities 
Collection of loans receivable 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of years 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of years 

See accountants' report and accompanYing 
notes to the financial statements, 
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2003 

$ 15,580 

1,800 
( . 31) 

( 456) 
( 2,426) 
( 227) 
( 1,615) 

99 
12,721 

1,282 

1,282 

14,006 

213,086 

I 221,Q.9.2 

( 
( 
( 

2002 

$ 16,277 

1,799 
789 

869) 
861) 
175) 

1,928 
3,812 
~.700 

1,120 

1.120 

23,820 

189.266 

i2l3 086 

Note 1 • 

WOMEN NATIONALLY ACTIVE FOR CHRIST 
(An Auxiliary of the National Association of free Will Baptists) 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies 

The Women Nationally Active for Christ is a nonprofit organization and an 
auxiliary of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. located in Antioch, 
Tennessee. The purpose of the Organization is to publish the Free Will Baptists' 
magarine for women, to receive and disburse funds for missionaries and provide other 
se~ces to Free Will Baptist women. The Organization's support comes primarily from 
donor contributions, dues and fees, and magazine sales. 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under section 60l(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists, Inc. In addition, the Organization bas been determined by the Internal 
Revenue Service not to be a "private foundation" within the meaning of 509(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 2003 and 2002. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed in the 
preparation of the financial statements: 

Basis of accounting 

The Organization prepares its financial statements using the accrual basis of 
accounting, which involves the application of U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; 
consequently, revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses 
are recognized when incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financial statements presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of Financial Accounting Standards 
(SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements ofNot-for·Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 
117, the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position 
and activities according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted net assets, 
temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation or financial statements in conformity with u.s. generally accepted 
accounting principles includes the use of estimates that affect the financial statements. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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Note 1-

WOMEN NATIONALLYAQTNE FOR CHRIST 
(An Auxiliary of the National Association ofFrAAWill Baptists) 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Organization and summarv of significant accounting oolicies (Continued) 

Contributions 

The Organization accounts for contributions in accordance with the 
recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in SFAS No. 116, 
Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. In accordance with 
SFAS No. 116, contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily 
restricted, or permanently restricted support, depending on the existence or nature of 
any donor restrictions. 

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or 
permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restriction. When a 
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction 
is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net 
assets and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from 
restrictions. 

Prooerty. equipment. and depreciation 

The Organization follows the practice of capitalizing, at cost, all expenditures for 
property and equipment in excess of $500 with a useful life of at least two years. 
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets 
generally as follows: 

Equipment 5- 20 years 

The net property and equipment balance has been recorded as a separate component in 
unrestricted net assets. 

Accounts and notes receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts 

The Organization issues credit to churches and individuals for the purchase of 
magazines and literature. These churches and individuals are located all across the 
United States. 

The Organization loans money to Bible college students for the payment of 
college tuition. The student is required to sign a note for the money. These notes are 
uncollateralized. These students are located across the United States. There are 
numerous loans with varying interest rates and maturity dates. Accordingly, the fair 
value of these notes approximates the carrying value net of the allowance for doubtful 
accounts. 

Management considers accounts receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly, no 
allowance for doubtful accounts is required for accounts receivable. Management 
considers the notes receivable that are overdue to be only partially collectible and 
accordingly has recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts in the amount of $2,427 
($2,458 in 2002). 

-7-
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Note 1-

Note 2-

Note 3-

Note 4-

WOMEN NATIONALLY AQTNE FOR C~IST . 
(An Auxiliarv of the National Association of Free Will Baptists) 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 

Cash equivalents 

The Organization considers all highly liquid .investments with a maturity of 
three months or less when purchased to be cash eqwvalents. 

Inventory 

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost (first in, first out method) or market. 

Property and equipment 

A summary of property and equipment follows: 

Equipment . . 
Less: Accumulated deprectatiOn 

Restrictions on net assets 

2003 
$42,668 

( 35. 743) 

$ 6.925 

2002 
$42,668 
( 33.943) 

$ 8,725 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes: 

Lease 

Student Loan 
Foreign scholarship 
Free Will Baptist College Organ Fund 
Free Will Baptist Bible College Mission House 

Permanently restricted assets are restricted to: 

Endowment Trust 

2003 2002 
$141,489 $134,217 

6,618 4,994 
18,072 17,318 
12.738 ( 3.530) 

$}78.917 $152.999 

$ 17.186 i 16,57_1 

. 1 menton October 1, 1990 with the 
The Or~a~ization enter~d mto ~ ::~c~koffice and storage space. The term of 

National Association of Free Will Baptis ' . . satisfied· the mortgage was 
the lease expire when all ~or~ages oten thde' btouilam::~:ase agree~ent on July 1, 2000. 

tired . 2000 The orgam?.ation en re m . . S be 1 
re m - A t 31 2000 then beg:mmng eptem r • 
The term of the lease was July 1, 20001 to ~s n~ expe~ for the year amounted to 
2000 the lease became a year-to-year ease. e re 
$24,600 ($24,600 for the year ended December 31, 2002). 
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Note 5-

Note 6-

Note 7-

Note 8-

WOMEN NATIONALLYAC'I'NE FOR CHRIST 
(An Auxiliarv of the National Association of Free Will Baptists) 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Pension plan 

The Organization participates in the master pension plan of the Board of 
Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists_ The plan is 
a defined contribution plan_ The Organization contributes 5% of gross salary for aU 
employees with five or more years of service and 3% of gross salary for employees with 
less than five years of service_ Employees are allowed to contribute to the plan but are 
not required to contribute. Pension expense for the year amounted to $5,050 ($4,859 in 
2002). Under the plan, an account is maintained for each participant and upon 
retirement the participant can either receive a lump sum distribution or purchase one of 
several types of annuity accounts-

Concentration of credit risk 

The Organization maintains cash deposits at a financial institution located in 
the United States_ Accounts at the institution are insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation up to $100,000_ At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the cash deposits 
were fully insured_ 

The Organization also has $192,538 ($172,939 in 2002) on deposit with the Free 
Will Baptist Foundation_ These funds are uninsured-

Deferred revenue 

Deferred revenue resulted from magazine subscriptions received for 2004 issues_ 

Fair values of financial instruments 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Organization in 
estimating its fair value disclosures for financial instruments: 

Cash, accounts receivable, accrued interest receivable, payables, and 
deferred revenue: The carrying amounts reported in the statements of 
financia l position approximate fair values because of the short maturities of 
those instruments. 

Notes receivable: Based on current interest rates, the carrying value 
approximates the fair value of the notes receivable at December 31, 2003 and 
2002-

-9-
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GIFTS TO MISSIONS/MISSIONARY OBJECTIVES 
January 1, 2003 to December 31 ,2003 

cash Gifts 
Foreign Missions Total 

Sent Through WNAC 
Sent Direct 

Home Missions Total 
Sent Through WNAC 
Sent Direct 

State Projects 
Bible Colleges 
Or. Mary Ruth Wisehart Student Loan Fund 

Other Gifts . 
Foreign Student Scholarship Fund 
Mission Objectives 

Provision Closet 
WNAC Operating Gifts 

General Fund Offering 
Emphasis Offering 
Endowment Fund 
Rest of Family Offering 

Dues 
Together Way (Designated) 

Non-cash Gifts 
Provision Closet 

Total cash and Non-cash Gifts 

A- 51 

164,774_15 
30,98059 

86,260_73 
17,531_80 

1,624_00 
24,200-38 

30,174_27 
8,919_87 
609_00 

1,962-24 
64,028-00 

949_11 

$ 195,754_74 

$103,792-53 

$ 36,818_11 
$ 11 ,332_89 
$ 1,60250 
$ 25,824_38 

$ 6,864-10 
$ 106,642_49 

$ 23,819_15 

-------------------
$ 512,450_89 



2003 TOP TEN CONTRIBUTORS TO WNAC 
2005 WNAC SALARY BREAKDOWN 

2003 2004 2005 

General Fund Executive Secretary-Treasurer 

Salary 
$ 37,201.63 $ 38,690.00 $ 39.890 00 

1. Tennessee $7,095.26 
Soc1al Security/Medicare $ 2.845.92 $ 3,016.70 $ 3,052.00 

2. Arkansas 
Retirement $ 1,860.08 $ 1,934.50 $ 1,995.00 

$3,355.32 
Insurance $ 5,957.12 $ 5,913.00 $ 6,255.00 

3. Georgia $2,866.00 
TraveVLife $ 283 12 $225.00 $225.00 

4. Alabama 
Hosp1tal $5,401.44 $5,416.00 $5,730.00 

5. Missouri 
$2.828.60 Dental $ 272.56 $272.00 $300.00 

$2,367.91 
Christmas Bonus $ 715.41 $ 744.04 $ 767.00 

6. North Carolina $ 1.881.44 
Total Salary and Benefits $ 48,580.16 $ 50,298.24 $ 51,959 00 

7. Mississippi $ 1,844.00 
Executive Assistant 

8. Oklahoma $ 1,766.35 
Salary $ 27,568.90 $ 28,672.00 $ 29,872.00 

9. Virginia $ 1,271.03 
Social Security/Medicare $ 2,109.02 $ 2,235.59 $ 2,285 00 

10. Florida 
Retirement $ 1.378.44 $ 1,433.60 $ 1,494.00 

$1.126.00 
Insurance $ 5,824.76 $ 5,863.00 $ 6,205 00 

Life $ 151.00 $ 175.00 $ 175.00 

Emphasis Offering 
Hosp1tal $5,401.20 $5,416.00 $5,730.00 

Dental $ 272.56 $ 272.00 $ 300.00 

Christmas Bonus $ 530.17 $ 551.38 $ 574.00 

1. North Carolina $ 1.325.25 
Total Salary and Benefits $ 37,411.29 $ 38,755.57 $ 40,430.00 

2. Tennessee $ 1,268.97 Editor 

3. South Carolina $ 1. 125.57 
Salary $ 23,944.07 $ 24,902.00 $ 26,102.00 

4. Missouri $ 887.72 
Social Security/Med1care $ 1,831.72 $ 1,941.64 $ 1,997.00 

5. Georgia 
Retirement $ 718.32 $ 747.06 $ 78300 

$ 837.35 
Insurance $ 5,824.76 $ 5.863.00 $ 6,250.00 

6. Oklahoma $ 753.66 
L1fe $151.00 $ 175 00 $ 175.00 

7. Alabama $ 660.85 
Hospital $5.401.20 $5,416.00 $5,730.00 

8. Arkansas 
Dental $ 272.56 $ 272.00 $ 300.00 

$ 566.75 
Christmas Bonus $ 460.46 $ 478.88 $ 502.00 

9. Virginia $ 473.75 
Total Salary and Benefits $ 32,779.33 $ 33,932.58 $ 35,634 00 

10. Mississippi $ 385.00 Bookkeeper 
Salary $ 21,866.70 $ 22,742.00 $ 10,400.00 

Per Capita Giving to WNAC 
Soc1al Security/Medicare $ 1,672.80 $ 1,773.22 $ 

Retirement $ 1,093.33 $ 1,137.10 $ 

1. Tennessee 

Insurance $ 5,824.76 $ 5,863.00 $ 

$ J 9.31 
Life $ 151.00 $ 175.00 $ 

2. Virginia $ 13.1 1 
Hospttal $5,401.20 $5,416.00 $ 

3. Alabama 
Dental $ 272.56 $ 272.00 $ 

$ 8.68 
Christmas Bonus $ 420.51 $ 437.35 $ 200.00 

4. Georgia $ 8. 14 
Total Salary and Benefits $ 30,878.10 $ 31,952.67 $ 10,600.00 

5. Florida $ 7.92 
6. Missouri 

Grand Total of Salary and Benefits $149,648.88 $ 154,939.06 $ 138,578.00 

$ 6.50 
(Editor's hospital insurance [$6,250] is presently not a WNAC mcurred expense.) 

7· Washington (Tri Cities) $ 5.7 1 
8. North Carolina $ 5.39 
9 · New Mexico $ 5.22 
10. Ohio $ 5.21 
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Report of the Higher Education Task Force 
to the National Association of Free Will Baptists 

July 2004 

INTRODUCTION 
Prompted by resolutions from both Arkansas and Georgia Free Will 

Baptists, the delegates to the 1999 National Association meeting in 
Atlanta, Georgia, created a National Higher Education Task Force and 
assigned it the dual tasks of evaluation of the present status of education 
in the denomination and the drafting of a vision for its future. The two 
state resolutions called for the development of a " .. .long range, compre­
hensive plan for Christian higher education among Free Will Baptists .. .. " 1 

The Task Force, chaired by Dr. Melvin Worthington, executive secre­
tary of the denomination at the time, and consisting of the presidents and 
deans of the various Free Will Baptist educational institutions along with 
five at-large members, met for its organizational meeting in Nashville, 
Tennessee, December 11-13, 1999. Working from data suggesting that 
denominational institutions of higher learning were reaching less than ten 
per cent of Free Will Baptist high school graduates, the Task Force identi­
fied six questions that would guide the discussions of this first meeting: 

1. Why aren't our colleges attracting 90%+ of Free Will Baptist college 
students? 
2. How can we cooperate more and foster more ... sharing among our 
colleges? 
3. How can we cooperatively employ creative, entrepreneurial means 
to increase our level of educational effectiveness (e.g., educational 
technology, adult education, cross-cultural education)? 
4. What steps would need to be taken to establish a Free Will Baptist 
seminary to educate our pastors more effectively for ministry? 
5. How can we better fund our educational institutions? 
6. How do we view Christian education as a denomination?2 

In order better to address these key questions, a number of sub-com­
mittees were appointed: College and Seminary, Funding, and Survey. 
These committees were to work between formal meetings to prepare 
information that would guide the discussions in the plenary sessions that 
were to meet once each year. 

The Resolutions 
Claiming that higher education must be a priority among Free Will 

Baptists, both the Arkansas and the Georgia resolutions asked for a "com­
prehensive approach to higher education" and suggested that a study 
committee or task force be appointed and given the task of drafting such 
an approach. The Resolutions Committee passed the requests to the 
General Board and Item 3 of the Board's report recommended that " ... the 
resolutions from Arkansas and Georgia dealing with Christian higher edu­
cation be adopted, the study be initiated, a committee be selected, and 
that all our colleges be encouraged to participate. ,3 
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The Committee 
Task Force members included five college presidents: Tom Malone, 

Carl Cheshier, Wendell Walley, Billy Bevan, and Thomas Marberry; five aca­
demic deans: Milton Fields, Tim Eaton, E. T. Hyatt, A. B. Brown, and Marco 
Antonio Mendoza Gonzales; and five at-large members: William Davidson, 
Douglas Simpson, Daniel Parker, Matthew Pinson, and Randy Sawyer. 

The Mandate 
First steps for the Task Force included clarification of its mandate 

from the National Association as well as identification of the boundaries 
within which the group was expected to work. The "comprehensive plan" 
of the mandate was defined as " . .. an inclusive system of higher education 
designed to address the growing educational needs of our denomination," 
while the I< long range plan" was explained in terms of u •.• an incremental 
plan for the first decade of the twenty-first century. ,4 The former task 
allowed discussion of present circumstances: factors hindering growth, 
perceptions of higher education in denominational institutions, institu­
tional funding, and cooperation between schools, while the second task 
demanded that attention be given to finding solutions to perceived prob­
lems and to offering counsel for the future. With those guidelines estab­
lished, the members of the Task Force affirmed the purpose for their con­
tinued ministry: "(1) to define the educational needs and problems with 
the current system and (2) to formulate a strategy with which to address 
them."5 The Survey Sub-Committee drafted surveys that were designed to 
feel the pulse of all parties in the denomination that would be impacted by 
our educational system-pastors, denominational leaders, parents, col­
lege students, and teens. 

One clear conviction of the group was that any successful education­
al program for the denomination would include a national Free Will Baptist 
Seminary, a graduate school designed to prepare pastors and educational 
leaders who are, in turn, capable of training others as leaders for the 
denomination's schools and churches in the new millennium. 

The Meetings 
Following the initial meeting, members of the Task Force gathered in 

Nashville early each year through 2004 to continue their discussions and 
to evaluate and act upon the continuing studies conducted by the various 
sub-committees. Chaired by Dr. Melvin Worthington, the meetings gener­
ally met throughout the day on Friday and through the morning hours on 
Saturday. Friday night was dedicated to the deliberations of the sub-com­
mittees. The final meeting was held in Nashville on April 2-3, 2004. 

COMPilATION OF SURVEY RESULTS 
The Purpose of the Surveys 

The purpose of the Task Force's surveys was to receive input from indi­
viduals and groups who have significant interest in the successful opera­
tion of Free Will Baptist institutions of higher education. The higher edu­
cation surveys were specifically designed for the following constituencies: 
high school students, college students, ministers, donors, and parents. In 
addition, the pastors listed in the NA.fWB Executive Office database were 
invited to participate in a survey about graduate education. 
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... 
Summary of Survey Results . . 

Over 750 surveys were tabulated from across the variOus constit~en-
. using both the internet and postal mail. College students compnsed 

~~e: largest group, followed by parents and donors, high school students, 
and ministers. The participants were from 23 states and Canada. 

College Students: The college student respo~dents expres~ed t~eir 
desire to have more educational options for thetr chosen maJors m a 
Christian atmosphere. The top ten choices were: . . 

1. Teacher education (secondary and special education were hsted 

frequently) 
2. Business 
3. Computer and technical fields 
4. Pastoral training 
5. Medical training (nursing) 
6. Missions ) 
7. Professional studies (pre-med, enginee~g, pre-law, ~t~. 
8. Specialized ministries (Christian educatiOn, youth mmtstry, etc.) 

9. Music ) 
10. Arts and science majors (English, history, psychology, etc. 

The students attending Free Will Baptists institutions commended .the 
colleges while citing the need for more courses, majors, and scholarshids. 
When answering the question who or what influe~ced them to atten a 
s ecific college, the highest were God's will and calhn~ or thr~u~h the r:c­
o~endation of (in descending order): family, fnend, mmtster, htgh 
school teacher or counselor. 

Higb School Students: There were 149 response~ fr?m high scho?l 
students regarding institutional choice. Only .15 (10.0?%) l~sted·a· Free3~~1 Baptist institution as an option ( compre~e~siVe pubhc uruve~)s _ 12%' 
regional public universities - 12%, Chnst1an colleges [~on- . • 
community/technical colleges - 5%, with almost 30% expressmg ~0 
plans) The majority of these surveys were completed at ~ampus .recrmt­
ment ~vents for Free Will Baptist colleges. The top maJor chmces for 

careers were: 
1. Professional studies (pre-med, engineering, pre-law, etc.) - 37 
2. Teacher education- 16 ) 13 
3. Arts and science majors (English, history, psychology, etc. -

4. Music- 12 
5. Trades/vocational training - 9 
6. Medical training (nursing) - 9 
7. Ministry/missions- 7 
8. Business/computers - 6 
9. Law enforcement- 4 

The res ondents listed size and Lack of majors as the greatest disadv~n­
tage in ~tending a Free Will Baptist college. The distant second and thtrd 
were distance from home and rules. . 

Ministers· The ministers were the smallest group of res.pondents: ~heir 
major conce~ was the general lack of young people entenng the mimstry. 

Parents and donors: The parents' main concerns were about the cost 
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;;;ge~u~~::e ~~:~h~n~a";t~~~~~: ~fiilab/e to their childre~ after receiv-
ceives the colleges as limited and lackin;~f~s~ col~eges. Thi~ ~oup per­
most notable quote from the rmgs or non-mm1sters. The 
not know we had any!" surveys was perhaps: "What college? I did 

Summary of Graduate Education Survey Results 
The graduate education surve .1 churches listed in the NAFWB Exec~t~as 0~~ ed dto approximately 2,500 

to the pastor currently listed for each ~~~urc~~e;he:!a~::.: :1 ad~~essed 
veys returned for a response rate of 18% The . ~sa e sur­
was a 49-year-old colJege graduate with . 23 typical_ res~o~dmg pastor 
questions 1-3). The summar of res ov~r years m mmistry (survey 
vey questions) were as foll!ws: ponses (m parentheses next to the sur-

4. Should Free WilJ Ba r t b · .. 
level? (Yes = 79. 7%) p IS s egm some trammg beyond the coiJege 

5. Should the graduate p 0 b 1 2 47%, 3=29% r gram e , , or 3 years in length? 1= 8%, 2= 

6. Should the graduate prog h h 
FWBBC? rves _ 38% No 17%ramU d a':'e t e same administration as 

· .\ •' - o, = o, n ec1ded = 41 %) 
~~e~~e~f !~~r ~~ressi~n o! the e?ucatio~ of Pastors as a group? 
8 Wh t. '. qua~e - 39%, lacking = 49%, very inadequate= 5%) 

a~ a g:o~~~C:r~~~~s=·~~~o~~~~uea~~~a~i~~ ~~:~igs~e2rs9%of Eveduc~tiodn equate = 4%) I - o, ry rna -

9. What is your impression of the educati f M' . 
a group? (very well = 7% ade u - o on o . miste~s of Music as 
quate = 5%) , q ate - 41 %, lacking = 29%, very inade-

10. What is your impression of th d . 
group? (very well = 4%, adequatee ~ 3~~t;~~.;;~gY~u4th3%Directo~s asd a 
quate = 6%) ' - o, very ma e-
ll . What is your impr · f h . 
a group? (very well = ~~~~~~~q~a~e e~~~~ti~~c~ Asg :o

4
c
2
i
96
ate Past?rsdas 

quate = 5%) ' - o , very ma e-

ul2.dD~dyou need more formal education? rves = 63% No 19% 
n ec1 ed = 17%) \ •' o, = o , 

13. Will you enroJl for graduat k · h' 
= 21 % No - 42% U d 'd d e wor Wit m the next five years? rves 

' - o , n ec1 e = 3 7%) · \ • · 
14. Would you take advant f F · 
if offered? (Yes = 26%, No _a~~~~ ~n~!~i~~~ ~Ttt~; program of study, 

(FWB
15. What type of program of study do you prefer? 

Graduat /D' · · s h · 
0 . 0 e ~Vlnity c ool- 12%, Correspondence- 18% 

nhne- ~9%, Regional seminars- 13%) o, 

~~~:n~ ~t t~~~:,;::~~; ~~::~:~ter:al students in your church who are 
terial student · d · (7 pastors reported over 100 minis-

. s m gra uate schools) 
17· What IS your highest earned d ? (H' 
Associates- 10%, Bachelors- 39% Masetgree. 13%IghD School - 27%, 
18 Wh · h 0

' ers - o, octorate- 8%) 
- JO%, ~!~loe;eal~~st~~~t~/rCy~ur h6~%gheBst ~egree? (Bible/Ministry 

I • • - o, usmess/Computers - 5% 
I 
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Arts & Sciences- 4%, Counseling/Psychology- 3%, Engineering, Law, 
or Medical - 1.5%, Missions - 1%, and Music - 1 %) 

One out of four pastors shared comments with these being the most 
frequent: graduate education is vital; flexible delivery system needed; focus 
on effectiveness in ministry; continuing education (not just graduate edu­
cation); include hi-vocational pastors; include all our colleges; plus ques­
tions of individuals' ability to pay the cost and denominational funding. 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
Attracting More Free Will Baptist Students to Free Will Baptist Colleges 

Indications are that the reasons our colleges are not attracting the 
majority of Free Will Baptist college students are many. From the per­
spective of many pastors, perhaps it is because young people are not 
answering the call to vocational Christian ministry in as great a number as 
generations earlier. The Task Force discussed the trend among students to 
change their minds about vocational decisions or postpone such deci­
sions. For example, 75% of college students change their major at least 
once during their college experience. More and more, students are 
responding to the call to vocational Christian ministry in early adulthood 
rather than in their teens. 

The data from parents/donors and high school students point to a few 
key facts: Free Will Baptist high school students and their parents per­
ceive Free Will Baptist colleges as small colleges without the resources and 
reputations to provide them with the degree programs or career opportuni­
ties they desire. Parents listed a major factor as the expense of private col­
lege education and the lack of scholarship funds. While a few students list­
ed factors such as distance from home and strict rules as impediments to 
their attending a Free Will Baptist college, these were insignificant in com­
parison to the issues of degree offerings, size, reputation, and cost. The 
Task Force is also concerned about perceptions on the part of Free Will 
Baptist parents and students that Free Will Baptist colleges are academi­
cally weak or inferior to other colleges and universities. 

If this sample is indicative of the whole, then only about one out of five 
Free Will Baptist students are attending Christian colleges. We need not 
comfort ourselves by hoping that the majority of Free Will Baptist stu­
dents who do not attend our colleges are attending other Christian col­
leges. These data are startling in view of recent statistics that show that 52% 
of evangelical Christian students who enter non-Christian colleges and uni­
versities list no church attendance a year after their college graduation. 

Therefore, the Task Force recommends 
•that Free Will Baptist colleges take more seriously the fact that so 

few Free Will Baptist college students attend our colleges, and make this 
concern a priority in their respective visions for their institutions. 

•that each college aggressively investigate ways to increase its pro­
gram offerings (majors) so as to attract students into a Free Will Baptist 
collegiate environment that will not only provide them with a Christian 
worldview but will also place them into a context in which they will be 
more likely to respond to a call to vocational Christian ministry. 

• that each college conduct internal needs assessments to determine 
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whic~ programs to add to their current curriculum. Increased program 
offenn~s represent the most feasible way to increase enrollment, thereby 
answenng the concern regarding institutional size. 

•that Free Will Baptist colleges strive to improve the level of excel­
le~ce in all aspects of the educational process so that our people will per­
ceive our colleges as capable of providing college-level education. 
(Increased scholarship funding is covered below under the heading 
"Funding for Free Will Baptist Higher Education.'') 

Graduate Theological Education Among Free Will Baptists 
The Task Force analyzed various issues in education for Christian min­

istry. The members agree that youth ministry education needs to be re­
evaluated, owing in part to the fact that so many youth ministers eventu­
~ly make transitions to pastoral ministry. Furthermore, our college min­
Istry departments need to place more emphasis on education for rural and 
hi-vocational pastoral ministries. The Task Force agrees that we must train 
pastoral ministry students to minister to the kinds of churches we have: 
small and medium-sized churches. Furthermore, in our ministry education 
we must emphasize the importance of denominational loyalty and support: 

The Ta~k Force al.so agr~es that the denomination needs to take gradu­
ate theologtcal educatwn serwusly. The ministers' survey on graduate edu­
cat~on indicates t?at .most pastors (almost 80% of the respondents) 
believe ~he denommati.on needs graduate education. The majority of the 
respondmg pastors satd that Free Will Baptist pastors and other voca­
tional Christian ministers need more education to help them minister and 
evangelize more effectively in an increasigly complex environment. 
Almost two-thirds said that they themselves needed more formal educa­
tion. About one-fourth indicated that they would study in a Free Will 
Baptist graduate program, and most of the respondents believe that flexi­
bility and distance learning should be an integral part of any graduate 
program of theological education among Free Will Baptists. 

Based on the above data, the Task Force 
•commends the graduate program at Hillsdale Free Will Baptist 

College. 
•encourages other Free Will Baptist colleges to establish academical­

ly credible graduate programs in biblical studies/ministry as they acquire 
the resources necessary for such programs. 

•recommends that the denomination continue studying the feasibility 
of establishing a seminary. 

Funding for Free Will Baptist Higher Education 
. The consensus of the Task Force was that funding for higher educa­

tiOn must be increased if Free Will Baptist colleges are to provide the kind 
of complrehensive education that will meet the needs of Free Will Baptists. 
The Task Force recommends 

. •that Free Will Baptist colleges engage in systematic assessment of 
their programs of stewardship and fundraising, including sources from 
c.hurches and associations, individual donors, alumni, charitable founda­
tions, and planned giving (e.g., wills, annuities, etc.). 

•that colleges place increased emphasis on the establishment of 
endowments for our colleges, not only for scholarship funds but also for 
operating funds. 
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•that our educational institutions develop, promote, and publicize 
methods of deferred giving to fund our colleges, in conjunction with the 
Free Will Baptist Foundation. 

•that our people be strongly encouraged to help fund our colleges 
through deferred giving, wills, and trusts. . . 

•that our institutions work together Wlth the Free Wtll Baptist 
Foundation to promote deferred giving among Free Will Baptists. 

Cooperation Among Our Colleges . . . 
Cooperation among Free Will Baptist colleges was m eVIdence m .the 

meetings of the Task Force. Yet there are impedim~nts to cooperatio?, 
owing perhaps to philosophical differences that eXIst am?ng Fr~e Will 
Baptists. However, the Task Force rec~mmend~ ~hat Free ~tll Baptist ~ol­
leges cooperate as much as possible m the mtmstry of htg~er educatiOn 
among Free Will Baptists. First, this wo~ld involve fellowship among th: 
colleges. This discussion fostered the ftrst-ever Student Leaders Summit 
between the student governments of Free Will Baptist Bible College ~? 
Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College. There are plans in the works for a snru­
lar summit this fall, and a desire exists for the two colleg.es to host a student 
ministry retreat that would be open to all.Free Will Baptist co.llege st~dents. 

In addition to fellowship, cooperatiOn among Free W1ll Baptist c~l­
leges would involve academic coo~eration. ~ossible kinds of. aca.de~c 
cooperation that the Task Force discussed mclude cooper~tion. m dis­
tance learning on the undergraduate level (i.e., colleges s?armg distance 
learning and non-traditional curricula), as well as cooperatiOn on the grad­
uate level (i.e., after the development of graduate pro~~s in the?logy 
and ministry, colleges could, within the bounds o! accred1~ation considera­
tions, share adjunct faculty and distance learmng curncula) .. The Ta~k 
Force strongly recommends such cooperation among Free W1ll Baptist 

colleges. 
A Higher Education Research Commission for Free Will Bapti~ 

[n the interests of continued reflection on the nature, functiOn, and 
progress of higher education among Free Will Baptists, the Task For~e :ec­
ommends the establishment of a Higher Education Research Commisston. 
The purposes of the Commission would be as follows: 

1. To gather and analyze relevant information regarding Christian 
higher education among Free Will Baptists. . . . . 
2. To keep Free Will Baptist churches and educational mstitutiOns 
informed of educational trends, issues, and conc~rns. . 
3. To make broad, appropriate recommendatiOns regardmg the 
enhancement of Free Will Baptist higher education. 

The Task Force recommends that it not be within the scope of this 
Commission to investigate or make policy recommendations for any Free 
Will Baptist educational institution. 

Epilogue . 
The Task Force has found it impossible to engage m the. compl:x 

undertaking of long-range comprehensive planning for Free. W1ll Baptist 
colleges, as the original resolution asked us to do .. Howeve.r, 1ts m.embers 
believe that the recommendations in this report Will go far m helpmg Free 
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Will Baptists address the educational needs of Free Will Baptist students, 
ministers, and churches. We believe that the ministry of truly Christian 
higher education is vital to our churches' playing an effective role in ful­
filling the Great Commission in the twenty-first century. 

We must face these educational challenges squarely: the thousands of 
Free Will Baptist college students who receive their education from non­
Christian colleges and universities because they feel their educational 
needs are not provided for by Free Will Baptist colleges; ministers who 
long for more educational opportunities to aid them in their ministry of 
the gospel in Free Will Baptist churches and mission fields; the lack of 
vision for funding Christian higher education among Free Will Baptists; the 
need for more cooperation in Free Will Baptist higher education. When we 
face these challenges, we believe we will be more effective in fulfilling the 
call of our Master to "Go ... and teach all nations, baptizing them in the 
name of the Father, and of the Son, and of the Holy Ghost: teaching them 
to observe all things whatsoever I have commanded you." 

The Members of the Higher Education Task Force: 

Melvin Worthington, Chairman 
Carl Cheshier (OK) 
William Davidson (SC) 
Timothy Eaton (OK) 
Milton Fields (TN) 
Marco Gonzales (MX) 
E. T. Hyatt (CA) 

Thomas Marberry (TX) 
Daniel Parker (OK) 
Matthew Pinson (TN) 
Randy Sawyer (NC) 
Douglas Simpson (TX) 
Wendell Walley (CA) 

APPENDIX A 
ORIGINAL RFSOLliTION 

Below is the original resolution adopted at the 1999 meeting of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists. 

We recommend the resolutions from Arkansas and Georgia dealing with 
Christian higher education be adopted, the study be initiated, a commit­
tee selected, and that all our colleges be encouraged to participate. The 
Arkansas resolution reads: 

Whereas; 
1. Christian higher education must be a priority among Free Will 
Baptists as we seek to fulfill the Great Commission, 

and Whereas, 
2. A comprehensive approach to Christian higher education could 
better fulfill our needs than the current system, 

Be it therefore resolved: 
That we initiate a study committee to develop a long-range compre­
hensive plan for Christian higher education for Free WiJI Baptists. 
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The Georgia Resolution reads: . f 
ther to "extend the mfluence o 

1. \\_'he:eas, v-:e ~~vedc~~:r:~~1o~ottee promotion of education" (Free 
Chnst m Soc1ety an h 6-7) and 
Will Baptist Church Covenant, paragrap s ' 

· ·ty mong Free . . hi her education must be a pnon a 
Whereas, Chnstian g k f lfll the Great Commission of our Lord, 
Will Baptists as we see to u • 
and, 

com rehensive approach to Christian higher education 
Whereas, a .P d than the current system, 
could better fulfill our nee s 

Be it resolved, d committee to develop a long­
A. That we initiate. a ta~k f~rc~~~~tfan higher education among Free 
range, comprehensive p an or 
Will Baptists, 

d b sed committee composed of Free 
B. That this task force be a broa ~ ledgeable of higher education, 
Will Baptist individuals who are ow 
and, 

. d of representatives of our four 
C. That this task force be compl~tse. d.viduals who are not present­
Free Will Baptist colleges, as we as m • 
ly affiliated with those colleges. 

End Notes: . (N hville· The Executive Office, National 
1. 2000 Free Will Baptist Yearbook. . as l . Printed by Randall House 
Association of Free Will Baptists , nc., 

Publications, 2000), _PP· A-2S~, 251f the Free Will Baptist Educational Task 
2. "Minutes of the First ~eetmg oN h ·u Tennessee, December 11-13, 
Force." Unpublished mmutes, as Vl e, 

1999, p. 1; addendum.A 250 251 Copies of the two resolutions are includ-
3. 2000 Yearbook, PP· - • · 
ed in Appendix A. 
4. "Minutes, 1999, P· 3. 
5. Ibid. 
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Registration Report 
The 2004 Kansas City Convention registered the following: 

National Convention ............. 3,333 
Foreign Missionary ............. 27 
Home Missionary ..... ... . .. .. . 52 
Licensed Minister ............. .43 
Local Church Delegate ..... . .... 16 
Visitor ........ . ............ 2,309 
State Delegate ................. 88 
Ordained Minister ..... ... .... 614 
Ordained Deacon .... .. .... ... 127 
Board/Commission Member ..... 57 

National Youth Conference . . . . . . 3,219 
NYC Visitor .... . .. .. ..... . .. 1 ,538 
NYC Personnel ..... ..... .. ... 120 
NYC Child Visitor . .... ....... .. 69 
NYC Grades 1-3 ... .... ..... ... 248 
NYC Grades 4-6 ............... 328 
NYC Grades 7-8 ........ . ...... 245 
NYC Grades 9-12 .............. 550 
Preschool Worship ............ 121 

Women Nationally Active For Christ. . . . 956 
WNAC Visitor ................ 735 
Local WNAC Delegate .......... 39 
WNAC Missionary .. . .......... 25 
WNAC National Officer ... ....... 6 
WNAC State Delegate ... . ... ... 129 
WNAC State Field Worker .. ... .. 1 0 
WNAC State President .......... 12 

Total Individuals Registered: 5,4 76 
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Budget Committee Report 
The National Assodation of Free Will Baptists, Inc., has approved in this convention these budgets for 2005: 
Executive Office {Includes:) $ 709,145.00 

Administrative $ 378,735.00 
Convention 330,41 0.00 

Free Will Baptist Bible College 
{Includes S 1,300,000.00 in unrestricted gifts) 

Foreign Missions 
(Does not include Vision and other projects totalling $7,700,770.00) 

Home Missions 
Moster's Men 
Retirement and Insurance 
Free Will Baptist Foundation 
Sunday School and Church Training 
Commission for Theological Integrity 
Historical Commission 
Music Commission 

6,033,945.00 

4,500,000.00 
136,720.00 
507,390.00 
319,065.00 

3,471 ,804.00 
6,350.00 
2,800.00 
3,500.00 
5,000.00 Media Commission 

TOTAL s 24,259,093.00 

All these ministries receive funds through The Together Way except the Sunday School and Church 
Training Deportment which is self-sustaining. 

The Budget Committee recommends that gifts received through The Together Way Plan be allocated to 
the national ministries on the following basis: 

1. Underwrite the Executive Office Administrative Budget above designated gifts, not to exceed 45% 
of cooperative gifts. . . . . . . 
2. Disburse the balance of cooperative gifts to the followmg not1onol m1mstnes occordmg to these per· 
centoges: 

Free Will Baptist Bible College 
Foreign Missions 
Home Missions 
Retirement and Insurance 
Moster's Men 
Free Will Baptist Foundation 
Commission for Theological Integrity 
Historical Commission 
Music Commission 
Media Commission 
TOTAL 

Respectfully Submined, Your Servants, 
Keith Burden, Executive Secretary 
Matt Pinson, President of Free Will Baptist Bible College 

23.0% 
23.0% 
18.0% 
14.0% 
14.0% 
6.0% 
0.5% 
0.5% 
0.5% 
0.5% 

100.0% 

James Forlines, General Director of Foreign Missions Department 
Larry Powell, General Director of Home Missions Department 
Bill Evans General Director of Retirement and Insurance Department 

I 

Kenneth Akers General Director of Master's Men Department 
Ron Hunter, G~neral Director of Sunday School and Church Training Department 
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Alabama 
Obituary Committee Report 

Winford Russell, deacon 
Arkansas 

Lloyd SummerhiJI, minister 
Ralph Gray, minister 
Roy L. Thompson, minister 
George Raymond Hunton 

• • I 

mm1ster 

Vernon Rosamond, minister 
T.A. Miller, minister 
Herbert Crouch, minister 
Jimmy McCully, minister 
Jack Remer, deacon 
Truman Coffman, deacon 
Thomas Guthrie, deacon 

California 
James C. Wood, minister 

Florida 
HarJie Dockens, deacon 
Walter Rice, deacon 

Georgia 
Charles Clark, minister 
Leron Clower, deacon 
Brooks Coursey, deacon 

Illinois 
Vernell Clark, minister 
Gary L. Culli, deacon 

Kansas 
Rhan Bowen, minister 

Kentucky 
Paul Diamond, minister 
James Couch, minister 
Dewey D. Nelson, minister 
Winston Adkins, deacon 
Robert Click, deacon 
James Simpson, deacon 
Ester Thompson, deacon 
Robert Welch, deacon 

Mississippi 
Norlin Jones, minister 
Cliff Holland, minister 
Rick Powers, minister 
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Leonard Walden, deacon 
Herman Whittermore 

' deacon 
Missouri 

Rocky Williams, minister 
John Boggess, deacon 
Ruel Calkin, deacon 

North Carolina 
Bill Fulcher, minister 
LaRue Davis, minister 
Adam Scott, minister 
John Artis Gaskins, deacon 
Woodrow Ramsey, deacon 
Solomon Norton deacon 

Ohio ' 

James Blair, minister 
John Jeffrey, minister 
John Taylor, minister 
John McCeJJand, minister 
Ernest Demron, deacon 
Ora GiJJiland, deacon 

Oklahoma 
Perry Watson, minister 

West Virginia 
Jack L. Green, minister 
Wade Webb, minister 
WC. Combs, minister 
Cecil Woods, minister 
Henry Oakes, minister 
Thomas Shaver, minister 
A.C. Cox, minister 
Marshall KeiJy, minister 
Gordon Robinson, minister 
Bernie Napier, minister 

Obituary Committee: 
J.L. Gore (MS), chairman 
Fred Hanson (Atlantic-Canada) 
Keith Woody (TX) 
Mark Shores (NM) 
Steve Faison (VA) 

Resolutions Committee Report 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 

Convening in Kansas City, Missouri 
July 18-22, 2004 

I. Resolution Concerning Same-Sex Marriage 

WHEREAS, the 1st Amendment of the U.S. Constitution grants citizens the 
freedom to voice support of or opposition to issues that concern us, 
whether they be issues of law, morality, societal, educational or econom­
ic; and 

WHEREAS, our sense of moral obligation and evangelistic responsibility 
forbids us to remain silent on issues so paramount, so eminently threat­
ening to the moral fabric of our nation; and 

WHEREAS, our concern for those who are enslaved to a perverted, self­
destructive, sinful lifestyle, requires this body to proclaim a clear denun­
ciation, and warn of the dangers and consequences of departing from 
God's standard; and 

WHEREAS, the Supreme Judicial Court of Massachusetts has declared 
same-sex marriage to be the policy of the commonwealth; and 

WHEREAS, in California, Oregon, New York and New Mexico, rogue local 
officials have defied their own state marriage laws and married thousands 
of same-sex couples; and 

WHEREAS, as a result of such action, at least 46 states now have same-sex 
married couples who are proactive and implementing a well-funded, mul­
tifaceted and highly coordinated legal assault on traditional marriage; and 

WHEREAS, Article JY, Section 1 of the U.S. Constitution states that "full 
faith and credit shall be given in each state to the ... judicial proceedings 
of every other state" so that the decision by the Supreme Judicial Court of 
Massachusetts could ultimately determine this issue for non-consenting 
states; and 

WHEREAS, traditional marriage between a man and a woman has been the 
norm in every political community for over 5,000 years, with history 
revealing society's demise whenever same-sex relationships become 
prevalent; and 

WHEREAS, President Bush has said .. the union of a man and a woman is 
the most enduring human institution, honored and encouraged in all cul­
tures and by every religious faith," and that "marriage cannot be severed 
from its cultural, religious and natural roots without weakening the good 
influence of society;" and 

WHEREAS, activist judges and courts are moving outside constitutional 
boundaries and definitions, including the definition of marriage, forcing 
this present groundswell of conservative, Judea/Christian opposition; and 
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WHEREAS, same-sex marriage has now been embraced by the Netherlands, 
Belgium and three provinces in Canada, which now allow same-sex mar­
riage; be it therefore 

RESOLVED, that the delegates to the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, convening in Kansas City, Missouri, July 18-22, 2004, reaffirm the 
legal and biblical definition of marriage as occurring only between one 
man and one woman; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that we declare marriage to be sacred and between one who 
is born male and one who is born female, that we adamantly oppose any 
redefinition of marriage, the sanction of marriage counterfeits, such as 
civil unions, or the legalization of same-sex marriage; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that we wholly support the time-proven institution of tradi­
tional marriage as the single best arrangement for raising children and 
forming citizens as opposed to the radical and unacceptable alternative of 
same-sex marriage; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that we support the Defense of Marriage Act of 1996, signed 
into law by former President Clinton, which prevents federal recognition 
of same-sex marriage; allowing states to ignore same-sex licenses from 
outside their borders, and currently is the nation's best defense until a 
Constitutional Amendment can be enacted; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that since the Defense of Marriage Act may itself be struck 
down by activist courts, we press Congress to follow President Bush's 
lead and pass the Federal Marriage Amendment, which reads: Marriage in 
the United States shall consist only of the union of a man and a woman. 
Neither this Constitution, nor the Constitution of any State, shall be con­
strued to require that marriage or the legal incidents thereof be conferred 
upon any union other than the union of a man and a woman (wording as 
of July 12, 2004); and be it further 

RESOLVED, that we adamantly oppose the use of public tax dollars to re­
educate our children in contradiction to standards taught at home and at 
church under the guise of tolerance toward the homosexual lifestyle or 
same-sex marriage; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that we commit ourselves to pray for and support legislative 
and legal efforts to oppose the legalization of same-sex unions; and be it 
further 

RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be sent to our nation's President 
and members of Congress, either by regular or electronic mail; and be it 
further 

RESOLVED, that regardless of how our motives are demonized, we reaffirm 
our commitment to pray for and evangelize those who are enslaved in the 
homosexual culture, expressing our mission: that all people be saved by 
faith in Jesus Christ our Lord, and teaching them to separate from the 
immorality of this present world and its coming judgment. 
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2. Resolution Concerning the War on Terror 

WHEREAS America is in an ongoing war for freedom at home and abroad 

against those who would incite terror, and 
· g our 

~;~~;oen~~:~~~i:~\~~~~~~~a~~ ~~~e~o::C~~~ :~r!:~~~, and 

WHEREAS, God has blessed the Unit~~.i:~sn ~~~:O:~~~~Y~,n::t ~~~ 
knowing from Go.d's ~?rd m t.s~~~t that the battle is wholly the Lord's, 
strength lies not m military m1g , 
and 

. 1 r faith and trust in 
WHEREAS, believing the cause t? be JUSt, we P ~ce ou 
God and in our Savior Jesus Chnst; therefore be It 

68 h N f al Association of Free Will 
RESOLVED, that the delegates ~o the. t . a J•~n 18-22 2004 wlll stand in 
Baptists, meeting in ~s~s dC•ty, ~~~~0~~\e~:r.d in s~pport of our brave 
the gap and make ~p e Ate g: CU: tan and wherever the call of freedom 
soldiers at home, m Iraq, g ants 
may require them, and be it further 

f G d' esence peace protection 
RESOLVED, that we pray f~thfuhlly or o b~J: spiritu~ and ~at erial, and 
and power in the battle agamst t e enemy, 
be it further 

d f ted may the light of 
RESOL~, that as1 thfeCehn~~~~i~! ~~~~~~~an~~ as it has unto ours. 
the glonous gospe o n 

• •tt• f the A I mighty in Public 3. Resolution to Retain Recogm on o 
life 

d His Word continue to seek the removal of 
~~~p:~~l ~u~~d a: reference from our courthouses and govern-
ment buildings, and 

WHEREAS some public officials who oppose such remov~ have lost their 
jobs and f~ced legal retribution themselves, therefore be tt 

. d. . d al . the effort to preserve the 
RESOLVED, that we join sue~ bol~~n t ~~v~ a~~rned our public buildings 
historical Christian foundatiOns . a it further 
from the very inception of our natiOn, and be 

b h. to invoke God's interven­
RESOLVED, that we enc~urage oallur mem ·~{: t~ retain recognition of the 
tion and to do everythmg leg y posst 
Almighty publicly in our land. 
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4. Resolution Concerning Voter Registration 
WHEREAS, statistics show that voter turnout among evangelical 
Christians decreased 40% from 1990-2000, and 

WHEREAS, there was noted a slight increase of 2% Christian voter turnout 
in the 2002 national elections, and 

WHEREAS, Christian organizations that work with Christian elected offi­
cials noted the largest group of conservative Christian congressmen and 
senators were elected in 2002, and 

WHEREAS, there is a noticeable connection between Christians going to 
the polls and Christians getting elected to office; therefore be it 

RESOLVED, that the National Association of Free Will Baptists go on 
record encouraging all our members to register to vote in the upcoming 
elections, and be it further 

RESOLVED, that we encourage our churches to conduct voter education 
and registrations drives, which is a legal privilege of a church body, and 
be it further 

RESOLVED, that we encourage our pastors to do everything possible to 
inform themselves and inform their people concerning national issues 
that directly affect Christian people and values, taking advantage of 
resources available on the internet at www.wallbuilders.com and 
www.operationvote.org, and be it further 

RESOLVED, that we encourage Free Will Baptists to elect officials that rep­
resent biblical values to office. 

5. Resolution of Appreciation 

WHEREAS, the Missouri State Association of Free Will Baptists has hosted 
the 68th session of the National Association of Free Will Baptists in a most 
efficient and gracious manner; therefore be it 

RESOLVED, that the National Association expresses its appreciation to the 
officers and membership of the Missouri State Association by a rising vote 
of thanks. 
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Respectfully submitted, 
Resolutions Committee: 
Tim A. Hall (KY), Chairman 
Wayne Miracle (GA) 
Nathan Ruble (MO) 
David Shores OL) 
Mike Wade (OK) 

The Executive Secretary's Report 
2003 

ffi Some Progress. In a word. that describes the past year in the Executive 0 tee. 

of the more notable areas of progress are: ·b· l·t· s as executive secretary and 
f ·u ith my respons1 1 1 te 

• I have become mor~ arm ar w d leaders across our denomination. 
b~tte: acquain~ed Wlth the me~b~~~ :e:ti~~i:; study for a combined publication. The 

• Slgntficant stnd~ were made ~ d artmental publications have worked hard to 
directors and ~tors of the vru:ous. ~~f o tions and proposals to the Publications . 
deliver a detruled, comprehensive hs . p "II esent its report and recommendatiOns 
Committee. The Publications Committee WI pr 

• 
during this co~vention . . . . mn Book: Rejoice have been productive. 
Efforts to repnnt The Free Wtll Bapllst ~y ublications this worship tool wiU 
Thanks to the assi~tance of Ra~~al~Hb~~serice to churches in the quantity and colors 

chontinu~to ~~::~;~;t::~::.~l ~~ ~no~nced during the_conven_tion. d ed 
t ey ne · 1 teract1 ve sessiOns pro uc 

• The 2003 Leadership Conferen_ce was a success. n The meeting was streamlined and 
valuable information for planrung future ~rograms . 

. al t ings to national departments. 
resulted in substantl cos sav . d S ardship Education for churches on a 

• Discussions are taking place to p~ovl ~ tewd through the combined efforts of Randall 
. 1 M s are being mvestt oate 

reg1onalleve. e~n . d . ~and the Executive Office to make cost-
House, the Free Wt~l Ba~u.st Fou~ ;~~~rials available to all Free Will Baptists. 
effective stewardship trruntn~ an . d doing online registration for the 

~ akino housmg reservations an rf 
• The process or ~ o . . Wh "le neither procedure is pe ect, steps 

national conventiOn contmues to tmprove.l f l·fes for attendees are equitable and 
are being taken to ensure that these annua ac lVI I . 

convenient. . . .fi tl Because of drastic measures taken 
• The financial picture has Improved _sl~nt lt~aen b~·dget avoided a serious deficit and 

th E rive Office admtmstra IV d 
last year, e xecu . financial obligations are being met an 
ended the year in the bla~k. Longstandmgl te The Executive Office staff is to be 
indebtedness is being retued at a reasona~-e_r~ s~irit We anticipate 2004 convention 
commend~ for their hard work and~l~c~ ;~;a artial ~epayment of last year's loan. 
revenues will exceed expe~ses an~ b .d.:ed out of the administrative budget. 
Contact magazine was agam ~eavtl~sui:~a~ Office Building will increase by 10% in 
Rent for departments housed m_ the_ :~ facility Our auditor will give a fuller 
2005 in order to adequately mat~~n e . 
explanation of our financial postuon. 

. we raise Him for His goodness to us! We also. stand 
God has been fruthful, and p . su orted the Executive Office With your 

indebted to those of you who have fruthfully t p~e remain committed to honoring 
fi and words of encouragemen · 

prayers, m~cesth G t Commission and serving Free Will Baptists. 
Christ, fulfilhng e rea 

Humbled to be His servant and yours. 

Keith Burden 
Executive Secretary 
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Statistical Summary 
1989 2003 

Beginning 
Year Membership Baptisms Members Members 

Totals Added Lost 

1989 2 10,364 8,678 12,726 7.511 
1990 2 15,579 7,946 12,537 6,583 
1991 221.533 8,703 12,931 7.240 
1992 227,224 9,283 12,123 7,223 
1993 232, 124 8.828 12,246 6.011 
1994 238,359 7,804 12.393 7,508 
1995 243,244 8.089 12,701 6,232 
1996 249,713 8,436 12,155 5,985 
1997 255,883 8.97 1 11,946 6,660 
1998 261,169 10,169 14,089 6,345 
1999 268.9 13 10,200 13,965 7.715 
2000 275,163 10,549 12,932 5,841 
2001 282.254 8,982 12.252 5,365 
2002 289, 141 8.924 11,329 6,233 
2003 294.237 8.713 10,968 6.904 

Totals 134,275 187,293 99,356 

Tracking The Together Way Totals 

Designated Co-op 

1997 2,775,292.31 3 1.52% 442,453.17 17.75% 
86% 14% 

1998 3,004,636.43 8.26% 608,297.49 37.48% 
83% 17% 

1999 3,066,552.21 2.06% 676,020.36 11. 13% 
82% 18% 

2000 3,289,076.32 7.26% 708,470.54 4.80% 
82% 18% 

2001 3,170,082.84 -3.62% 736,040.45 3.89% 
81% 19% 

2002 3,253,772.40 2.64% 738.744.13 0.37% 
81% 19% 

2003 3,515,300.09 8.04% 770,780.99 4.34% 
82% 18% 
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Ending 
Net Membership 

Increase Totals 

5,215 2 15,579 
5,954 221,533 
5.691 227.224 
4.900 232, 124 
6,235 238,359 
4.885 243,244 
6,469 249,713 
6, 170 255,883 
5,286 261 ,169 
7,744 268,913 
6.250 275,163 
7,091 282,254 
6,887 289,1 41 
5,096 294,237 
4,064 298,301 

87,937 

Total 

3,217,745.48 29.44% 

3,612,933.92 12.28% 

3,742.572.57 3.59% 

3,997,546.86 6.81% 

3,906.123.29 -2.29% 

3,992.5 16.53 2.21% 

4,286,08 1.08 7.35% 

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Financial Statements 

December31, 2003 and 2002 

(With lDdepeodeot Auditon' Report Thereon) 

.rl[l~ Hill, Harper & Associates 
l ~ Cert1fied Public Accountants 

1erry A Hill 
Eme~t R Harper 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Executive Committee of the 
General Board of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists: 

761 Old I hckory Boulevard 
Suite 206 
Brentwood. 1N 37f11.7 
TEL: 615/377 ·3485 
FAX: 615/377·3488 

We have aud1tcd the accompanymg statements of financial position of Executive Office of 
the National Association of Free Will Baptists, lnc. as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, 
and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the 
years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Executive 
Office's management. Our rcsponsib1hty is to express an opinion on these financial 

statements based on our aud1ts. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 111 the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perfonn the audits to 
obtam reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and d1sclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant est1mates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide 

a reasonable basis for our opmion. 

1J1 our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the linanc1al position of Executive Office of the National Association of' Free 
Will Bapt1sts, Inc. as of December 3 I. 2003 and 2002. and changes in net assets and cash 
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accountmg ptinciplcs generally accepted 

in the United States of Amcnca. 

April 26, 2004 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE NATIONAL EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION OF FREE WTI..L BAPTISTS, INC. ASSOCIATION OF FREE WD..L BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Financial Position Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 

December 31, 2003 and 2002 For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 

Contact Special Convention 2003 2002 
Assets Executive 

Totals Totals 
Office Ma~:azine Projects EWlli 

~ 
Revenues: 4,650,922 3,992,517 Current assets: $ The Together Way Plan S 4,650,922 

Cash and cash equivalents 143,707 43,445 Disbursed to agencies 
(4,286,081} (3,636,852) Funds held by Free Will Baptist Foundation and departments (4,286,081) 18,390 18.390 364,841 355,665 Receivables: 364,841 

Hymnal sales 27,892 28,738 Subscriptions to Contact 
66,520 66,520 61,825 Other departmental and agency charges 694 2,807 Magazme 

37,667 37,667 47,936 
Total receivables 28,586 31,545 Sales of hymnals 

9,262 11,872 11,486 
Inventory, at lower of cost (fust-in, first-out method) Gtfts and offerings 2,610 

or market 50,447 74,713 Investment earnings 
933 (532) Prepaid expenses 5,000 9,608 (losses) 460 473 

192,920 
11,000 180,467 191,467 Total current assets 246,130 177,701 Convention fees 

18,408 25,205 24,257 
Other rncome 3,527 718 2,552 

Office equipment and furniture 128,535 128,535 371,438 78,711 40,219 208,137 698,505 693,557 
Total revenues Less accumulated depreciauon 123,462 118,808 Cost of hymnal sales: 104,561 74,713 74,713 

Net office equipment and fumirure 5,073 9,727 
Begmning inventory 

7,704 7,704 11,026 
Other costs 

82,417 82,417 115,587 
$ 251,203 187,428 Total cost of inventol) 

50447 50,447 74,713 Liabilities and Net Assets Less endtng rnventory 
Current Uabllities: 

31,970 31,970 40,874 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 57,386 

Cost of hymnal sales s 46,130 
208,137 666,535 652,683 Note payable 

66,591 24,591 Gras profit 371,438 78,711 8,249 
Convention revenues collected in advance 44,909 
Deferred subscnpllon revenues 30,402 35,215 Expenses of operations: 

336,403 423,317 
Total current liabilities 199,288 105,936 Executive Office 336,403 

97,697 104,042 
Contact~agazine 97,697 

7,758 7,758 16,213 Net assets: Special Projects 
254,254 254,254 251,049_ 

Executive Office Convention Fund 
Net mvestment m equipment 

256,915 217,226 
7,758 254,254 696,112 794,621 5,073 9,727 Total expenses 336,403 97,697 

Contact Magazine 
(80,527) (61,541) 

Special ProJects 
92,745 92,254 Increase (decrease) 

(18,986) 491 (46,117) (29,577) (141 ,938) Convention Fund in net assets 35,035 {222,291} (176,174) 
Total net assets 51,915 81,492 Net assets, 

beginning of year 226,953 (61,541} 92,254 (176, 174) 81,492 223,430 
$ 251.203 187 428 

(80,527) 9p45 (222,291} 51,915 81 492 
Net assets, end of year s 261,988 

See accompanying notes to frnancial statements. See accompanying notes to firu10cial statements. 

2 3 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE NATIONAL EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Functional Expenses Statements of Cash F1ows 

ember 31, 2003 and 2002 Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 

l!m. lQQl 
Executive Contact Special Convention 2003 

Office 
2002 

Expenses of operations: 
Mazazine Projects &rut T!!tlll5 Totals 

Ca~h ll!!»!~ from OJlcratin& A~th:itits 

Salaries $ 126,443 

Decrease in net assets 
s (29,577) (141,938) 

Housing allowance 50,021 
4,418 31,457 162,318 197,354 

Adjustments to reconcile decrease in net assets to 

Employee fringe benefits 
50,021 54,894 

net operating activities : 

and health insurance 40,136 
PayroU taxes 21,082 

1,062 41,198 52,039 
Depreciation and amortization 

4,654 4,657 

Travel 17,892 
338 1,354 23,774 29,092 

Gain on sale of securities 
1,610 

688 
Executive Committee 

29,144 47,824 61,767 (Increase) decrease in: 

and General Board 2,340 

Receivables 
2,959 (14,911) 

Occupancy costs 29,892 
8,054 10,394 16,709 

Inventories 
24,266 29,848 

Depreciation 4,655 
29,892 29,892 

Prepaid expenses 
4,608 22,611 

Legal and audit 3,174 772 50 
4,655 4,657 

Increase (decrease) in: 

Equipment maintenance 85 
1,983 5,979 6,867 

Convention revenues collected in advance 
44,909 

Supplies, office expense 6,098 533 
85 183 

Deferred subsaiption revenues 
(4,813) 10,302 

Printing and promotion 
18 12,320 18,969 17,081 

Accounts payable and accruals 
111256 10 635 

1,981 71,968 
Postage I mail services 1,139 18.230 

32,411 106,360 121,037 

Telephone 
15 499 19,883 19,733 

Net operating activities 58,262 ~77 ,186) 

2,749 23 
Writer's fees 3,635 

260 3,032 4,138 

Auditorium and other 
3,635 3,575 

Calib E!!l!~ from lnnstin& A,tivitil:li 

convention services 

Funds held by Free Will Baptist Foundation 
(3,800) 

Leadership Conference 
120,187 120,187 105,807 

Purchase of property and equipment 
pl881~ 

International Fellowship 240 
222 

Educational Task Force 
240 4,655 

Net investing activities 
~7.681} 

The Together Way Plan 167 
5,591 5,591 9,352 

Auto and copier leases 24,140 
167 317 

Cash Fl!ll!li fr!!m Finantin& Adi~til:ll 

Church directory 
24,140 23,582 

Proceeds from debt 
42,000 32,539 

NominatingComnuttee 
1,265 1,265 2,166 

Repayment of debt 
p,948} 

Publications Committee 
80 

Interest expense 
2,033 2,033 15,002 

Net financing activities 42000 241591 

Other 4 169 1 848 
52 

1,654 6 799 14 470 14,368 
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

100,262 (60,276) 

Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year 
43 445 1031721 

Total expenses $ 336,403 97 697 7 758 254,254 696,112 794,621 
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year 

$ 143,707 43 445 

SupplernenuJ disclosures: 

Interest paid 
s 52 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

4 
5 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2003 and 2002 

The Executive Office Operates under auspices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc 
and is governed by the Executive Committee of the General Board of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists, Inc 

{1) Summary of Si2"nificant Accountin& Policies 
Organization 
The financial statements of the Executive Office have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting. 

The Executive Office follows provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) 
No. 117, "Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations" Under SFAS 1 17, the 
Executive Office is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to three classes of net assets· Unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, 
and permanently restricted net assets. In addition, the Executive Office is required to present a 
statement of cash flows. 

Further, the Executive Office also follows the provisions of SFAS 116, "Accounting for 
Contributions ReceJVed and Contributions Made," which requires contributions received to be 
recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support depending on 
the existence and I or nature of any donor restrictions 

The Executive Office also follows the provisions of an interpretation of SF AS No 116 
(Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made), Interpretation No. 42. 
"Transfers of Assets in Which a Not-for-Profit Organization Acts as an Agent, Trustee, or 
lnt~rmediary" In accordance with Interpretation No 42, funds received from donors which are 
designated by the donor to be transferred to third parties are accounted for as liability 
transactions (see note 6) 

Recoenition of Subscription Revenue from Contact Maeazine 
The amount of subscriptions collected are recorded as a liability in the account deferred 
subscription revenues. Revenues are recognized ratably over the live of the subscription. 

Office Equipment and Furniture 
Office equipment and furniture are stated at cost Depreciation is provided over the useful life of 
the asset using the straight-line method. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs, renewals and 
betterments that do not significantly extend the useful lives of assets are expensed as incurred. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Executive Office considers all cash on hand 
deposits with financial institutions, and debt instruments with an original maturity of three moo~ 
or less to be cash and cash equivalents 

6 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Use of Estimate . 
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates. and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contmgent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts_ of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Compensated Absences . . . 
Employees of the Executive Office are entitled to pai~ vacatiOnS, prud Slck d~ys and pe:sonal 
days off, depending on job classification, length of serv1ce and other facto~. It IS not _pr~c~cable 
to estimate the amount of compensation for future absences, and accor~gly, no li~Ili~ has 
been recorded in the accompanying financial statements. The ExecutJ.ve Office policy ts to 
recognize the cost of compensated absences when actually paid to employees. 

Income Taxes . . . 
The Executive Office is exempt from Federal and state income taxes; accordingly, no provtston 
for income taxes is made in the accounts. 

Presentation of Financial Statements . 
Certain amounts as reported in the 2002 fmancial statements may be reclas-sified to conform to 

current year presentation. 

(2) Inventory of Hvmnals . . 
The Executive Office has an agreement with Sunday School and Church Tra.J.DID~ ~d Randall 
House Publications (Randall House), whereby Randall House warehouses and distnbutes .Free 
Will Baptist hymnals, further, Randall House mvoices the customer, collects funds and remtts to 
the Executive Office $6.32 for each hymnal sold. Randall House war~housed hymnals valued at 
a cost of $46,7 4 7 and $7 4, 713 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

{3) Pension . 
The Executive Office participates in the master pension plan of the Boaz:d of R~trrement ~d 
Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. The plan lS c~~tnbutory and IS 

matched up to a maximum of 5% of compensation. Employees may ?artictpate at date. of 
employment. Pension expenses amounted to $4,697 in 2003 ~d $1?,15? m 2002. The P.e~ston 
plan is a defined contribution plan. Under the pi~, an account 1s m~~run~ for each participant 
and upon retirement the participant can either recetve a lump-sum distribution or purchase one of 
several types of annuity contracts. 

(4) Operatine Leases . 
The Executive Office has entered into non-cancellable lease arrangements relating to a copy 
machine and three automobiles. Total expenses amounted to $24,140 in 2003 and 2002. The 
future minimum payments required are: $19,634 for 2005; and $7,355 for 2006. 

(5) Note Pavable . 
6.5% and 7% unsecured demand notes payable, repayable to Free Will Bapnst Foundation. 

7 
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2005 
ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET 

PROJECTED EXPENSES 

Salaries 
Housing 
Soctal Security 
Retirement 
Employees Insurance 

( Dentai/Disability/Health/Life/T ravel) 
Auditing/Legal 
Automobile Lease (1 Car) 
Copier Lease 
Equipment Maintenance 
Computer Supplies 
Executive Committee 
General Insurance 
lnt'l. Fellowship of FWB Churches 
Leadershtp Conference 
Office Rental 

($1.10 per sq. ft. x 2,491) 
Office Supplies/Expense 
Other 
Postage 
Printing 
Promotion 
Books/Dues/Registrations 
Telephone 
Tog. Way Plan/Stewardship Education 
Travel 
Christmas Bonus (Extra Week's Salary) 
Extra Week Ret. in lieu of 4th week 

vacation beginning 16th year of service 
Melvin Worthington's Retirement Lease Car 
CONTACT Underwriting/New Magazine Support 
Contingency Fund 

Totals 

PROJECTED INCOME 
The Together Way Plan 

Cooperative G1fts 
Des1gnated Gifts 

Other Income 

Totals 

Revised 
2003 2003 2004 2005 

$166,631.99 $138,621.72 $128,347.00 $135,655.07 
49,000.00 49,000.00 49,000.00 44,000.00 
25,020.65 22,094.60 22,091.85 22,344.1 4 
7,922.67 2,882.63 0.00 4,685.58 

40,763.71 36,991.27 34,648.33 33,117.67 

3,500.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,500.00 
11,100.00 11,800.00 11,800.00 5,1 10.32 
8,000.00 7,000.00 7,000.00 7,000.00 
2,000.00 500.00 500.00 1,000.00 
7,000.00 2,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 
5,000.00 1,800.00 2,000.00 2,500.00 
5,500.00 2,800.00 3,000.00 3,200.00 
2,400.00 240.00 500.00 240.00 
3,000.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 

29,892.00 29,892.00 29,892.00 32,881.20 

10,000.00 1,200.00 5,000.00 3,000.00 
4,428.47 1,370.75 2,938.22 3,000.00 
1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,700.00 
3,000.00 750.00 3,000.00 2,500.00 
3,000.00 650.00 1,000.00 1,250.00 
3,000.00 1,250.00 1,500.00 1,700.00 
4,000.00 2,500.00 3,000.00 3,250.00 
1,000.00 500.00 500.00 1,000.00 

24,000.00 17,000.00 19,500.00 22,500.00 
2,003.78 0.00 0.00 1,292.88 
2,336.73 578.97 0.00 702.33 

0.00 6,598.56 13,209.60 0.00 
0.00 23,257.50 26,106.00 30,596.00 
0.00 0.,00 Q..Q_Q 6.510.26 

$425....000.00 $366.4Za_OO S373,533.00 $378.735.45 ----

$350,000.00 $297,478.00 $303,427.00 $353,788.53 
75.000.00 65,300.00 66,606.00 18,349.09 

3,500.00 3.500.00 6.597.83 

$425,000.00 $366,278.00 $373,533.00 $378,735.45 
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SALARY BR!;AKDOWti Revi sed 

2003 

Executive Secretary 

Salaty $31,368.74 

Hous•ng and Uh obes 

Soc>a• Secunty 

Rebremerlt 
Insurance (Health/Dental Ufe) 

OlsabofityiT ravel 
NOTE. Qffoce car furnished. 

Administrative AssistanVCONTACT Editor 

(Or New Magazine Support) 

25.00000 

8.624 4 1 (15 30%) 

40393 

12.750 00 

36367 

78.510 75 

20,827 96 
Satary .. 24.000 00 
Housing and Utilities 

5 30
., ) 

. 6 858.68 (I •o Social Secunty ' 
88 424 Retirement 

Insurance (Health/DentaVUfe) 9•000 00 

157 32 DlsabllltyfT ravel 

6 1,268 84 

Executive Bookkeeper/Accountant 

Satary 32,442 87 

Social Security 2 481 88 (7 65%) 

Reurement 596 76 

Insurance 5.55636 

HealtM.lfe 5,070 72 

Denta 485.64 

O.sabo~ty 

41.077 87 

Edtlorial AsststanVSecretary 

Salary 21.942 93 

Soctal Secunty 1 678 63 (7 65%) 

Retirement 95530 

Insurance 3,618 80 

Dlsablllty/LIIe 20000 

Health 3,242 24 

Dental 176.56 

28.195 66 

Yearbook Coordinator/ 
Regtstration Coordinator 

Salary 27.286 41 

Social Security 2,087 41 (7 65%) 

Retirement 501 76 

Insurance 5 545 12 

Dtsabittty/Uie 196 12 

Health 4 86336 

Dental 48564 

35.420 70 

Part-Time Help 

Sa ary (104 days) 4 752 81 (S9 83 hr) 

Socoat Secunty 363 59 (7 65%) 

5 116 40 

5.684 38 

52205 

136 92 

5.547 46 

52205 
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2004 

$36.94350 

2!>.000 00 
9 4 77 36 (15 30%) 

000 

12.750 00 

42547 

84 59633 

25.491.85 

24,000.00 

7.572 25 (15.30%) 

0 00 

9.00000 

6000 

66 124 10 

35 805 22 
2 739 10 (7 65%) 

000 

6 206 43 

44 75075 

000 

000 

000 

0.00 

000 

30.106.43 

2 303 14 (7 65o/o) 

000 

6.20643 

38 61600 

000 

000 

000 

318 10 

5 252.15 

574.33 

2005 

$41 ,943 50 

20.00000 
947736 (1530"1o) 

000 

7 047 69 

449 47 

78,918 02 

26.481.69 (2%) 

24,000.00 (2o/o) 

7,723 70 (15 30%) 

1.324 08 (5%) 

9,400 00 
46045 

69.389 92 

36.521 32 (2%) 

2.793.88 (7 65%) 

1 82607 (5%) 

9400.00 

2fi.48 

50.756 75 

0.00 

000 

0.00 

000 

000 

30,708 56 (2%) 

2,349.20 (7 65%) 

1,535 43 (5%) 

6 144 58 

40.737 77 

000 

000 

000 





CONVENTION OFFICE CONVENTION OFFICIALS 

Audit Moderator- Tim York $1 ,694.00 
$2,000.00 

Travel 382.00 Convention Manager 21 ,239.92 
Meals 216.00 Payroll Taxes 1,624.85 

(18 meals@ $12.00 each) Retirement 1,062.00 
696.00 Lodging (6 nights @ $1 02.22) Courtesy Car 100.00 

Honorarium 400.00 Equipment Rentals 5,100.00 
Computers, Printers 600.00 

Clerk - Randy Bryant 1,687.00 Copiers (2)/Paper 4,000.00 
Travel 375.00 Tables/Chairs/Trash Cans, etc. 500.00 
Meals 216.00 Office Expense/Supplies 2,000.00 
(18 meals@ $12.00 each) Postage 550.00 Lodging (6 nights@ $102.22) 696.00 Pre-Registration Salaries 9,000.00 400.00 Honorarium Payroll Taxes 700.00 

Pre-Registration Staff 1,500.00 Assistant Moderator - William Smith 912.00 
Payroll Taxes 115.00 

Meals 216.00 Pre-Registration (Supplies, Postage) 5,500.00 (18 meals@ $12.00 each) Registration (Supplies) 3,000.00 Lodging (6 nights @ $1 02.22) 696.00 
Registration Computers/Printers 2,250.00 
Telephone 550.00 Assistant Clerk - Ernie Lewis 912.00 
Two-Way Radios 650.00 Meals 216.00 

TOTAL (18 meals@ $12.00 each) 
696.00 56,941.77 Lodging (6 nights @ $1 02.22) 

CONVENTION PERSONNEL 
TOTAL (Includes applicable tax and parking) 5,205.00 

MEALS 

Debbie Burden (27 meals @ $12.00 each) 324.00 VOLUNTEER STAFF 
Keith Burden (36 meals@ $12.00 each) 432.00 

594.36 Dari Goodfellow (27 meals@ $12.00 each) 324.00 Music Coordinator- Chris Truett 
Melody Hood (30 meals @ $12.00 each) 360.00 Lodging (6 nights @ $99.06) 

511 .10 Dean Jones (36 meals @ $12.00 each) 432.00 News Coordinator - Deanna Hollifield 
Steve Pate (18 meals@ $12.00 each) 216.00 Lodging (5 nights @ $1 02.22) 

511.10 Jack Williams (21 meals @ $12.00 each) 252.00 Organist - Jamie Patrick 
Convention Interns (8) 1.408.00 Lodging (5 nights @ $1 02.22) 

511 .10 Photographer - Danny Conn 
TOTAL 3_.I_48.00 Lodging (5 nights @ $1 02.22) 

Pianist - Jerry Carraway 511 .10 
TRAVEL 

Lodging (5 nights @ $1 02.22) 
Debbie Burden 131.20 Taping - Mike Anderson 693.42 
Keith Burden 131.20 Lodging (7 nights @ $99.06) 
Dari Goodfellow 131.20 Transportation Coordinator- Manuel Lopes 866.95 
Melody Hood 131.20 Lodging (7 nights@ $123.85) 

594.36 Dean Jones 115.20 Usher Coordinator- Billy Walker 
Steve Pate 131.20 Lodging (6 nights @ $99.06) 
Jack Williams 131.20 

4,793.49 Convention Truck (Fuel/Meals/Trailer Rental) 1.500.00 TOTAL (Includes applicable tax and parking) 

TOTAL 2 402.40 HONORARIUMS 

LODGING Bob Farwell 175.00 
Keith Burden Glenn Murray 175.00 0.00 

175.00 Dari Goodfellow (8 nights @ $99.06) 792.48 Kerry Gandy 
175.00 Melody Hood (9 nights @ $99.06) 891.54 Randy Wright 
175.00 Dean Jones 0.00 Jose Rodriguez 
175.00 Steve Pate (5 nights @ $99.06) 564.20 Glen Johnson 
175.00 Allen West Jack Williams (6 nights @ $99.06) 594.36 
175.00 Convention Interns (14 nights@ $102.22) 1.431.08 David Archer 

TOTAL (Includes applicable tax and parking) 4,273.66 l.~WMW 
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ferrv A. Htll 
crrwst R. Harper 

BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
FREE ~L BAPTISTS, INC. 

Financial Statements 

December 31, 2003 and 2002 

(With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon) 

Hill, Harper &t Assodares 
Certified Public Accountants 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Executive Committee of the 
General Board of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc.: 

761 Old HICkory Boul~ard 
Swte206 · 
Brentwood, TN 37027 
TEL: 615/377-3485 
FAX: 615/377-3488 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial posit10n of the Building 
Services fund of the National Assoc1ation of Free Will Baptists. Inc. as of December 31. 
2003 and 2002. and the related statemen!S of activities and changes in net assets, and cash 
flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Fund's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 111 the 
United States of America. Those standards requ1rc that we plan and perform the audtts to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financ1al statements are free of material 
misstatement An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also mcludes assessmg the 
accounting princ1ples used and sigmficant estJmates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall fmancial statement presentation. We believe that our audits prov1de 
a reasonable basis for our opmion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in aJI matenal 
respects, the fmancial position of the Building Services Fund of the National Association 
of Free Wtll Bapt1sts, Inc. as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and changes in net assets 
and cash flows for the years then ended m conformity with accountmg princtples generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

April 23, 2004 
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... 
BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Cash and interest bearing deposits 

Accounts receivable 

Prepa1d expenses 

Property and equ1pment: 
Land and land Improvements 
Bwlding 
Building services equipment 
Departmental workstaoons 

Less accumulated deprectation 

Statements of Financial Position 

December 31, 2003 and 2002 

Assets 

Net property and equipment 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Accounts payable 
Notes payable and long-1erm debt 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Operations 
Net mvestment in property, plant and equ1pment 

Total net assets 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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$ 

s 

54,008 

7,524 

562 

209,671 
1,471,335 

87,529 
77).28 

1,845,763 
865,799 

979,964 

1.042,058 

27,609 
26,103 

53,712 

62,094 
926,252 

988,346 

$=~1 ~,04::2a;,0~5=8 

7,636 

7,609 

562 

209,671 
I ,449,411 

72,068 
65,060 

1,796,210 
790,151 

1,006,059 

1,021,866 

6,144 

6,144 

15,807 
999,915 

1,015,722 

1,021,866 



BUlLDJNG SERVJCES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
FREE WU.,L BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 

For tbe years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 

2003 
Services for 

Revenues: 
Op~rllti!UIS D~nu&m~:ots 

Buildmg rental $ 243,948 
ContnbutJOns, net of campaign expenses 
Reimbursement from departments 434,674 
Other 856 
Net assets released from restrictions 

and departmental reimbursements 434,674 {434,674) 

Net revenues 679,478 
E.tpenses: 

Expenses incurred for departments: 
Employee benefits 283,940 
Stewardship office expense 5,869 
Leadersh1p Conference 19,731 
Property and liability msurance 32,030 
Telephone 17,584 
Mallroom and other 67,885 
Deprec1atJoo 6,431 
Interest expense 1,405 

Building operating expenses: 
434,875 

Salaries 58,846 
PayroU taxes 4,502 
Employee benefits 23,702 
Jamtonal services 27,335 
Depreciation 69,217 
Audit and legal 4,217 
Generalmsuraoce I 7,185 
Supplies and office expense 11,039 
Utilities I telephone 25,331 
Repairs and maintenance 17,062 
Mailroom and other 13,543 

271,979 

TotaJ expenses 706,854 
Decrease In net assets (27,376) 

Net assets at beginning of year 1,015,722 

Net assets at end of year s 988 346 

See accompanying notes to fi.oanciaJ statements. 
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2002 
Total 

Totals Funds 

243,948 243,948 
100 

434,674 444,871 
856 1,808 

679,478 690,727 

283,940 274,133 
5,869 5,936 

19,731 24,773 
32,030 32,456 
17,584 19,894 
67.885 73,756 
6,431 9,793 
1,405 1,101 

434,875 441,842 

58,846 55,595 
4,502 4,253 

23,702 23,914 
27,335 25,802 
69,217 65,028 
4,217 5,953 

17,185 16,073 
1 I ,039 10,130 
25,331 26,699 
17,062 40,306 
13,543 18,076 

271,979 291,829 

706,854 733,671 

(27,376) (42,944) 

1,015,722 1,058,666 

988,346 1,015,722 

BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Statements of Cash F1ows 

Years ended December 31,2003 and 2002 

Cash Eows from Onerating Activities 
Decrease in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile decrease in net assets to 

net operating activities : 

Depreciation and amortization 
Gain on sale of securities 

(Increase) decrease in: 
Receivables 
Prepaid expenses 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable and accroals 

Net operating activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Proceeds from sale of securities 
Purchase of property and equipment 

Net investing activities 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Proceeds from debt 
Repayment of debt 

Net financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year 

Supplemental disclosures: 

Interest paid 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 
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4 

s 

$ 

(27;376) 

75,648 

85 

27,609 

75 966 

(42,944) 

74,821 
(689) 

7,357 
(562) 

37 983 

10,512 
(49,553) __ (L46.::..!:,)::...:C)..:.l.0) 

( 4 9,5 53) __ {l:,3 5::.!., 8:;:.:;1..:.<8) 

33,200 
(13,240) (10,636) 

19,960 (10,636) 

46,373 (8,471) 
7,635 16 106 

54 008 7 635 

$.==~1~4=05= ====1~1=0=1 



BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2003 and 2002 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
Organization 

The !und operates under the auspices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 
and IS ~ovemed b~ a .management committee which is chaired by the Executive Secretary of 
the Na~onal Assoctat:JOn of Free Will Baptists, Inc. The management committee is composed 
of the directors of the Departments which occupy the National Offices Facility. 

Basis of Presentation 

The financial statements of the Board have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

~.e Bo~d adheres to the provisions of Statement of Financial Standards (SF AS) No. 117 
Fmanc1al Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations". Under SFAS No. 117 the Board is 

required to report information regarding its financial position and activities acc;rding to three 
clas~es of net assets: .unrestricted n~t .assets; temporarily restricted net assets; and permanently 
rest:ncted net assets, 1f any. In addibon, the Board is required to present a statement of cash 
flows. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs, 
renewals, and betterments that do not significantly extend the useful lives of assets are 
expensed as incurred. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method. 

Income Taxes 

The B.oard is exempt from federal and state income taxes; accordingly, no provision for income 
taxes 1s made in the accounts. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

F~r purpos~s o~th~ st~tements of cash flows, the Company considers all cash on hand, deposits 
With financtal mst1tutwns, and debt instruments with an original maturity of three months or 
less to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Use of Estimates 

The pr~paration of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
ass~ptJons that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contJngent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of ~evenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estunates. 

Changes in Presentation 

Certain amounts in the prior period financial statements may have been reclassified to conform 
to current presentation. 
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BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 

FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. continued 

Compensated Absences nal da ff 
Employees of the Fund are entitled to paid vacation, paid sick days and P~? '[5 o • 
depending on job classifications, length of service and other fac~ors. It 1~ ~~ractlcal t~ 
estimate the amount of compensation for future absences, and accordingly, no liabili~ bas bee 
recorded in the accompanying financial statements. The Fund's policy is to recogruze the cost 
of compensated absences when actually paid to employees. 

(2) Notes Payable and Long-term Debt . . . . 
Summary of notes payable and long term-debt payable to Free Wtll Baphst FoundatiOn IS as 

follows: 

8.5% installment note secured by telephone system, which $ 
required monthly payments of $903 including principal 
and interest matured during 2003. 

6.5% unsecured installment note, which requires monthly 
payments of$800 including principal and interest with 
final payment due December 2005. 

6.5% installment note secured by truck, which requires 
monthly payments of $282 including principal and 
interest with final payment due Sept 2006. 

Total notes payable and long-term debt 

2003 

17,838 

8,264 

26,102 

11,629 Less current portion of notes payable and long-term debt 

Long-term debt $ __ 1_4,-.47_3_ 

2002 

6,144 

6,144 

6,144 

Maturities of notes payable and long-term debt follows: $12,270 in 2005; $2,203 in 2006. 

(3) Pension 
The Fund participates in the master pension plan of the Boar? of Re~irement an~ Insurance of 
the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. The plan 1s cont:nbutory and ts matched up 
to a maximum of 5% of compensation. Employees may participate at date of employment. 
Pension expense amounted to $2,540 and $2,442 for the y~s .ended December 31, 2003 and 
2002, respectively. The pension plan is a defined con~butlon plan. U~~er the pi~ an 
account is maintained for each participant and upon ret:rrement the part1c1pant can e1ther 
receive a lump-sum distribution or purchase several types of annuity contracts. 

(4) Operating Leases . . . . 
The Fund has entered into a noncancelable lease arrangement relatJng to ~aiimg eqwpm~t. 
Total rent expense amounted to $5,057. The future minimum payments required are: $5,688 m 
2004; $5,688 in 2005; and $2,844 in 2007. 
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(5) Rental Income 

BUILDING SERVICES FUND OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
FREE WILL BAPTISTS, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

The Fund rents office space of the National Office Building located in Antioch Tennessee to 
various denominational agencies. The lease covers the period from September 1 through 
August 31 of each year, to be renegotiated and renewed by mutual agreement from year to year. 
Each lease agreement is cancelable by either party with a 90 day written notice. Rental income 
amounted to $248,948 for 2003 and 2002, and is expected to remain $248,948 in 2004. The 
lease agreement has been renegotiated, effective January 1, 2005 rents will be increased 10%. 
This rental increase will result in rental income for 2005 to approximate $274,000. 
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2005 
Projected 

Building Services Budget 

PROJECTED INCOME 

F t (20 329 @ $1 .1 o = $20,329.00 mo.) Square oo age • 

Total Income 

PROJECTED EXPENSES 

Audit & Legal 
General Supplies 
Insurance (Employee) 
Insurance (Plant) 
Janitorial Services 
Janrtonal Supplies 
Mail Room 
Mail Truck 
General Maintenance/Contingency Fund 
Network Expense 
Payroll Taxes (Employer's S.S.) 
Postage Meter/UPS 
Retirement 
Salanes 
Telephone 
Utilities 
Christmas Bonus/Extra Week's Salary 
Debt Retirement (FWB Foundation Loan) 
Other 

Total Expenses 
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2003 

~24~.94~WO 

~24~.94~WO 

$7,000.00 
5,500.00 

21 ,299.71 
15,000.00 
30,000.00 

3,500.00 
12,000.00 
5,500.00 

28,469.58 
8,000.00 
4,273.68 
1,000.00 
2,539.94 

54,888.19 
5,000 .00 

25,000.00 
976.90 

9,000.00 
5,000.00 

$243.948.00 

2004 

$243,948.00 

$243,948.00 

$7,500.00 
5,500.00 

22,061 .71 
18,000.00 
30,000.00 
3,500.00 
8,500.00 
6,500.00 

24,636.85 
8,000.00 
4,467.21 

750.00 
2,616.15 

58,394.87 
3,000.00 

27,500.00 
1,015.98 
9,005.23 
3,000.00 

$243.948.00 

2005 

$268,342.80 

$268,342.80 

$6,500.00 
4,500.00 

19.267.18 
20,000.00 
30,000.00 

3.500 00 
9,500.00 
6,500.00 

47,043.98 
10,000.00 
4,556.45 

500.00 
2,668.46 

59,561 .32 
3,000.00 

27,500.00 
1,145.41 
9.600.00 
3,000.00 

$268.342.8Q 



BUILDING SERVICES 
SAlARY BREAKDOWN 

Ma menance Superonlendenv 
Ma Room Supervosor 

Salaty 
Social Secumy 

Insurance (Heath Dental L te) 
Oosaboloty 
ReHemem 

ReceplionosVAssostant Bookkeeper 
Salary 
Socoal Secunty 
Insurance 
Dental 
Health!Uie 

Disability 
Retorement 

Part-tome Worker 

Salary 
Socoal Secunty 

2003 

$26,676 42 (4%) 
2,040. 75 (7 .65%) 

12.000.00 
157.39 

1 .333.8? (5%) 

42.208.38 

24,122 49 (4%) 
1.845.37 (7.65,..) 
9 .000.00 

142.32 
1,206 12 (5%) 

36,316.30 

52 days 
4,089 28 (4"foo9.83 hr.) 

312.83 (7.65%) 

4.402.11 

2004 

$27.476 71 (3"to) 

2,101.97 (7.65%) 
12,750 00 

163 69 
1.373 84 (5%) 

43.866 21 

24.846 16 (3%) 
1 ,900, 73 (7.65%) 
9.000 00 

148.02 
1.242 3 t (5%) 

37,137 22 

75 days 
6.072 00 (3"1.110 12,.. I 
~(765%) 

6.536 51 
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313.24 
5,389 07 

2005 

$28.026.24 (2%) 

2,144 01 (7.65%) 
13.250 00 

165.35 
1.4Q1 31 (5%) 

44,986 91 

25,343.08 (~.) 

1.938. 75 (7.65%) 
5,702 31 

149.52 
t .267.15 (5%) 

34.400.81 

75days 
6 192.00 (2%.-10 32 h<'.) 

473.69 (7.65%) 

6.665.69 

Part ol The A~)()Ctauon 
of free Will Bapust~ 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

It was really good to get back into positive returns for 2003. 

Returns are strong! y in the black. 

1 year 
3 years 
5 years 
10 years 
Life Plan 

19.079% 
1.483% 
5.485% 
8.640% 
8.347% 

Contributions were up $1.965,538 from $1.759,557 for 2002. 

Enrollments increased over prior year by 72. Although that is an increase of 
only 4, it is very positive in light of 2002's loss in investments. New 
enrollments are at 27 through March of this year. That is ahead of our pace 

for most years. 

Roll-overffransfers INTO our plan i on a pace for $364,000 for a 12-month 
period. This is a tremendou.;; plu!)! 

Office operations continue to funct ion efficiently. Actual cost of operations 
for 2003 was only $342,709: down over $41,000 from 1992, while 
managing almost three times the assets. 

I have announced to the Retirement Board that I would be retiring effective July 3 1. 
2005 to devote full time to the Foundation for my final years of service. 
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SYNOPSIS OF MINUTES 
FREE WILL BAPTIST BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

Annual meeting- April 29-30, 2003. Absent: Roger Harwell and Jack Ward 

T~e Board reviewed the unqualified audit report and proposed a budget for 2004. 
Expenence of our money managers was reviewed and an investment consultin(} fmn was 
. . 0 mtervJewed. 

Semi-annual meeting- December 8, 2003. Absent: Ron Barber. 

All business was routine with the exception of a discussion on the wisdom of creating 
a free-slanding board for the Foundation. 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 

FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

December 31, 2003 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Table of Contents 

Page 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Financial Statements 

••··················••·······•··· 0 0 0 0 0 •••••••• 0 0 •••••• 0 0 0 ••• • •• 0 •••••••••••• 

Statements of Financial Position · ····· · ·· ····· ·· ··· ····· ······· ····· ······ ·· ·· ·· · ·· ······ ···· ...... . 

1 

2 

d Ch · N t Assets · ············ 3·4 Statements of Activities an anges m e .............. .. ..... . 

1 .............. .................. 5-6 Statements of Cash F ows · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · ·· ·· 

Notes to Financial Statements ··········· .. ····· .......... ········· ······ ··· ······ .............. . 7-13 

A- 103 



....,..,. 
~RAY WMfiEN. CH 
WIWAiollt. 091NEY. CPA 
LARin' llii\.UW4UAC£. CPA 
JOEL D. CClU.OW. ..Ill., CH 
JNtf:f w. La""' 

The Board of Directors 

WARREN. DENNEY & WALLACE 
CERI*IED ~~ANTS 

DIE 'WOI.IIImEI! 8t.OG. 
84KIE 100 

a.t.9 PWS PARI( 8tVD. 
NA&Mu£. lll17l1.7·10111 

1$1.5) ~100 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Board of Retirement and Insurance of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 

...... bJ 0 

_,.ERICAIIINS1l11JTEOF 
CEll IF lEO PIJBLiC AOCOIIMTAi(JS 

TElliNESSU SOCifTY Of 
CEiiTI'l£0 I'UilUc IIOCOUNTAH)S 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the Board of Retirement 
and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists (the "Board") as of December 31, 2003 
and 2002, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years 
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility oC the Board's managements. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain 
reasonable assurance a bout whether the financial sta tements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit a..l.so includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates rnade by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion. the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptista as of December 31, 2003 and 2002. and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the 
years then ended in conformity with accounting prindples generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

March 2, 2004 

A· 104 

ASSETS 

Operating Assets . 
C h d cash equivalents . 

as a~ d 'th th Free Will Baptist FoundatlOn Funds mveste WI e 
Accounts receivable 

Total operating assets 

Retirement Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents . t 
Investment in marketable securities and mstrumen s, 
at fair market value - Note 3 . 

d . t nt income recetvable 
Accrue mves me. h F Will Baptist Foundation Funds invested w1th t e ree 
Notes receivable, net of allowance for doubtful 

accounts - Note 2 
Total retirement assets 

Office Furniture. Equipment and Aut:o~obile~otes 1 & 4 
at cost, net of accumulated depreclatlon 

Total assets 

See accountants' report and accompanying notes 
to the financial statements. _
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$ 

December 31. 
2003 2002 

50,825 
2.450 

53.275 

1,700,392 

22,891,417 
115,854 

837.400 
25.545.063 

23.827 

$ 11,192 
30,140 

926 
42.258 

1.139,746 

19,717,535 
107,961 

4,750 

956.665 
21.926,657 

33.223 

$25.622,165 $22,002, 138 
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LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS 

Liabilities 
Annuities payable - Note 6 
Note payable to Free Will Baptist Founda tion - Note 8 
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted: 
Operations : 
Operating funds 
Designated for future asset purchases 
Net invested in equipment 

Operating net assets 

Retirement accounts: 
Net assets available for participants 
Designated as reserve funds (deficit) 
Designated as annuity reserve funds 

Retirement net assets 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 
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December 31. 
2003 2002 

( 

$ 2,907,512 

16.239 
2.923.751 

8,882) 
50,825 
23.827 
65.770 

22,492,700 
124,944 

15.000 
22.632.644 

22.698.414 

$25.622. 165 

$ 2,938,663 
250,000 

13.967 
3.202.630 

2,997 
30,140 
33.223 
66.360 

18,861,413 
( 141,265) 

13.000 
18.733.148 

18,799.508 

$22.002. 138 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND lNSURANLC:~lSTS 
E NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WIL 

S rt, Rrvenue and Other AddJ!.tons yppo . . ts 
Contributiona from partlopan 

Investment mcome: . 
Goms of investment portfolio: 

Net realized gains (losses) 
Net unrealized gains (losses) 

Lnterest and dividends from 
mvestments (nel of investment fees) 

Total investment income (loss) 

1 ed from mterest beanng not.es' ncome earn 
lnterest income 
Loan orlginabon fees earned . 

Total inoome earned from mterest 
and loan origination fees 

Forfeitures and late charges 
GUts 
Reimbursement from Free Will 
Bapltst Foundation 

Mu><"RIIaneous income 
Total other income 
Total additions (losses) 

Al!ocat1on for opemtions . 
Net additions Ooss) after allocauon 

for operat1ons 

2ooa 
Retrrement 
...A~liDli Oocmttons 

$1,965,638 $ 

453,012 
2.!11fl.2flll 
3,329,281 

518,009 
3.847,380 

7\,747 

11.1~7 

283 
67,759 

1.121 
21!a !ill.480 

6,884,948 69,4!!0 

21a.m> 213229 

_Mll.Wl IH2.19.l! 

See accountants' report and accompa nying notes 
to the financial statements. 
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2002 
Retirement 

Total Accounts Ooomtjons 

$1,965,538 $1,759,557 $ 

453,012 ( 370,986) 
2.azfl,26l! ( ll.!IH,563) 
3,329,28 1 ( 2, 785,549) 

p1M99 !2fl2,1 !!7 
3,841,3!!0 ( 2,223,362) 

71,747 89.128 
4 163 

n.m 93,291 

283 233 
67.759 68,596 

7,500 
P21 :i 153 

flll.1fla 233 81.24l! 
5,954.428 ( 370,281) 8\,249 

( 254,285) 254,285 

li.l!f!1 .~2ll ( §24,566) 33Ma1 

I2!J&I 

U, 71i1MI:i 7 

( 370,986) 
( 2.!1 U.:ifl3) 
( 2,785,549) 

li!i2. 1!l7 
( 2.223,362) 

89,128 
i.lfla 

lla-291 

233 
68.596 

7,500 
~ lliil 

____l!US.Z 
( 289.032) 

( 2!!!!.232> 



BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 
Fo.r the Years Ending December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Rt>tirement 
AccouniL 

1:<&121'~§ 11nd Q!hl![ .Q~dyctiQD& 
W1lhdrawala by participant$ 

$ 1.274,766 Transfers to annYlbes by paruc1panta 297,296 
Insurance deductions from pan1opant's accounts 41,212 
Income allocated to annuitant obligations 86,006 Salaries 
Huusing 
f'nnge benefita 
Travel and promouonaJ 
Office supplies and expense 
Occupancy 
Iloard membel'll expense 
Legal and auditing 
Ocprcoauon 
M isceUaneoua 

12,!!~3 Total deduct•ons 
l 712,223 

I ncrea~ (decrease) in net assets 3,899,496 ( 

NeLaasets at beg1nning of year 
18,733,14!! 

Net assets at end of year 
~~ I 

See accountants' report and accompanying notes 
to the financial statements. 

:1003 

Ooeranona 

$ 

80,516 
55,966 
55,331 
19,9.JI 
41,455 
51,467 
10,991 
16,192 
9,396 
ll.!H I 

343,2l!ll 

590) 

66360 

~.170 

-4-
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2QQ2 
Retirement 

Total Accounts OperationR 

$ 1,274.766 s 1.545.206 s 
297,296 1.047.674 
41,212 42,705 
86,006 90,959 
80.516 76.926 
55,966 53.813 
55,331 57,510 
19.941 28.448 
41,455 37,959 
51,467 48.409 
10.994 10,577 
16.192 9.582 
9,396 16,922 
1-l,~ 2,993 I !214 2,055,522 2,729,537 - 34Ll6Q 

3,898,906 3,354,103) ( 5,626) 

18,799.508 22,087,251 71,986 

122 ii~ 414 IU!iila.lia ~ 

. Total 

s 1,5-15,206 
1.047,674 

42,705 
90,959 
76,926 
53,813 
57,510 
28,448 
37,959 
48,409 
10,577 
9,582 

16,922 
~.007 

3,070,697 

( 3,359,729) 

...22,159,237 

s1a z~ :ia~ 

BOARD OF RETffiEMENT AND INSUMNC:B&IsTS 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL 

Statements of Cash Flows , 
For the Years Endipg December 31. 2003 and 2002 

__________ 2~00~3L----------­
Rcllrt>ment 
Accounts Opcrat1ons To\§! 

Caab IJQw:l fmm R&M:rJtlniiWYili~l 
Cash re<>ei,·.,d from: $ 
Contributions from participants and employers 1.965.538 $ $ 1.966.538 

Cllfts . d 
1 lnoome earned from mtere.sl an oan 

ongmation fees 
Investment inoomc 
Forfeitures and law cha.rges 
Rellllbursement from flee Wtl! 

Baptist Fou ndat•on 
Mtscellaneous 1ncome 

Cash p1ud for: 
Supplies and employees 
Withdrawal of funds by _pan•c•panta 
Income alloca~ 10 anrutant obhgallons 

Net cash prov1ded (used) by 
opera tine activities 

~1lb ll2!!a from an~ataD& actiriti~a 
l'urdlues of office furrunne and eqwpment 
lnveotments: 
Purchases of investment secunut's 
Funda invested w1lh Free Will 
Baptist Foundation 

Proceeds from aalc of to vestment 
oecunDCS 

Notes receJVa ble 
New loans made 
CoUect.ion of notes receivable 

Net cash provided (used) 
by UlVCStiDg &CtiVIliCS 

Sec accountants' reoort and accompanytng not~:s 
l!Uhe finanoa! statements. 

67.759 67,759 

71,747 71,747 
510,206 &10.206 

283 283 

197 197 

( 54,094) 331.692) ( 385.786) 
( 1,572.062) ( 1.572.062) 
( !l§,006) L__ 86,006) 

!!35,612 (._263,736} 1i1i.S76 

( 25.377. 795) ( 25.377,795) 

4,750 20,685) 15,935) 

25,533,194 25.533,194 

259,453) ( 259,453) 
378,11!! 318,118 

21!!.414 ( gQ,685) 258 729 
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Rt>urement 
Accounts 

$ 1,759,557 

89,128 
576,194 

233 

( 51,913) 
( 2.592,880) 
( 90,95!!) 

( 310,640) 

( 22,323,900) 

( 4,750) 

22.265.308 

( 430,404) 
405,068 

( !!!!.lila> 

2002 

Opcrutions Total 

$ S L7C>9,557 
68,596 68,596 

89.128 
576,194 

233 

11,500 ll.500 
227 227 

( 324,040) ( 375,953} 
( 2,592.880} 
( liQ l!!i~) 

2:!i;1,11D ( !i!.i~.af!1) 

( 14,741) 14,741) 

( 22.323,900) 

16,084) ( 20,834) 

22.265,308 

( 430,404) 
~Q§,068 

( 30,!!25) ( 119,503) 



BOARD OF RETIREMENT N 
THE NATIONALASijQ A JUNSURINCE OF 

SOCIAT N OF ~REE W UJ BAPTISTS 
, Statement of Cash Flow; (continued) 

for the Years Ended December 31. 2003 and 2002 

2003 
2002 RetiremenL 

Retiremem Accounts Ooern !loll§ _ Total Accounts Ooerations Caab (JQ~~ ft2m fioansc&D& ~~·xuis= Total 

Allocation for operat1ona 
Net additions to {withdrawals from) annuities 
payable 

Loan Proeeeds from Foundation 
Repayment of loan from Foundation 

Net cash provided (used) 
by financing activities 

Net mcrease (decrease) m cash 

Cash and cash eQUivalents at bcgtnrung of year 

Cash and cash equ iValents of end of yelll' 

Reconghatioo of ID'mRAA Cdeqrase) m net aarwts 
t.o CAfth flows from operatmg acti;iw 

1 ncrease {decrease) in net assets 
Adjustments to reoonc11t increase (decrease) 

In not ~t.a to net cash proV1ded (used) by 
operatmg activities: 

Oeprectatlon and amortization 
Allocatton for operations 
Loss {gains) on investment transactions 
De.:re (' · ase Increase) tn accrued investment 

mcomt> 

Decrease (increa..ce) m account.a rece1vabll' 
Decrease (Increase) in prepaid expenses 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
accrued expeilSC$ and other 

Decrease Ill loan OrtgtnaLion fe.,s 
ToLaJ Adjustments 

Net ca~h proV1ded (used) by 
operanng activ1ue8 

See acppunta t.s' .n RDQn and •rmmoanytng notts 
to the finn acral stargments. 

($ 273,229) $ 273,229 s ($ 254,285) s 254,286 
( 31,161) ( 31.151) 976,270 

( 250.000! 250,000 
L 250.00Ql 

(_ 5&4,380) 273.229 ( 281.151) 971.985 _ 254.285 
560.646 11.192) 549,454 572,667 ( 20,257) 

1.139.746 I L!92 1.150938 567,07!! 31.449 
1.l.2Q!l,392 ~ .Q. s • ma~ $ L!39,74§ s 1 J.] 92 

U-89!1,496 c .... s _ __,.s!i!90!U> l.Ml!8,906 <S3,354,103> 
($ li.626) 

273,229 
{ 3,329.281) 

{ 7,893) 
( 

9,396 
273.229) 

1,524) 

61 2,211 

( 3,063,884) (- 263,116) 

·6-
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9,396 
254,285 

( 3,329,281) 2,785,549 

( 7,893) 14,007 
( 1,524) 

2.272 ( 6,215) 
-- ( 4.163) 
( 3,327,030) 3,043.~_63 

( 

16,922 
254,285) 

926) 
2,004 

( 1.806) 

{ 238.091) 

($ 213.71 7) 

$ 

976,270 
250,000 

1.226.270 

552,410 

5!!8,528 

SLI5Q,W 

{S3,359, 729) 

16,922 

2,785,549 

14,007 
( 926) 

2,004 

( 8,021) 
( U§ID 

2,805,372 

{$ 554,35V 

Note-1 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WUJ, BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

Organization 

The Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists (the "Board") is operated under the auspices of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists, Inc. The purpose of the Board is to maintain contributory retirement 
accounts for licensed or ordained ministers and lay employees of churches, schools and 
denominational agencies of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. The 
Board maintains this retirement pension plan pursuant to Section 403(b) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, which is an exempt church plan under the provisions of the code. 

Accrual basis and financial statement presentation 

The financial statements of the Board have been prepared on the accrual basts of 
accounting. 

The Board classifies its revenue, expenses, gains, and losses into three classes of 
net assets based on the existence of absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Net assets of 
the Board and changes therein are classified as follows: 

Unrestricted net assets- Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations. 

Temporarily restricted net assets- Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that may or will be met either by actions of the Board and/or the 
passage of time. 

Permanently restricted net assets- Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that are maintained permanently by the Board. Generally, the 
donors of these assets permit the Board to use all or part of the income earned 
on the related investments for general or specific purposes. 

The amount for each of these classes of net assets is presented in the statements 
of financial position, and the amount of change in each class of net assets is displayed in 
the statements of activities and changes in net assets. The Board had no temporarily or 
permanently restricted net assets at December 31, 2003 and 2002. 

Further, contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily 
restricted, or permanently restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature 
of any donor restrictions. 
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Note - 1 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Summary of significant accounting policies- (continued) 

Ret1rement Pension Plan 

Under the terms of the retirement pension plan which the Board maintains, 
contributions may be made to the Plan through employer contributiOns, salary reduction 
contributions, voluntary employee contributions and general contributions. The 
participant may elect from two plan types. Plan 1 requires employer contributions for 
such employee to be at least 5% of the employee's compensations. Plan 2 requires the 
total of employer contributions, salary reduction and voluntary employee contributions 
to be at least 3% of the employee's compensation. A third plan exists that members may 
enter initially upon employment or when they lose eligibility to participate in Plan 1 or 
2. Minimum contributions required by this plan are $10 per month and can be made by 
any of the plan's contribution means. Total employer contributions and salary reduction 
contributions that may be made for a participant in any year shall not exceed the limits 
imposed by IRS Code Sections 402(g), 403(b) and 415. 

Each participant's account is credited with contributions made by and on behalf 
of the participant. Allocations of Plan earnings are based on account balances and the 
plan elections made by each participant, as defined in the Plan, on the last day of each 
adjustment period. The benefit to which a participant is entitled is the benefit that can 
be provided from the participant's account. 

On retirement, death or disability, participants receive payments of their 
individual vested account balances based on options and provisions as defined in the 
Plan. Benefits are recorded when paid. 

Although it has not expressed any intent to do so, the Board has the right under 
the Plan with the approval of the Association, to terminate the Plan. In the event of 
Plan termination, participants will become 100% vested in their accounts. 

Investments 

Investments in marketable securities are reported at fair value with gains and 
losses included in the statement of activities and changes in net assets. Investments in 
marketable securities are valued at current quoted or estimated market value. Non· 
marketable investments are carried at cost unless a permanent loss of value has 
occurred. 

Office furniture. equipment and automobiles 

Office furniture, equipment and automobiles are recorded at cost. Depreciation 
is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective 
assets, generally 6 years for automobiles and 5- 10 years for furniture and equipment. 
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Note- 1 

Note-2 

ffiEMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
BOTi(IL<ftiR~TC TION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

THE NAT ON A SO IA 
Notes to Financial Statements 
n;;mber 31. 2003 and 2002 

Summary of significant. accounting policies- (continued) 

Income taxes . 
. 1 ovision for mcome 

B 
dis exempt from income taxes; ~ccordmg y, no pr 

The oar . finane1al statements. 
taxes has been made in the accompanytng 

Cash and cash equivalents 
f b flows the Board considers all cash on 

For purposes of the statem~nts o cdahis. hl 1.' 'd debt instruments with an 
'a}' tit t10ns an g y lqUl 

hand, deposits in financl ms hu l to be cash and cash eqwvalents. 
original maturity of three mont s or ess 

I..oan origination fees 
. . . o ~ r each new church loan is charge~ to . 

A one-time onglnatlon fee for 4 ro o h lif f the loan. These loan orlgmatlOn 
. fees throughout t e e o 

borrowers to cover service the life of the related loan. 
fees are amortized t.o revenue over 

· f fin cial statements 
!)ses of estimates in the preparation o an 

. . mana ement in certain areas of the 
Judgment and estimation lS exercised by_ nifi gnt areas include the collectibility 

. 1 tate ents The more s1g ca 
preparation of financ18 s m. . . . value of investments, and the recovery 
of notes receivable, the determmatlOn ofdfarr t biles Management believes that such 

. 'pment an au omo · . 
Period for office furruture, equl bl mptions and that each estunates are 

. be b ed on reasons e assu 
estimates have en als ld differ from those estimates. 
adequate. Actual resu ts cou 

Notes receivable 

Following is a summary of notes receivable: 2003 2002 

b ti ent 906 Participant notes (net) secured Y re rem . $ 1,545 $ 
account balances 1 ted 

Churches and agency notes secured by re a 86f2,85Q 98f2,7!2li! 
real property 867,400 986,665 

( 30,000) ( ;lQ,OOQ) 
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 

956~ i ~a1.~~ $ 

. f 3 0% to 11.25% and mature at various 
The notes bear interest at vanous rates rom . o 
dates from 2004 through 2012. 
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Note- 3 

BOARD OF RETfREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Investments in marketable securities and instruments 

Investments: 
Certificate of deposit 
Mutual funds 
Common stocks 
U.S. Government issues 
Corporate bonds 
Real estate trust 

Market 
Value 

$ 43,616 $ 
3,914,312 
8,472,582 
8,873,654 
1,337,248 

250.005 

2003 

Cost 

40,000 
3,937,511 
8,072,067 
8,783,981 
1,393,837 

250.005 

(Depreciation) 
Appreciation 

$ 3,616 
( 23,199) 

400,515 
89,673 

( 56,589) 

Total Investments $_22.891.411 $22A17AQ! $ 414,016 

For 2003, total investment gain relating to marketable securities and 
mst~ments amou~~ed to $3,84 7,380 and consisted of investment gains of 83,329,281 
~nd mterest and diVIdends of $518,099 {net of investment fees of $137,181). Investment 
mcome (loss) represented yields of 18.06% and 17.23% based on the average market 
value and average cost of such investments for 2003. 

Investments: 
Certificate of deposit 
Mutual funds 
Common stocks 
U.S. Government issues 
Corporate bonds 
Real estate trust 

Total Investments 

$ 

Market 
Value 

461,106 $ 
2,410,745 
9,699,042 
5,970,511 

926,126 
250,005 

2002 

Cost 

450,000 
3,152,919 

11,733,393 
5,503,345 
1,084,349 

250.005 

(Depreciation) 
Appreciation 

$ 11,106 
( 742,174) 
( 2,034,351) 

467,166 
( 158,223) 

$ 19,7~ $22.174.011 ~) 

. For 2002, total investment loss relating to marketable securities and 
mst~uments amou~t:ed to $2,223,362 and consisted of mvestment losses of $2,785,549 
~nd mterest and diVIdends of $562,187 (net of investment fees of $149,085). Investment 
mcome (loss) represented yields of (10.55%) and (9.96%) based on the average market 
value and average cost of such investments for 2002. 
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Note- 4 

Note- 5 

!\ote- 6 

Note-7 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WlLL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31.2003 and 2002 

Office furniture. equipment and automobiles 

A summary of office furniture, equipment and automobiles is as foUows: 

Office furniture and fixtures 
Compuler equipment 
Automobiles 

Accumulated depreciation 

Lease and occupancy expense 

$ 

( 

$ 

2003 

39,319 
21,767 
54 174 

115,260 
91.433) 
23.827 

2002 

$ 39,319 
44,230 
!24,174 

137,723 
( 1Q4,2QQ) 
~ aa.~2a 

Under the terms of a lease agreement wtth an affiliate, the Board leases 3,933 
feet of office and storage space for $1.00 per square foot per month. In addition. the 
Board pays additional expenses related to their share of operating and maintenance 
costs of the building. Total lease payments, additional operating, and maintenance costs 
related to the lease were $51,467 and $48,409 for the years ended December 31, 2003 
and 2002, respectively. 

Annuities Payable 

Upon attaining retirement age, the retiree has the option. among others, to 
convert his participant account into an annuity to provide retirement benefits over his 
remaining life. The periodic benefit is calculated based on mortality tables considering 
life expectancy. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the recorded liability amounted to 
$2,907,512 and $2,938,663. The actuary has determined that the current periodic 
benefit exceeded lhc reserve account at December 31, 2003 by $239,971 ($187,149 at 
December 31, 2002), accordingly, management has determined that there will be no 
pension benefit increases for 2003. 

Information regarding financial instruments 

The Board has an accounting risk of loss in the areas of cash and cash 
equivalents, investments and notes receivable to the extent cash funds are not insured 
by a governmental agency, or notes receivable and investments are not secured by 
mortgages or guaranteed by the United States Government. 
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Note- 7 

BOARD OF RETffiEMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Information regarding financial instruments- continued 

The following table su mmarizes the Board's accounting risk of loss as of 
December 31, 2003 and 2002: 

2003 
Amount Amount of 

Account Insured/ Accounting 
Balance Secured Risk of Loss 

Notes receivable, net of allowance 
for doubtful collections $ 837,400 $ 837,400 $ Cash and cash equivalents 690,725 690,725 

Funds invested with the Free Will 
Baptist Foundation 50,825 50,825 

Short-term liquid investments 1,009,667 1,009,667 Corporate bonds 1,337,248 1,337,248 Certificates of deposit 43,616 43,616 Mutual funds 3,914,312 3,914,312 Common stocks 8,472,582 8,472,582 U.S. Treasury notes and bills 8,873,654 8,873,654 
Real estate investment trust 250,005 250,005 

~2.o ,1a~M.!~~ ~J_D,i9,6,22Q ~14,98.3,ru 

2002 
Amount Amount of 

Account Insured/ Accounting 
Balance Secured Risk of Loss 

Notes receivable, net of allowance 
for doubtful collections $ 956,665 $ 956,665 $ Cash and cash equivalents 123,599 123,599 

Funds invested with the Free Will 
Baptist Foundation 34,890 34,890 

Short-term liquid investments 1,027,339 1,027,339 Corporate bonds 926,126 926,126 Certificates of deposit 461,106 449,601 11,505 Mutual funds 2,410, 745 2,410,745 Common stocks 9,699,042 9,699,042 U.S. Treasury notes and bills 5,970,511 5,970,511 
Real estate investment trust 2QQ,QQQ 250,005 

.$jl,860,~ $ .LQ35,266 $14,324,762 
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Note- 8 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Related partv transactions 

. dministrative services to the Free 
The Board provided office space an~ cert~ba d the Board $-0- and $7.500 for 

. . I The foundation retm urse . 
Will Baptlst FoundatiOn, nc. D b 31 2003 and 2002, respectively. 
t hese services during the years ended ecem er ' 

. d 'th the Free Will Baptist 
The Board had $50,825 and $34 ,8~0 2~;;s~:sp:~tively. The Board also had an 

Foundation, Inc. at December 3hl ' 2F0?3 ~ill Bap~ist Foundation, Inc. in the a moun~ of 
ured 6% demand note tot c I CC . 

1 unsee D b 31 2003 and 2002, respective y. $-0- and $250,000 at ecern er , 
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Board of Retirement and Insurance 
Proposed Budget for 2005 

2002 2002 2003 
Budget Actual Proposed 

2003 
Actual 

Sa lanes 76,868 76.926 79.943 80,515 
Employee Benefrts 48,161 57,510 60.000 55.331 
Hous1ng 

53,814 53.814 55,967 55,966 
T ravei/PromoiiOn 20,250 21 ,075 20.250 11 ,648 
Auto Maintenance 1,500 5,369 4,500 8,293 
Future Purchases/Auto 3,000 3,000 7,200 7,000 

Hardware/Software Future Purchases 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 
Plant Fund 

52,000 48,408 52,000 51,467 
Office Expense 28,000 24,868 28,000 29,531 
Equ1pment 5,000 1,640 5,000 0 
Educat1on!Tra1ning 10,000 6.214 8.500 8.074 
PubhcatJons 12,250 499 8.000 0 
Board Expense 17.000 10.577 18.000 10,994 
Legal 

8.500 1.044 10,000 6,983 
Aud1t1ng 12,000 8,537 12.000 9,209 
Equ1pment lease 4,000 2,004 0 
Software Maintenance 7.000 4,738 3.000 3,850 
Board Insurance 

0 5.000 0 
Miscellaneous 2,000 1,014 2.000 2,041 
Total 

373,343 339,238 391 ,359 352,903 
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2004 2005 
Proposed Proposed 

82,950 139,931 

60,000 87,134 

57,569 79,125 

22,000 22,000 

4,500 5,500 

7,200 7,200 

12,000 12,000 

50,000 30,000 

28,000 30,000 

5,000 10,000 

8.500 9,000 

10,000 30.000 

12.500 17,500 

10,000 12,000 

10,500 11 ,000 

0 0 

3,000 3,000 

12,000 0 

2,000 2,000 

397,719 507,390 

Director: (7 Months) 
Salary 
Housing!Utilities 
Social Security/Medicare 
Chnstmas Check 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Ufe 
Hospitalization 
Dental 
Disability 

Note: Office Car Furnished 
Total 

Incoming Director: 
Salary 
Housing/Utilities 
Social Security/Medicare 
Christmas Check 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Life 
Hospitalization 
Dental 

Board of Retirement and Insurance 
Salary and Benefits Breakdown 

2003 2004 

29,853.12 34,572.34 
26,766.36 27,569.35 
10,227.60 11 ,225.12 

1,285.52 1,410.90 
4,053.35 4,448.68 

11 ,977.42 6,759.78 

756.12 75612 
10,357.42 5,176.38 

453.96 485.64 
409.92 34164 

84,163.38 85,986.18 

Disability • 
Note: OffiCe Car Furnished 
Total 

Associate Director: 
Salary 
Housing!Utilit1es 
Social Security/Medicare 
Christmas Check 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Ute 
Hospitalization 
Dental 
Disability 

574.92 
5,176.38 

247.56 
361 .80 

20,773.03 
29,199.67 

9,026.95 
1,134.61 
3,577.51 
6,360.66 

574.92 
5,176.38 

264.84 
301 .56 

21 ,471 .89 
30,000.00 

9,297.75 
1,168.65 
3,684.84 
6,317.70 

2005 

20,973.88 
16,725.41 
6,809.91 

2,638.95 
3,943.21 

441.07 
3,019.56 

283.29 
199.29 

- 51 ,091 .36 

28,000.00 
31 ,200.00 

- 10,937.39 
1,348.80 
4,238.42 
6,357.78 

574.92 
5,176.38 

264.84 
341 .64 

574.92 
5,176.38 

264.84 
301 .56 

82,082.38 

22.330.76 
31 ,200.00 

9,889.98 
1,219.63 
3,832.53 
6,317.70 

Note: Office Car Furnished 
Total 70,072.43 71 ,940 .8~2:._ ____ 7_4.;_, 790.59 

Business Manager: 
Salary 
Social Security/Medicare 
Christmas Check 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Life 
Hospitalization 
Dental 
Disability 

Total 

Secretary/Receptionist 
Salary 
Social Security/MediCare 
Christmas Check 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Life 
Hospitalization 
Dental 
Disability 

Total 

418.92 
5,176.38 

247.56 
190.44 

26,896.80 
2,097 17 

517.25 
1,918.98 
6,033.30 

37,463.50 

41892 
5, 176 38 

264.84 
158.64 

Hospitalization Cap: $9,400 Couple; $13,250 Family 

.. Disability Insurance Is .059 per $100 
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27,703.70 
2,1 19.33 

532.76 
1,976.55 
6,018.78 

38,351 .13 

400.00 
12,301.98 

750.24 
212.40 

418.92 
5,176.38 

264.84 
158.64 

36,000.00 
5,613.92 

692.31 
2,568.46 

13,664.62 

58,539.31 

28,811 .85 
2,246.49 

554.07 
2,055.61 
6,018.78 

39,686.81 



he 
FREE WILL 

BAPTIST 
FOUNDAT ON 

The Foundation experienced continued growth during 2003. Following on the heels of last 
year's 48% increase of total assets under management was this year's 44%. There are two 
sources of encouragement in these figures. 

A primary reason for encouragement re lates to our permanent gifts. These figures include 
endowments which increased 23% and provide income to Free Will Baptist ministries today. 
Also included are deferred agreements which are up almost 14%. They will benefit ministries 
later. 

Secondarily is the immediate assistance provided to our agencies from the national offices to 
local churches through our revocable trust program. This help is produced through the three-fold 
benefits of these trusts. First of all, revocable trusts provide the lion 's share of the cost created 
by the Foundation. Second, is the direct increase of funds to ministries using the program based 
on the values of the 193 agency agreements. We increased their income by over $280,000 more 
than they would have received from savings or checking deposits. Plus, we provided individuals 
an extra $168,000 on which they could tithe or even make permanent gifts. 

Can we continue this rate of growth? Certainly not indefinitely; but, for a number of years, yes! 
Why am l so certain? 

Because we have more people with more money than ever before; 

Because we have more churches with savings that are losing value to inflation, or with funds 
that need the boost of higher rerums with safety; 

Because long-time faithful donors want to make sure some of their giving continues after 
death; 

And. finally. because of an increased understanding that it is possible to provide for our 
fami lies and the Lord's work at the same time. 

The Foundation Board is requesting the National Association to restrucrure the formation of the 
Foundation Board as a stand-alone board. This will require an amendment to our charter and 
Part V, Section 17 of the By-Laws of the Constitution of the National Association of Free WiJI 
Baptists, Inc. 

This request is being made because of the following: 

l. The Foundation generates enough fee income. plus the Together Way proceeds, to 
support its work. 

2. The Foundation will soon exceed $25 million under management. 
3. The Foundation Board needs to meet when all members can attend. Presently, we have 

conflicts with the meeting schedule of other boards. 
4. The work of the Foundation is quite different from the Retirement Department. 
5. Putting this request on the table this year aUows the nominating committee a full year to 

find qualified candidates for the Board. 
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FREE 
WILL BAYfiST FOUNDATION MEETINGS 

sYNOPSIS OF 

. .1 28 2003. All members were present except 
The Foundation met for its annual meeun~ o~i~:2 W~ accepted the audit. reviewed the 

k Ward Roger Harwell and James o 
for Jac · 
o ration, and adopted the budget. 

pe . d nts All aeneral endowments, unless r cernmg en owme . o 
The Board instituted a new po ICY con . . earnings to be added to the endowment . 
otherwise stated, will pay a 5% return WI~ ex~est~e 5% return would come from excess earmngs 

. n the market are expenence , 
When downturns t . d d 

. would the principal be mva e . 
and, tn no case, b 

Absent: Ron Bar er. 
. r 8 2003, before the leadership confere~ce. 

The Found au on met D~embe ' . d ti nancial report as informauon. 
. ed the operatiOn and receive a I We revtew . 
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Current Endowment Values For Various Ministries 
Future Gifts To Ministries 

Ministry 
Value 0/o of Total 

0/o of Total 
Foreign Missions Department 

Gift $824,573 36.80% Ministry Local Churches 
$247,615 11 .0So/o 

Free Will Baptist Bible College $401 ,541 32.41 °/o 
Free Will Baptist Bible College 

$234,954 10.48% 
Foreign Missions Department $204,012 16.49°/o 

9.88°/o 

State and District Associations 
$209,550 9.35% 

$122,203 Hillsdale College Home Missions Department 
$192,388 

8.48°/o 
8.58% 

$104,856 Together Way Board of Retirement 
$112,283 5.01% 

7.25°/o $89,660 Home Missions Department 
Master's Men Department 

$106,767 4.76o/o 

7.24°/o $89,610 Free Will Baptist Family Ministries 
Together Way I Executive Office 

$83,344 3.72% 

7.08°/o Gideon's International $87,715 
Free Will Baptist Family Ministries 

$69,796 3.11% 

3.50°/o 
California Christian College 

$43,338 $68,521 3.06% Board of Retirement Hillsdale College 
$52,168 2.33°/o 

Free Will Baptist Foundation $38,185 3.08°/o 
Seven Other Free Will Baptist Ministries $20,695 0.94o/o 

California Christian College $28,642 2.31°/o 

1.72°/o 

Women Nationally Active for Christ $18,066 0.81 °/o 
$21,241 Local Churches 

TOTAL: $2,240,720 1 OO.OOo/o Master's Men Department $4,830 0.39°/o 

Women National ly Active for Christ $2,000 0 .17°/o 

TOTAL: $1,237,833 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC. 

December 31, 2003 
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The Board of Directors 

WARREN, DENNEY & WALLACE 
<DI iii'ED PUeUC ..ccouHTANTS 

THE IIOUJHTt:EJI BlDG 
SOITE100 

3111 PUJS PARK Ill YO 
NAS1M1.1.E. TH 37 217 ·1088 

1815) 3841-6100 

Independent Ayd1tors' Report 

Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc. 

.......... 
AAt£RtCAN INSTT1UTE Of 

C8111FIED PUeUC AIXXlUHTAI<lS 
UMIESSEE SOCIE1Y Of 

CEll I FED PU8UC ACOOUHJAI<lS 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the Free Will Baptist 
Foundation, Inc. (the "Foundation") as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related statements of 
activities and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
the Foundation's management. Our responsibiltly is to express an opmion on these financial 
statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance w1th aud1Ling standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards requtre that we plan and perform the audits to obtam 
reasonable assurance about whether the financ1al statements are free of matenal misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test baSls, eVIdence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessmg the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluatmg the overall financial statement presentation. We 
belteve that our audits provide a reasonable bas1s for our op1mon . 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the fmancial position of the Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc .. at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the 
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conforiDlty with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of Amertca. 

March 2, 2004 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION. INC. 
Statements of Financial Position 

December 31. 2003 & 2002 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Accrued earnings receivable 
Other accounts receivable 

Invest~ents, at fair market value- Note 2 
Certificates of deposit 
U.S. Government instruments 
Common Stocks 
Real estate investments 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Trusts 

Total investments 

Notes receivable- Note 3 

Total assets 

ASSET$ 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Liabilities 
Operating liabilities: 
Accrued expenses 

Liabilities to beneficial owners· 
Interest bearing revocable and . 
Future gift interests payable- ~o7::s trusts- Note 4 

Funds held in trust- Note 6 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountants' report and accom . 
to the financial statements. panvmg notes 

-2-
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2003 
$ 663,958 

189,588 
1,628 

2,187,188 
13,061,786 

1,072,867 
1,007,015 

531,424 
424,769 

43.619 

18.328.668 

251.708 

2002 
$ 682,766 

117,048 
3,082 

2,457,892 
6,888,940 
1,072,624 

817,015 
351,579 
757,064 
41.823 

12.386.937 

285.338 

$19A35.55o W.475.171 

$ 299,047 

15,401,714 
1,288,067 
2.240.989 

19.229.817 

205.733 
205.733 

$ 4,530 

10,398,250 
1,133,908 
1.819.387 

13.356.075 

119.096 
119.096 

$19A35.55Q 813.475.171 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION. INC. 
Statements of Activities 

For the Years Ended December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Revenue and Support 
Investment income: 
Interest and dividends, net of investment fees 
Realized net gains (losses) on sale of investments 
Unrealized net gains (losses) from investments 

Total investment income 

Support through "The Together Way" 
Plan and other contributions 

Interest income- note receivable 
Endowment income 

Total revenue and support 

Allocations of earnings to revocable trusts, 
savings trust, beneficiaries and annuitants 

Revenue and support after allocations 

Exoenses 
Reimbursement to the Board of Retirement of 

National Association of Free Will Baptists 
Salaries and benefits 
Equipment expense 
Travel and promotion 
Office expense 
Printing and publications 
Training and education 
Legal and auditing 
Miscellaneous 

Total Expenses 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets at beginning of year 

Net assets at end of year 

See accountants' report and accompanying notes 
to the financial statements. 
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2003 

$ 788,402 
92,161 

399.601 
1.280.164 

( 

28,754 
11,570 

237 
1.320.725 

1,0B6,131) 
234,594 

5,000 
71,852 

1,947 
33,059 

7,814 
2,080 

17,959 
6,614 
1,632 

147,957 

86,637 

119,096 

$ 205,733 

2002 

$ 487,156 
11,670 

( 175.591) 

( 

$ 

323.235 

28,731 
4,853 

356,819 

234,580) 
122,239 

5,000 
67,685 

22,249 
5,019 

186 
3,053 
7,308 
a9~ 

111.399 

10,840 

108,256 

11~.0~6 



FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION. INC. 
Statements of Cash flows 

For the Years Ended December 31.2003 and 2002 

Cash flows f~r operating activities 
Cash received for: 
Contributions 
Interest and dividends 
Other income 

Cash paid to suppliers d 1 All . an emp oyees 
~tlons of earnings to revocable trusts 

savlNngs trusts, beneficiaries and annuita~ts 
et cash pro · d d ( d VI e use ) by operating activities 

Cash flows f · Nrom mvesting activities 
ew loans made 

Principal payments . 
Proceeds fro al r~IVed on notes receivable 
p m s e of mvestment securif 

urchases of investment securities Ies 
Net cash provided ( ed) b . us Y mvesting activities 

Ca~ flows from ftnancing activities 
oceeds from additions net f . 'th 

gift interest, revocable ~nd 0 ~ drawals, to future 
Co t 'b · savmgs trusts 

n rt uttons to funds held in trust 
Net cash provided ( sed) b u Y financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

Cash and cash equivalents at be . . f guuung o year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Reconciliation of increase in n t 

See accountants' reoort and accompanvin 
notes to the fmancial Statements. g 
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2003 

$ 30,208 
715,862 
11,807 

( 143,440) 

( 1,086,131) 
( 471.694) 

( 448,929) 
482,559 

7,556,223 
( 12,71§,192) 
( 5,126,339) 

( 1,629,095) 

( 

$ 
( 

7,208.320 
5.579.225 

18,808) 

682,766 

663.958 

86,637 
491,762) 

2002 

$ 26,968 
437,817 

4,853 
( 106,869) 

( 23~,5aQ) 
128,189 

( 286,341) 
17,783 

6,097,552 
( 9,~82.365) 
( 4,151.371) 

( 1,197,844) 
5,654,200 
4,356,356 

333,174 

349.592 

I 682,7§~ 

$ 10,840 
163,921 

( 71,086) ( 51,102) 
4.517 4,530 

($ 471.694) i 128,1~9 

Note 1-

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION. INC. 
Notes to the Financtal Statements 

December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Summarv of Significant Accounting Pohcies 

Free will Baptist Foundation. Inc. (the Foundation) is operated under the 
auspices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

Accrual Basis and Financial Statement Presentation 

The ftnancial statements of the foundation have been prepared using the accrual 

basis of accounting. 

The Foundation classifies its revenue, contributions, expenses. gains, and losses 
into three classes of net assets based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed 
restrictions. Net assets of the Foundations and changes therein are classified as follows: 

Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that a re not subject to donor-imposed 

stipulations. 

Temporarily restricted net assets- Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that may or will be met ctther by actions of the Foundatlon and/or 

the passage of time. 

Permanently restricted net assets Net assets subJect to donor-imposed 
stipulations that they be maintamed permanently by the Foundation. 
Generally, the donors of these assts permit the Foundation to use all or part of 
the income earned on related investments for general or specilic purposes. 

The amount for each of these classes of net assets is presented in the statement 
of ftnancial position and the amount of change in each class of net assets is displayed m 
the statements of activities. The foundation bad no temporarily restricted net assets at 

December 31, 2003 and 2002. 

Income Taxes 

The Foundation is exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c) (3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptist, Inc. In addition, the foundation has been determined by the Internal Revenue 
Service not to be a "private foundation "within the meaning of 509 (a) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 2003 and 2002. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows. the Foundation considers all cash 
on hand, deposits in financial institutions and highly liquid debt instruments with an 
original maturity of three months or Jess to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 

Judgment and estimation IS exercised by management in certain areas of the 
preparation of ftnancial statements. The more significant areas include the collectibility 
of notes receivable and determination of fair value of investments. Management 
believes that such estimates have been based on reasonable assumptions and that such 
estimates are adequate. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

-5-
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Note 4-

Note 5-

Note 6-

Note 7-

Note 8-

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOlJNI)ATlON. INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Interest Bearing Revocable and Saving Trusts 

The Foundation maintams revocable trusts and savings trusts which totaled 
$15,401,714 and $10,398,250 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The trusts pay 
mterest t~ the trust beneficiaries. The rate of mterest paid IS dependent upon the amount of 
inrome earned from the related mvestments. Withdrawal from the accounts, which may 
require a 7-45 day notice, is without penalty, and the trusts are without maturity. 

Future Gift Interests Payable 

The foundation maintains charitable unitrusts amounting to $382,942 and $341,579 
and gift annuities amounting to $905,125 and $792,329 as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, 
respectively. These future gift interests pay interest at specified rates ranging from 5.0% to 10.4%. 

Funds Held in Trust 

The Foundation holds in trust that are subject t~ restrictions by the donor requiring 
that the principal, and in certain instances earnings, be invested in perpetuity, and only the 
inrome be ctistributed to the beneficiaries of the endowment. The rate of interest paid is 
dependent upon the amount of income earned from the related investments. As of December 
31, 2003 and 2002, the permanently restricted endowment funds totaled $2,240,989 and 
$1,819,387, respectively. 

Related Pam Transactions 

The Board of Retirement and J nsurance of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists provided off1ce space and certam administrative services to the Foundation for fees 
of $5,000 and $5,000 for 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

Information Regarding Financial Instruments 

The Foundation has an accounting risk of loss in the areas of cash and cash 
equivalents and investments to the extent they are not insured or guaranteed by a 
governmental agency. The Foundation may also be at risk of loss with respect to the 
market values of other investments. The following table summarizes the Foundation's 
accounting risk of loss at December 31, 2003 and 2002: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Short term liquid investments 
Certificates of deposit 
U.S. Government instruments 
~mmon stock 
Mutual funds 
~rporat.e bonds 
Real estate investment 
Trusts 
Receivables 

-8· 
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Account 
Balance 

$ 473,253 
190,705 

2,187,188 
13,061,786 
1,072,867 

531,424 
424,769 

1,007,015 
43,619 

442.924 
w..t~~ 

December 31. 2003 
Amount Amount of 
Insured/ Accounting 
Secured Risk of Loss 

$ ] 00,000 $ 373,253 
190,705 

1,707,652 
13,038,899 

479,536 
22,887 

1,072,867 
531,424 
424,769 

1,007,015 
43,619 

442.924 
$ 4.398 29_j 

Note 8-

E WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION. INC. 
FRE Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2003 and 2002 

ts (rontinued) . R rding Financial Instrumen 

lnformahon ega _______ _j~~~~~~~~2~0~0~2~~~~ Decem r , f 
Punount Punounto 

C h and cash equivalents 
s~~rt term liquid in~estments 
Certificates of deposit 
U.S. Government instruments 
Common stock 
Mutual funds 
Corporate bonds 
Real estate investment 
Trusts 
Receivables 

-9-

$ 

Account 
Balance 

675,626 
7,140 

2,457,892 
6,888,940 
1,072,624 

351,579 
757,064 
817,015 

41,823 
405.468 

:u 3,475,171 
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Insured/ Accountmg 
Secured Risk of Loss 

$ 100,000 $ 575,626 
7,140 

1,956,841 
6,551,209 

501.051 
337,731 

1,072,624 
351,579 
757,064 
817,015 

41,823 
405.468 

U.859,9!U 
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' SALARIES AND BENEFITS 2004 

' 

' I 

l 
i ;. ! 
i I 

I 

. ! David Brown 

' . 
' 

. ' 

FOUNDATION BUDGET ! 
Salary 

Dotty Moore 

. . 

Soc Security I Medicare 
$46,725.00 

Actual Actual Approved Projected Amended Proposed 

Retirement 
$3,574.00 

Salary 

2002 2003 2004 2004 2004 2005 I . 
H_ospitalization Insurance 

$3,271.00 
Soc Security I Medicare 

$20,707 \NCO ME 

, 
Retirement 

$1,584 

L1fe Insurance 
$11,553.00 

The Together Way $27,590 $27,888 $29,000 $29,000 $29,500 

; Dental Insurance 
$198.00 

~ospitalization Insurance 
$1,035 Gilts 

$1,142 $866 $1,250 $750 ($500) $750 

I 

~ 

' 

L1fe Insurance 
$4,093 

I 
! Disability Insurance 

$698.00 

Interest Income $2,716 $9,998 $2,500 $3,000 $500 $5,000 

Dental Insurance 
$0 

$276.00 

Endowment $0 $237 $250 $250 $250 

I 
$66,295.00 

Disability Insurance 
$237 Miscellaneous $0 $100 $100 $100 

I 

$125 Management Fees $90.793 $195.605 $150.000 $215,000 $65.000 $275,000 

•• 9Y2 Months 
$27,781 •• 

TOTAL: 
$122,240 $234,594 $183,100 $248,1 00 $65,000 $310,600 

SALARIES AND BENEFITS 2005 

David Brown 

EXPENSES 

Salary 

Dotty Moore 

Salaries $44,043 $45,366 $46,725 $67,432 $20,707 $104,278 

Salaries Part-Time $3,216 $3,760 $5,500 $2,500 ($3,000) $5,000 

Soc Security I Medicare 
$51,000.00 Salary 

Employee Benefits $20,426 $22,726 $20,750 $27,300 $6,550 $39,679 

Retirement 
$3,901.50 Soc Security I Medicare 

$26,175 
Department Car $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,500 

H.ospitalization Insurance 
$3,517.50 

L1fe Insurance 
$12,301.68 

Retirement 
$2,002 

Travel $11 ,01 0 $17,667 $ 14,000 $18,000 $4,000 $22,000 ! ' 

~ospitalization Insurance 
$1,284 

New Magazine $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $40,000 

Dental Insurance 
$198.12 Life Insurance 

$5,436 
Board Expense 

$1,311 $1,750 $1,750 $12,000 

Disability Insurance 
$750.24 
$300.90 

Dental Insurance 
$0 Promotion $11 ,239 $1 4,081 $14,000 $15,000 $1,000 $18,000 

$71,969.94 
Disabilill£ Insurance 

$285 Office Expense $2,342 $4 ,779 $3,025 $5,000 $1,975 $5,000 

$129 Rent 
$5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $25,958 

Willi~m Evans (5 . 

$35,31 1 Printing $0 $1,795 $8,000 $3,000 ($5,000) $3,000 

· months 1n 2005) 

Publications $186 $285 $750 $500 {$250) $1,000 

Salary 

Training & Education $3,054 $17,959 $12,000 $15,000 $3,000 $16,000 

Housing/Utilities 
$13,723.00 

Auditing $7~87 $6,594 $8,000 $8,000 $8,000 

Soc Security I Medicare 
$11,948.00 

LegaJ $20 $20 $1 ,000 $50 ($950) $50 

Christmas Check 
$4,565.00 

Bank Fees $1,861 $ 1,988 $2,000 $200 ($1 ,800} $100 

Retirement 
$1,468.00 

Postage $815 $1,047 $1,000 $1,200 $200 $2,000 

Hospitalization Insurance 
$1 ,810.00 

Equipment $0 $1,947 $2,000 $8,000 $6,000 $5,000 

Life Insurance 
$2,155.00 

Miscellaneous $552 ~1,6~~ ~2,500 ~2,500 $2.500 

Dental Insurance 
$315.00 

Disability Insurance 
$200.00 

TOTAL $111 ,052 $147,957 $148,000 $180,432 $52,432 $319,065 

$145.00 

$11 ,188 $86,637 $35,100 $67,668 $12,568 ($8,465) 

$36,329.00 
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HOME MISS CONS REPORT 

Dear Friends 
' 

Ho M ' · me ISSJOns experienced un 
cross-cultural outreach G precedente~ growth across North Arne . . . 
won many souls and br~ugho~ ~~m~rutstthus Jbmo great harvest fi elds and :cu: '::U~~~orch ~lanhtmg and 

m o e ody of Christ. nanes ave 

Self-Supporting Status: 

On February I. 2003. Chris and Jan Cia 
Peace Free WiJJ Baptist Church to se lf-:U·popou~~~~rch planten. in Indianapolis. Indiana. brouoht 

• o status. Well done, faithful servants. o 

Missionary Appointees: 

Dexter and Denise Guin - C I d S . p 0 ora 0 pnngs, Colorado 
aul and Deniece Hammons - Flagstaff Ari • zona 

Scott and Dawn Real - St C . . . . · roix, Ytrgm Islands 

JJmmy and Laura Caudill - KendaUville, Indiana 

Jason and Melissa Taylor y . · uma, Anzona 

Hispanic Appointees: 

Fernando Bustamonte, Georgia 
~ 

Andres Sancho, Florida 

RJgobreto Lumbreras, North Carolina 

Alfredo Bonello. fdaho 

Jesus Delange(, California 

Fernando Hernandez. North Carolina 

Seminaries and fnstitute: 

The Seminary of the Cross R . 
Mexico are both doing ve;;, w~osa, MexJco and the Bible Institute of the Cross, Altamira 

The Hom M ' · ' . e lSSJon Board voted to h 
Carolma. This seminary will be usXn ~ e G~~n Hendrix Hispanic Seminary in Inm S 
teachers. n e trammg of bi-vocarional H' , . an, outh lSpanJc pastors and 
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Building Facilities: 
This year. 2003, saw twelve church planters in building programs. God has enabled them to erect 
wonderful facilities for worship. training, and to reach families with the message of salvation. 

Roll Call Sunday 2003: 

The total attendance in Home Missions churches on this day was 3,750, with 760 ftrSt-time 
visitors, and 50 precious souls were saved. Across the nation Free Will Baptist churches 

registered these approximate totals: 

Number saved: 1,390 

First time visitors: 13,748 

Total attendance was 275,755 

Chaplains: 
This year we bad nine chaplains ministering around the world in lraq, Kuwait, Afghanistan, 

Germany, Spain, and the United States. 

*The Church Extension Loan Fund (CELF) loaned our churches. in building facili ties. a record 

$4,000,000. 

*The Benjamin Randall Offering was a record high of $348,000.00. 

*The total income for Home Missions was $4,475,523.12. 

Thank you, dear friends of Home Missions, for your faithful support. 

Rev. Larry A. Powell 

General Director 

Home Missions Department 
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A Synopsis of Minutes of 
Home Mission Board Meetings for 2003 

MayS, 2003 

MSC to accept Dexter Guin as National Home Missionary to 
Colorado Springs upon the completion of all contractual agreements with a 
12 month and 24 month review of his progress. 

MSC to accept Paul and Deniece Hammons as National Home 
Missionaries to Flagstaff, Arizona upon the completion of all contractual 
agreements. 

MSC to accept Scott Real as an Associate Missionary to St. Croix, 
Virgin Islands. 

MSC to change Missionary Roger Raper's status from an Associate 
Missionary to a National Home Missionary status. 

MSC to name the Hispanic institute in Inman, South Carolina, the 
Gwen Hendrix Hispanic Bible Institute of Inman, South Carolina. 

MSC that we send a letter of commendation to Chris and Carla Fannin 
for their faithfulness to the work in Puerto Rico. 

MSC that we send a letter of commendation to Bud Bivens and 
present him a plaque for his faithful service to Home Missions. 

MSC that we name the second million dollar endowment trust, The 
Roy Thomas Memorial Trust. 
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December 9, 2003 

Recomm e
ndations of the Personnel Committee: 

l. 

2. 

. ' ommendation of the following Hispanic ministers as 
Accept the dLrector ~ rec 
Associate Missionanes: 

Rev. Fernando Bustamonte 

Rev. Andres Sancho 

Rev. Rigoberto Lumbreras 

Rev. AJfredo Bottello 

Rev. Jesus Delange! 

Rev. Fernando Hernandez* 

Georgia 

Florida 

North Carolina 

Idaho 

California 

North Carolina 

· t USA from Cuba. 
d 

. ,;t·lncr for his visa/approval for entry m o 
*Fernan o LS w... o 

N · l Home Missionaries 
d M l' a Taylor to become auona 

To approve Jason an e LSS 

to Yuma, Arizona. 

MSC to accept and approve the recomm 
endations of the Personnel Committee. 
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WARREN, DENNEY & WALLACE 

CERIFEO PU8UC ACCOUHTMIS 
THE IIOUJI(I'E[R BlDG 

SUITE100 
Slll PVJS PARK 81.110 

NASHYI..LE. Tll37211·10111 
let&) 311&-5100 -AOIIERT RAY WARREN. CS>ft AMEJIICAH INSliT\IlE Of 

WilliAM H DENNEY CS>A 
LAAR'f BIIUCEW~ CS>ft 
10EL 0 OOWJiol JR. CS>A 
JNI£T W I.E£. CS>A 

To the Board of Trustees of the 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Board of Home Missions of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists of the 
United States of America, Inc. 

Antioch, Tennessee 

CERTlflEI) PUBUC ACCOOKTANTS 
'i1:NN£SSE£ SOCIETY OF 

CER1lAED PU8UC AOCOUHlMIS 

We have audited the accompanying statements of fmancial position of the Board of Home 
Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists of the United States of America, Inc. (a 
nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related statements of activities and 
cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Organization's management. Our responsibility ts to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
Umted States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures tn the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. 
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Board of Home Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists of 
the United States of America, Inc. as of December 31. 2003 and 2002 and the changes in its net assets 
and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

January 30, 2004 
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BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. INC. 
Statements of Financial Position 

December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Assets 
Cash- Note 8 
Investments 
Investments in Church Extension 
Loan Fund - Note 5 

Accounts receivable - related party - Note 5 
Accounts receivable - employees 
Inventory - Note 1 
Property and equipment, at cost 

less accumulated depreciation of $138,553 
($135,670 in 2002) - Notes 1 & 2 

ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Total liabilities 

Commitments - Notes 6 

Net assets 
Unrestricted 

Operating 
Board designated - Note 7 

Temporarily restricted - Note 4 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountants' reoort and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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2003 

$ 632,285 
21,256 

303,205 
58,595 

2,750 
25,028 

160.519 

$L203.638 

$ 4.424 

4.424 

963,089 
165,000 

1,128,089 

71,125 

1,199,214 

~1.223,638 

2002 

$ 180,427 
18,988 

495,970 
11,845 

24,336 

158.552 

$ 890.118 

11.869 

11.869 

624,126 
165,000 
789,126 

89,123 

878,249 

~ a~.ua 

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOC!ATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. INC. 
Statements of Activities 

For the Years Ended December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Unrestricted 
Revenue: 

Cooperative program 
Designated contributions 
Management fees - Note 5 
Interest income 
Dividend income 
Gain (loss) on sale of property & equipment 
Unrealized gain (loss) on value of investment 
Net assets released from restrictions: 

Restrictions satisfied by payments 

Total revenue 

Expenses: 
Administrative expenses 
Missionary expenses 
Missionary land & building 

Total expenses 

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 

Temporarily restricted 
Revenue: 

Cooperative program 
Designated contributions 
Net assets released from restrictions: 

Restrictions satisfied by payments 
Missionary expenses 
Missionary land & building 

Increase (decrease) in temporarily 
restricted net assets 

Total increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets - beginning of year 

Net assets - end of year 

See accountants' reoort and accompanYing 
notes to the financial statements. 
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$ 

2003 

216,201 
819,512 
180,000 
29,906 

4 
1,250 
2,264 

3,322.459 

4,571,596 

910,174 
2,752,765 

569,694 

4,232.633 

338,963 

849,519 
2,454,942 

( 2, 752, 765) 
( 569.694) 

( 17,998) 

320,965 

878,249 

~ 1,1~9,2H 

$ 

( 

( 

2002 

186,472 
473,589 
200,000 
52,071 

5 
3,500 

53,421) 

3.433,964 

4,296,180 

907,530 
2,826,364 

607,600 

4.341.494 

45.314) 

785,796 
2,445,299 

( 2,826,364) 
( 607,600) 

( 202,869) 

( 248,183) 

1.126.432 

$ sza.2~a 



BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREEWiL£BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMEJiiCA:JNC: 
Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended December 31. Z003 and 2002 

Ooerating activities 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to 
net cash PT?vi~ed (used) by operating activities: 

Depl'eCUltion 
(Ga~n) loss on sale of property & equipment 
(Gam) loss on value of investment 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in receivables 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and 
accrued expenses 

Increase (decrease) in deferred compensation 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Investing activities 
Redemption of investments 
Acquisition of investments 
Proceeds from the sale of property & equipment 
Purchases of property and equipment 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Financing activities 
Proceeds from the line of credit 
Repayments on the line of credit 

Net cash used by financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of years 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of years 

See accountants' reoort and accompanying 
notes to the fmancial statements. 
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2003 

$ 320,965 

19,355 
( 1,250) 
( 2,264) 

( 49,500) 
( 692) 

( 7,445) 

279.169 

614,922 
( 422,161) 

1,250 
( 21.a22> 

1n.2s9 

451,858 

18Q.427 

i ~a2.2~ 

2002 

($ 248,183) 

18,167 
( 3,500) 

53,421 

137,506 
( 9,874) 

( 13,041) 
( 8.144) 

( 1a,24s> 

765,070 
( 468,131) 

3,500 
( ao.a§o> 

27Q,Q89 

435,194 
( 564,025) 

( 128,831) 

67,610 

112,817 

s UW.~2Z 

Note 1 -

BOARD OF HQME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Organization and summarv of significant accounting policies 

The Board of Home Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists of 
the United States of America, Inc. is a nonprofit organization affiliated with the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists located in Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose 
of the Organization is to establish and support Free Will Baptist Mission churches in 
the United States (including U.S. Virgin Islands and Puerto Rico) and Mexico. The 
Organization's support comes primarily from donor contributions. 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association of Free 
Will Baptists, Inc. In addition, the Organization has been determined by the Internal 
Revenue Service not to be a "private foundation" within the meaning of 509(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 2003. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed in the 
preparation of the financial statements: 

Basis of accounting 

The Organization prepares its financial statements using the accrual basis of 
accounting, which involves the application of generally accepted accounting principles; 
consequently, revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses 
are recognized when incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financial statements presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of Financial Accounting Standards 
(SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 
117, the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position 
and activities according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted net assets, 
temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles includes the use of estimates that affect the financial statement&. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Investments in Church Extension Loan Fund 

Investments consist of investments in the Church Extension Loan Fund. 
Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market value at December 31, 2003 
and 2002. 

-5-
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Note 1-

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 

Contributions 

The Organization accounts for contributions in accordance with the 
recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in SFAS No. 116, 
Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. In accordance with 
SFAS No. 116, contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily 
restricted, or permanently restricted support, depending on the existence or nature of 
any donor restrictions. 

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or 
permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restriction. When a 
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction 
is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net 
assets and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from 
restrictions. The Organization has no permanently restricted net assets. 

Property and equipment and depreciation 

The Organization follows the practice of capitalizing, at cost, all expenditures for 
property and equipment in excess of $500 and an estimated useful life of at least two 
years. Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the 
assets generally as follows. 

Automobile 5 years 
Office furniture and equipment 3 - 20 years 

The net property and equipment balance has been recorded as a separate component in 
unrestricted net assets. 

Cash equivalents 

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of 
three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Inventory 

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost (first in, first out method) or market. 
Inventory consists of books, pamphlets, videos, door hangers and various other small 
items. 

Investments 

Investments are composed of equity securities and are valued at fair value. 

-6-
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Note 2-

Note 3-

Note 4-

OARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIO~ftAssOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THiUNfrED sTATES OF AMERICA INC. 
Note; to the financial Statements 

December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Propertv and equipment 

A summary of property and equipment is as follows: 

Land - Puerto Rico 
Automobile 
Office furniture & equipment 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 

2003 
$ 105,000 

58,225 
135.847 
299,072 

( 138.553) 
$ 160.519 

2002 
$ 105,000 

57,625 
131.597 
294,222 

( 135.670) 
i 158.5_5.2 

peferred compensation 
. . rovides deferred compensation for each employee 

The Board of Ho~e- Misslo;~nt of salary and years of servi~e. The 
based on a formula combmmg a p h employment is termmated. The 
compensation is payable to thede~ploedyee wpee~ation account. This account was 

· · ummary of the e1err com 
followmg lS as . lan during the year (see note 11). 
replaced by a pens1on P 

Balance at beginning of the year 
Transfer and terminations 
Balance at end of the year 

Restrictions on net assets 

$ 
( 

$ 

2003 
-0-

) 

-Q-

$ 
( 

i 

2002 
8,144 
8.144) 

-0-

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes: 

2003 2002 
$ 67,520 $ 72,201 

3.605 16.922 
$ 7Ll2.5 $ 89J23 

Missionaries 
Church Extension Loan Fund 

t 
. ted due to donor restrictions. They are released 

These net assets are res ~c 
when the donor restriction is satisfied. 
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Note 5 · 

Note 6 · 

Note 7 · 

Note 8 · 

BQARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA INC. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31.2003 and 2002 

Related party transactions 

The Board of Home Missions provides office space for and pays the salaries of 
the employees of a related party, the Church Extension Loan Fund. During the year, 
the Church Extension Loan Fund pa1d the Board of Home Missions a management fee of 
$180,000 ($200,000 at December 31, 2002) to reimburse the cost of the office space and 
salaries. The Board of Home Missions has invested money in a demand note of the 
Church Extension Loan Fund. The balance in this investment at year-end was $303,205 
{$495,970 at December 31, 2002). This investment is uncollateralized. The Board of 
Home Missions' management constantly scrutinizes the monthly financial statements of 
the Loan Fund to make sure that the Loan Fund is solvent and to minimize the credit 
risk of the investment. This investment 1s short term in nature and the interest can be 
changed, therefore cost approximates fair value. 

The Board of Home Missions has a receivable from the Church Extension Loan 
Fund for unrestricted earnings during the year. The balance on this receivable at year­
end was $58,595 ($11,845 at December 31, 2002). 

Lease 

The Board of Home Missions entered into a lease agreement on October 1, 1990 
with the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. for office and storage space. 
The Organization entered into a new lease agreement on July 1, 2000. The term of the 
lease was July 1, 2000 to August 31, 2000, then beginning September 1, 2000 the lease 
became a year to year lease. The rent expense for the year amounted to $50,220 
($50,350 for the year ended December 31, 2002). 

Designation of unrestricted net assets 

During 2001 the Board designated $165,000 in unrestricted net assets to reduce 
the deficits in missionary accounts. 

Concentration of credit risk 

The Board maintains cash deposits in excess of the federally insured amount of 
$100,000. At December 31, 2003, the excess amount over the federally insured limit was 
$532,285 {$80,427 in 2002). The Board has a cash management agreement with a local 
bank which invests any excess cash overnight in U.S. Government Securities under a 
repurchase agreement. Any cash not insured should, under the terms of this agreement, 
be collateralized by U.S. Government Securities. 

The Board a lso has $303,205 ($495,970 in 2002) invested in a demand note of 
the Church Extension Loan Fund. This note is uninsured. 

-8-
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Note 9 · 

Note 10 · 

fair values of financial instruments . . . 
tions were used by the OrgaruzatlOn m 

The following met~ods and a;su~:ancial instruments: 
timating its fair value disclosures or 

es . in Church Loan Fund, receivables an~ . 
Cash, cash equivale~ts, mvestments ted in the statement of fin~ncial posltJon 
payables: The carrymg amounts 7~~ short maturities of those mstruments. 

xun. at~ fair values because o 
QPro . 

. sed n uoted market pnce for 
ts. The fair value of investments LS ba o q 

lnvestmen · 
those investments. 

Investments .. 
· 1ttes· 

ta
ted at fair value and consist of equity secur . 

Investments ares 

Cost 

Equity securities ~ 

December 31.2003 

Fair 
Value 

i 21.256 

. rized as follows: 
Investment return ts summa 

Net realized and unrealized income 

Equity securities 

Cost 
$360.671 

December 31. 2002 

Fair 
Value 

i 18,988 

. rized as follows: 
Investment return LS summa 

Net realized and unrealized income 
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Unrealized 
Appreciation 

(Depreciation) 
($ 339,iliD 

2.268 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

(Depreciation) 
<i 341,6ag} 

( 53A2l) 



Note 11-

BOARD OF HOME MISSIONS OF T~E 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION oyFR1tMLLM~ST~ 

OF THE UNITED STATE OF _ ERICA IN 
Notes to the Financial sb;t;~ts 

December 31. 2003 and 20 

Pension plan 

The Board participates in the master pension plan of the Board ofRetirement 
and Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists. The Board contributes 
5% of gross salary for missionaries and administrative employees with 5 or more Years 
of service and 2% of gross salary for missionaries and administrative employees with 
less than 5 years of service. Pension expenses amounted to $49,572 ($37,403 in 2002). 
The pension plan is a defined contribution plan. Under the plan, an account is 
maintained for each participant and upon retirement the participant can either receive 
a lump-sum distribution or purchase one of several types of annuity contracts. 

·10-
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To the &ard of Trustees of 

WARREN, DENNEY & WALLACE 
CERIIFIED PUeUC ACCOUNTANTS 

THE 1IOUJHlUR 8lOO 
SUIT£100 

:ue PWS PARK 81.VO 
NASIMU£. TN 37217 ·10811 

ttl5l Mll-6100 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

the &ard of Home Missions of ~e . 
N •" al Association of Free Will Baptists a .. on . 

1 of the United States of Amenca, nc. 

-.wER1CAH IHS11T\/TE OF 
CERllFIED PUBliC ACOOUNTANTS 

1'9tHESSa SOCIE1Y OF 
CERTlA6D PU8UCAOOOUHTANTS 

ts fthe n __ _ _. of Home Missions for · fi cial statemen ° D<nUU ted Our report. on our audits of the basic nan dits in accordance with U.S. generally accep 
003 and 2002 appears on page 1. We con~ucted our ~un n the basic financial statements taken as a 

a2uditing standards for the purpose of formrn_g an opmtedio f,oor purposes of additional analysis and 18 not. a 
f fun ti nal expenses IS presen b · ted to the aud1tmg whole. The schedulebo . fine o . al statements. Such information has ~n su J~. . fairly stated in 

required part of the aslc a~CI f th b . financial statements and, m our opm10n, 18 

procedures applied in the audits o \ ~IcfinanciaJ statements taken as a whole. all material respects in relation to the a sic 

January 30, 2004 
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OF THE UNITED STATES OF AME B~STS S h RICA. IN 
c edule of Functional E . For th y E xpenses 

e earsnded December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Administrative expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes 
Ho~sing allowance and employee be fit 
Retirement ne 1 s 

Cost of literature 
Promotion expense 
Utilities 
Office expense 
Printing and postage 
Rent expense 
Professional fees 
Auto and travel expense 
Board meeting expense 
Insurance expense 
Telephone 
Together Way Office 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation 

Total administrative expenses 

Missionary expenses 
Salary and wages 
Retirement 
Promotion expense 
Printing and postage 
Literature 
Auto and travel expense 
Insurance expense 
D~ignated contributions 
Miscellaneous other expense 

Total missionary expenses 

Missionary land & buildings 

Total expenses 

See accountants' report on supplementarY . nfj . 1 ormat1on. 
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2003 

$ 295,894 
12,627 
96,545 
14,727 

( 117) 
69,172 
14,062 
21,469 

113,738 
50,220 
4,400 

67,332 
17,063 
74,690 
4,908 
1,970 

32,119 
19.355 

910.174 

2,244,130 
34,845 

183 
105,887 
49,550 

121,217 
39,823 
95,591 
61.539 

2,7Q2,76Q 

569.694 

$4.232.633 

2002 

$ 303,470 
13,521 

101,505 
10,480 
17,061 
52,779 
15,947 
22,603 

108,954 
50,350 

5,583 
68,216 
10,152 
73,385 
6,542 
3,865 

24,950 
18.167 

907,23Q 

2,334,082 
26,923 

2,926 
104,065 
40,827 

167,002 
28,680 
57,515 
64.344 

2.826.364 

607,600 

$4.341,494 

2003 2004 2005 

General Director: 
Salary $45,194.28 $47,090.04 $49,693.65 

Housing $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 

Utilities $2,427.92 $2,500.00 $2,600.00 

Retirement $3,159.60 $3,254.40 $3,384.69 

Insurance • $9,055.00 $9,055.00 $10,500.00 

TOTALS 
$77,836.80 $79,899.44 $84,178.34 

OffiCe car furnished 

Director of Development: 
Salary $30,799.32 $32,371.20 $34,530.05 

Housing $21,600.00 $21 ,600.00 $21,600.00 

Utilities $2,466.59 $2,500.00 $2,600.00 

Retirement $2,619.96 $2,698.56 $2,806.51 

Insurance* $5,079.16 $6,000.00 $6,500.00 

TOTALS 
$62,565.03 $65,169.76 $68,036.56 

Office car furnished 

Director of Missionary Assistance: 
Salary $30,799.32 $32,371.20 $34,530.05 

Housing $21,600.00 $21,600.00 $21,600.00 

Utilities $3,353.70 $3,400.00 $3,500.00 

Retirement $2,619.96 $2,698.56 $2,806.51 

Insurance • $12,805.00 $12,805.00 $14,000.00 

TOTALS $71 '177.98 $72,874.76 $76,436.56 

Office car furnished 

Director of Church Growth: 
Salary $34,399.32 $35,971.20 $38,130.05 

Housing $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 

Utilities $3,133.78 $3,200.00 $3,300.00 

Retirement $2,619.96 $2,698.56 $2,806.51 

Insurance • $12,805.00 $12,805.00 $14,000.00 

TOTALS $70,958.06 $72,674.76 $76,236.56 

Office car furnished 
Insurance•: 
Travel, Life, 
Health, Dental 
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-
2005 Proposed State Quotas 
Alabama Alaska $415,000.00 

Arizona 
Arkansas 
California 
Canada 
CELF 
Colorado 
Florida 
FWB Foundation 
Georgia 
Hawaii 
Idaho 
Illinois 
Indiana 
Iowa 
Kansas 
Kentucky 
Louisiana 
Maine 
Massachusetts 
Michigan 
Mid-Atlantic 
Mississippi 
Missouri 
Montana 
New Hampshire 
New Jersey 
New Mexico 
North Carolina 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
Oregon 
Other Income 
Other States 
Pennsylvania 
Puerto Rico 
South Carolina 
South Dakota 
Tennessee 
Texas 
Utah 
Virginia 
Virgin Islands 
Washington 
West Virginia 
Wisconsin 
WNAC 
Wyoming 

TOTAL 
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$7,500.00 
$20,000.00 

$275,000.00 
$130,000.00 

$5,500.00 
$125,000.00 

$65,000.00 
$40,000.00 

$5,000.00 
$130,000.00 

$500.00 
$10,000.00 

$117,000.00 
$57,000.00 

$7,000.00 
$20,000.00 
$90,000.00 
$25,000.00 

$3,000.00 
$3,000.00 

$150,000.00 
$30,000.00 

$125,000.00 
$200,000.00 

$1 ,000.00 
$5,000.00 
$1 ,500.00 

$10,000.00 
$360,000.00 
$160,000.00 
$325,000.00 

$5,000.00 
$225,000.00 

$20,000.00 
$25,000.00 

$5,000.00 
$165,000.00 

$1 ,000.00 
$500,000.00 
$125,000.00 

$6,000.00 
$185,000.00 

$50,000.00 
$5,000.00 

$100,000.00 
$35,000.00 

$125,000.00 
$5,000.00 

$4,500,000.00 

2005 Proposed Budget 

Salaries/Housing 
Personal Revivals 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Health Spending 
Auto and Travel 
Postage 
Printjng 
Promotion/ Advertising 
Office Supplies/Maintenance 

Utilities 
Board Expense 
Literature 
Rent 
Phone and FAX 
Depreciation 
Payroll Taxes 
Medicare Taxes 
Legal and Audit 
Together Way 
Misc. 
Scholarships 
Flowers/Gifts 
Bank Service Charges 
Misc. Receipts 
Build My Church 
Land/Building 
FM Exchange 

TOTAL 

c 

Administrative Missionary Total 

$400,000.00 $2,500,000.00 $2,900,000.00 

$20,000.00 
$20,000.00 

$20,000.00 $40,000.00 $60,000.00 

$85.000.00 $50,000.00 $135,000.00 

$10,000.00 
$10,000.00 

$75,000.00 $160,000.00 $235,000.00 

$45,000.00 $50.000.00 $95,000.00 

$75.000.00 $65,000.00 $140,000.00 

$75,000.00 $5,000.00 $80,000.00 

$20.000.00 
$20,000.00 

$15,000.00 
$15,000.00 

$17,000.00 
$17,000.00 

$20,000.00 $50,000.00 $70,000.00 

$55,242.00 
$55,242.00 

$6,000.00 
$6,000.00 

$20,000.00 
$20,000.00 

$12,000.00 
$12,000.00 

$3,000.00 
$3,000.00 

$5,000.00 
$5,000.00 

$2.500.00 
$2,500.00 

$7,758.00 $17,000.00 $24,758.00 

$10.000.00 
$10,000.00 

$2,000.00 
$2,000.00 

$2,500.00 
$2,500.00 

$5,000.00 $5,000.00 

$125.000.00 
$125,000.00 

$4 25,000.00 $425,000.00 

$5,000.00 $5,000.00 

$1 ' 128,000.00 $3,372,000.00 $4,500,000.00 
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CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 

December 31. 2003 and 2002 
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WARREN. D ENNEY & W ALLACE 
00< I FlED PUBUC ACOOUHTAH!S 

llE IIOt.UHTWI 9I.OG 
SUTE 100 

319PWS PARK BlYO 
~TN S7217 1081 

(81.5)-5100 AMERICAH 1NSlTTU1E OF ....-
IIOII[RfRAT~ a>,_ 
W1LJJN11 H OENHET. a>A 
l)llfffiii\IC£W~ a>A 
JOEl 0 00UJ11o1 Jfl CI'A 
JAH£f W LEE a> A 

00<1 ifiED PUBUC ACOOUHTAH!S 
TENHESSEE SOCIE1Y OF 

To the Board of Trustees of the 
Church Extension Loan Fund 
Antioch, Tennessee 

INDEPENDENT AUDiTOR'S REPORT 

00< I FlED PU8UC ACOOUHTNfiS 

We have audited the accompanying statementa of f'inancial position of the Church Extension Loan 
Fund (a nonprofit organization) as of December 31. 2003 and 2002, and the related statements of 
activities and cash flows for the years then ended. These financtal statements are the responsibility of 
the Organization's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 

statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with aud1ting standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportmg the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall finanCial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opiruon. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects. 
the financial position of the Church Extension Loan Fund as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the 
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

January 30, 2004 
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CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Statements of Financial Position 

December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Assets 
Cash· Note 6 
Investment in trust 
Notes re~eivable . Notes 1, 4 & 8 
Accrued mterest receivable 
Property and equipment. at cost, less 
accumulated depreciation of $13 835 

($30,168 in 2002). Notes 1 & 2 ' 

Total assets 

ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Liabilities 
Account~ payable. related party. Note 4 
Accrued mterest 
Revocable and irrevocable trusts . Note 9 
Deferred compensation . Note 10 
Notes payable · Notes 3, 4 & 8 

Net assets 
Unrestricted 

Total liabilities 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountants' report and accompanyi 
notes to the financial statements. ng 

·2· 

A- 158 

2003 

$ 1,012,870 
517,272 

17,229,371 
100,505 

12.133 

$18,872.151 

$ 58,595 
6,686 

1,637,629 
216,210 

15.289.730 

17.208.850 

1.663.301 

1.663,301 

U8..8_72.l5.1 

2002 

$ 2,360,479 

16,509,893 
116,945 

ll8±987,3l_7 

$ 11,845 
6,697 

1,629,519 
216,210 

15.539.767 

17.404,038 

1.583.279 

1.583.279 

$18,987 317 

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Statements of Activities 

For the Years Ended December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Qperatine: 
Revenue 

Investment income 
Interest income on notes receivable 
Management fee 
Other revenue 

Expenses 
Interest expense 
Office expense 
Auto and travel 
Management fee · Note 4 
Promotion 
Postage 
Professional fees 
Depreciation 
Build My Church Project expense 
Transfer to Free Will Baptists Home Missions 

Increase (decrease) in operating net assets 

Build Mv Church · Note 5 
Revenue 

Designated contributions 

Expenses 

Increase (decrease) in Build My Church net assets 

Total increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets · beginning of year 

Net assets · end of year 

See accountants' renort and accompanYing 
notes to the financial statements. 
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$ 

Unrestricted 
2003 2002 

21,485 
1,273,411 

6,420 
1 555 

1.302.871 

944,681 
3,807 

35,199 
180,000 

12,624 
2,579 
5,519 
1,867 

58,000 
58.595 

1.302.871 

.o. 

80,022 

.o. 

80.022 

80,022 

1.583.279 

~ Ui~3,3Ql 

$ 11,811 
1,349,220 

7,046 

1.368.077 

1,035,683 
4,429 

28,928 
200,000 

10,729 
2,791 
5,010 
3,662 

65,000 
11.845 

1.368.077 

·0· 

57,676 

·0· 

57,676 

57,676 

1.525.603 

$ 1,58~,279 
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CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN E1JND 
Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Operating activities 
ln~rease (decrease) in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets 
to net ~sh provided (used) by operating a f .ti . 

Depreciation c JVI es. 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable 
Increase (decrease) in deferred compensation 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Investing activities 
Additi~ns to notes and bonds receivable 
Collection on notes receivable 
A?ditions to investment in trusts 
Disbursements from investment in trusts 
Purchase of new equipment 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Financing activities 
Addition to trusts 
Termination of trusts 
Additions to notes payable 
Repayment of notes payable 

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Supplemental disclosures 
Interest received 

Interest paid 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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2003 2002 

$ 80,022 $ 57,676 

1,867 3,662 

16,440 599 
46,750 ( 137,506) 

( 11) ( 121,941) 
( 70.199) 

145,Q6B ( g67, 70ID 

( 4,595,606) ( 3, 715,548) 
3,876,128 1,923,291 

( 1,517,272) 
1,000,000 

( 14.000) 

( 1,250, 7fiQ) ( 1,7~2.251) 

92,351 97,474 
( 84,241) ( 84,705) 

2,874,105 4,717,517 
( 3.124,142) ( 1.894,766) 

( 241.927) 2,835,520 

( 1,347,609) 775,554 

2,360.47~ l.fi84.925 

i LQl2,87Q ~ g,a,§iU79 

$ 1.311,336 $ 1.357.397 

$ 944,692 $ 1,161.624 

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies 

The Church Extension Loan Fund is a nonprofit organization under the direction 
of the Board of Home Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists of the 
United States of America, Inc. located in Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose of the Fund is 
to loan money to Free Will Baptist Churches, primarily Home Mission Churches, for 
purchase of land and buildings. The Organization's support comes primarily from 
interest on notes receivable. 

The Fund is exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists, Inc. In addition, the Fund has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service 
not to be a "private foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. There was no unrelated business income for 2003 and 2002. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed in the 
preparation of the financial statements: 

Basis of accounting 

The Fund prepares its financial statements using the accrual method of 
accounting which involves the application of U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles; consequently, revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and expenses 
and losses are recognized when incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) 
No. 117, Financial Statements of Not· for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 117, the 
Fund is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net 
assets, and permanently restricted net assets. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles includes the use of estimates that affect the financial 
statements. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Contributions 

The Fund accounts for contributions in accordance with the recommendations of 
the Financial Accounting Standards Board in SFAS No. 116, Accounting for Contributions 
Received and Contributions Made. In accordance with SFAS No. 116, contributions 
received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted 
support, depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions. 

-5-
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Note 1-

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 

Contributions (continued) 

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or 
permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restriction. When a 
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated lime restriction ends or purpose restriction 
is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net 
assets and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 
The Fund bas no temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net assets. 

Property and equipment and deoreciation 

The Fund follows the practice of capitalizing, at cost, all expendjtures for property 
and equipment in excess of $500 with a useful life of at least two years. Depreciation is 
computed on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets generally as follows: 

Automobile 
Office equipment 

5 years 
5 years 

The net property and equipment balance has been recorded as a separate 
component in unrestricted net assets. 

Investments 

Investments are composed of equity securities and are valued at quoted market 
pnce. 

Notes receivable 

The Fund loans money to Free Will Baptist Churches, primarily Home Mission 
Churches, for the purchase of land and buildings. Each church is required to give a first 
mortgage on the proper ty or sign a deed of trust. Principal and interest on the loans is 
payable monthly at 7.0% (8.5% in 2002) over a fifteen to twenty year period except for 
churches still under construction whlch are required to pay interest only. The Board of 
Trustees changes the rate on these notes receivable as other interest rates change. The 
carrying value of these loans approximates market value. The churches are located 
throughout the United States. 

The aggregate maturities of these notes are as follows: 

2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 

Thereafter 

-6-
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$ 894,261 
958,907 

1,028,226 
1,102,557 
1,182,261 

12.063.159 
$17.229.371 

Note 1-

Note 2-

Note 3-

Note 4-

QHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
NOtes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 

Allowance for doubtful accounts . 

'd accounts and notes receivable to be fully collectible; 
Management cons1 ers . . _ d 

dingly no allowance for doubtful accounts lS requue . 
accor • 

Cash equivalents 
. h t 'ty of three months 

'd II highly Liquid investments wit a ma un The Fund cons1 ers a . 
h based to be cash equtvalents. or less w en pure 

Property and equipment 

A summary of property and equipment follows: 

Automobile 
Office equipment 

Accumulated depreciation 

2003 
$ 14,000 

11.968 
25,968 

( 13.835) 
$.__12,133 

2002 
$ 18,200 

11.968 
30,168 

( 30.16~ 

$~=~ 

Notes payable 
o ~%in 2002) unsecured demand notes from 

Notes payable consist. of 3 - 5 x, (5 - 6 then loaned to churches to help 
Th eds of these notes are 

individuals and churches. . ~ proce Bo d £Trustees change the interest rates on 
them purchase land and buildings. The ar o 
these notes payable as other interest rates change. 

Related party transactions 
Missions of the National Association of r'ree 

The Fund paid the Board of Home 80 000 ($200 000 at December 31, 2002) to 
Will Baptists, Inc. a managemen.t f~e of :1 ~ rent ~nd other expenses paid by the 
reimburse the Board of Home ~sJons :::vC:tZd in the note payable of the Fund. The 
Board. The Board of Home Mtsslons ba f Home Missions at year-end was $-0-
balance of thls note pay~b~~~;t~~~nod had accounts payable to the Board of Home 
($34,?36 ~t December 3 'r $SS 595 ($ll,S45 at December 31, 2002). 
Missions 10 the amount o • 

-7-
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Note 5-

Note 6 -

Note 7-

Note 8-

...... 

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Designated contributions 

The designated contributions are amounts given to the "Build My Church" 
program. The monies given to this program are loaned t.o churches in the same manner 
that other funds are loaned to churches. The total amount given for the first phase of the 
Build My Church program has reached $1,000,000. In accordance with the provisions of 
the program payments totaling $58,000 ($65,000 at December 31, 2002) were made 
subsequent to year-end to lhe land funds of two Home Mission's Churches from the 
interest earned on loans made with Build My Church contributions. A second phase of 
the Build My Church program bas begun. When the total amount given through the 
second phase of Build My Church program reaches $1,000,000, then the interest earned 
from the loans made with the program will be used to assist the Cross Cultural Ministry 
and the Home Missions General Fund. The total amount given through the end of the 
year is $1,625,251 ($1,545,229 at December 31, 2002). 

Concentration of credit risk 

The Fund maintains cash deposits in excess of the federally insured amount of 
$100,000. At December 31, 2003, the excess amount over the federaJiy insured limit was 
$912,870 ($2,260,479 in 2002). However, the Fund has a cash management agreement 
with a local bank wh1ch invests any excess cash overnight in U.S. Government Securities 
under a repurchase agreement. The amount invested under this agreement was 
$1,094,000 ($2,321,000 in 2002). Any cash invested under this agreement should, under 
the terms of this agreement, be collateralized by U.S. Government Securities. 

The Fund also has $517,272 in a trust with the Free Will Baptist Foundation. 
This trust is uninsured_ 

Fair value of financial instruments 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Organization in 
estimating its fair value disclosures for financial instruments: 

Cash, accrued interest receivable, investment in Free Will Baptist Foundation, 
payables, accrued interest payable and deferred compensation: The carrying amounts 
reported in the statements of financial position approximate fair values because of the 
short maturities of those instruments. 

Notes receivable and bonds receivable: Based on current interest rates, the 
carrying value approximates the fair value of the notes receivable and bonds receivable at 
December 31, 2003 and 2002. 

Notes payable and trusts: Based on current interest rates, the carrying value 
approximates the fair value of the notes payable and trusts at December 31, 2003 and 
2002. 

Concentration 

Included in notes receivable at December 31, 2003 are twenty-six which total 
$9,585,922 (twenty-two loans which total $8,372,804 in 2002). This balance represents 
55.64% (50.71% in 2002) of total notes receivable. 

-8-
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Note 8-

Note 9-

Note 10 -

QHYRCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31.2003 and 2002 

Concentration (continued) 
. h. h total $9 424 264 or 61.64% (sixty-two 

Notes payable include ftfty-~~e. 00~~~ :; total note~ pa~able. Of these fifty-nine 
notes which total $9,921,738 or 63.8 om tal $1 168 623 or 7.64% (two notes total 
(sixty-two in 2002) notes payable. three to ' • 
$1.000,000 or 6.44% in 2002) of total notes payable. 

Revocable and irrevocable trusts 
bl haritable remainder trusts pay interest at 

Eleven irrevocable and four revoca e c d to make mortgage loans. Interest 
6-9% per year. The principal of th~se ~1us;~~a::~~nted to $131,031 ($131,551 at 
expense for the year ended Decem er • ~ 
December 31, 2002). 

Deferred compensation 
. . s trusts transferred from the Board of 

Deferred compeo~tJOn repre~~m.ts sar;g Will Baptists for the benefit of their 
Home Missions of the National AssocJat~on o. :nt or departure from Home Missions. 
principal and other employees upo~ t~elr retlr~ a ension plan. After the pension plan 
During 2001 the Board of Home.MIShsLOns .adoptrustspwere transferred to the pension plan 
was adopted all of the accounts m t e saVlDgs. 
except for the account of the retired general dJrector. 

-9-
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MASTER'S MEN 
Free Will Baptist Men's Ministry 

Master's Men 
The Men's Ministry of the National Association of Free Will Baptists 

The Lord continued to bless our department in 2003. We added 13 new chapters 
from I 0 different states. We continued to provide opportunities for our men to be 
involved in activities through our department. We took a group of ten people to 
Fairbanks, Alaska to help Home Missionaries. Ron and Janice Wallace. work on their 
new building. We held our Annual Master' Men Retreat at Camp Linden, TN, with over 
forty men present. We continued to see men gathering for fellowship as we hosted our 
Deep South and National Golf Tournaments as well as our National Softball Tournament. 

We once again joined hand in hand with our other National Departments. In 
ApriL we collaborated with WNAC for our Second Marriage Enrichment Conference in 
Pigeon Forge, TN. We had fifty couples from eleven states join us there. We also 
supported Home Mic;sion through Operation Saturation, our mission trip to Alaska and 
developed a notebook for short term miss ion trips. We introduced one new Bible Study 
in our Direction Bible Study Series, The Walk. 

We conti nue to pray and labor for the men of our denomination. Continual1y 
asking God to stir the hearts of our men and burden them for the challenge that is before 
them. 

Your Fellow Servant, 

Kenneth W. Akers 
General Director 

March 28, 2003 

Master's Men 
Synopsis of Board Meeting 

Received Director's report; Discussed annual retreat at Camp Linden; Approved Alaska 
Mission Trip; Approved auditor for 2003; Declined offer from Howard Gwartney to 
assume 1 ~~ mortgage on house; Motion to send letter to Executive Board expressing 
concern over nominating process: Discussed National Convention; Set Dec. board 
meeting; Reviewed 2005 Budget: Adjourned. 

December 8, 2003 
Discussed audit and adjustments; Discussed Life membership endowment; recommended 
Director make Operation Saturation a yearly event with ~>trong spi ri tual emphasis; 
Discussed Director and Staff Salary; Adjourned. 
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THE MASTER'S MEN, 
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LESLIE AND BECKMAN 
C::RTIFlED PUBUC A<X:OUNTANT 

To the Board of Directors of 
The Master's Men 
Antioch, Tennessee 

UNDAB.l.ESUE, CJlA 
TAMARA L BECXMAN, CPA 

11 SOUTH]EFFERSONAVENUE 
(X)()KEVIUE, 1N 38501 
(931) 52(,.. 5+89 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position ofThe Master's Men (a 
nonprofit organization) as of December 31, 2003, and the related statements of activities, and 
cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of The 
Master's Men's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generatly accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and pcrfonn the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position ofThe Master's Men as of December 31,2003, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in confonnity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

April 25, 2004 
Cookeville, Tennessee 

A .. 168 

.. ~ 
' . 

THE MASTER'S MEN 
STATE~IENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

DECEI\1.BER 31, 2003 

Current Assets 
- Cash 

Trust Account-Build a House 
Trust Account-Lifetime Members 
Investments 
Interest Receivable 
Inventory 
Accounts Receivable 
Notes Receivable 

Total Current Assets 

Fixed Assets 

Equipment and furniture . 
Accum. Depreciation-Eqmp!Fum. 
Capitalized Leases 
Accum. Amortization--Cap. Leases 

Total Fixed Assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 
Deferred Revenue 
Other Accrued Expenses 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Pennanently Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

$ 8,281.38 

$ 
< 

< 

$ 

406.06 
106,665.14 

13.34 
2,650.00 

430.00 
4,866.16 

53,000.00 

50,276.00 
37,358.52> 
4,018.00 
2,511.78> 

2,218.00 
605.00 
929.01 

$ 172,690.75 
14,293.02 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

. 1 art of the financial statements 
The accompanying notes are an mtrega P 
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$ 176,3 12.08 

14 423.70 

$_ 190.135.18 

$ 3,752.01 

186,983.77 
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THE .MASTER'S MEN 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

DECEMBER 31, 2003 

Unrt>stricted Net Assets 
Support 

Gifts and donations 
Dues from members 
Cooperative Program 
Merchandise Sales 
Tournament & Conference income 
Interest income 
Unrealized gain on Investments 

Total Unrestricted Support 

Expenses 
Salaries and wages 
PR Taxes and employee benefits 
Cost of sales and printing 
Travel expense 
Conferences & Conventions 
Office expense 
Telephone 
Postage 
Rent expense 
Professional fees 
Bookkeeping expense 
Ministry & Resource Development 
Tournament Expense 
Dues, subscriptions, fees 
Depreciation expense 
Amortization expense 
Miscellaneous expense 

Total Expenses 

Increase in unrestricted net assets 

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 

Designated Gifts 
Life Membership Dues 

Total temporarily restricted net assets 

Increase in Net Assets 
Net Assets at Beginning ofYear 

Net Asset at End of Year 

$ 17,866.78 
19,831.00 
66,759.28 
2,217.26 

50,610.27 
7,379.95 
6.640.52 

$62,937.30 
7,294.07 
4,836.06 
7,195.96 

13,044.50 
6,206.08 
2,675.95 
2,005.68 

18,601.00 
2,475.00 

900.00 
1,933.30 

26,061.70 
1,084.66 
5,344.45 

200.89 
1.711.82 

4,600.00 
25.00 

The accompanying notes are an intregai part of the financial statement 
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$171,305.06 

164,508.42 

6,796.64 

4.625.00 

11,42l.64 
175.562.13 

$186.983.77 

THE l\fASTER'S MEN 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

DECEMBER 31,2003 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Increase in net assets 

Adjustments to reconcile increase in ~ct . . . 
assets to net cash provided by operatmg actlvttlcs: 

Depreciation 
Amortization 
Unrealized gain on investments 
Interest on investments 

(Increase) decrease in operating assets 
Accounts receivable 

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Deferred Revenue 
Other Accrued Expenses 

Total 

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Fixed Assets Purchased 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
New Loan 
Principle Payments 

$ 5,344.45 
200.89 

< 6,640.52> 
< 6.611.79> 

< 423.00> 

1,604.41 
215.00 

< 248.41> 

4,000.00 
< 4,000.00> 

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The accompanying notes are an intregal part of the financial statements 
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$ 11,421.64 

< 6.558.97> 

4,862.67 

< 4,040.00> 

822.67 

7 458.71 

~ 8.281 38 
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THE MASTER'S MEN 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2003 

Note 1 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Governing Body 
The Master's Men operates under the auspices of the National Association of free Will 
Baptists and is governed by a Board of Directors. 

Basis of Accounting 
The accompanying financial statements of The Master's Men have been prepared on the 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenditures are 
recognized when incurred. 

Financial Statement Presentation 
The Department follows Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SF AS) No. ll7, 
Financial Statements of Not for-Profit Organizations. Under SF AS No.ll7, the 
Department is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
accordingly according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily 
restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. In addition, the Department is 
required to present a statement of cash .flows. As permitted by this statement, the 
Department has discontinued its use of fund accounting and bas, accordingly, reclassified 
its financial statements to present the three classes of net assets required. 

Promises to Give 
Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the 
Organization that is, in substance, unconditional. Contributions that arc restricted by the 
donor arc reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the 
fisca l year in which the contributions arc recognized. All other donor-restricted 
contributions arc reported as increases in temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified 
to unrestricted net assets. 

Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
Receivables are presented in the financial statements at the amount deemed collectible by 
management. Any provision for doubtful accounts is recognized using the direct write­
off method. 

Investments 
The investments arc valued at the lower of cost or market. For gifts, the cost is 
determined by the fair market value of the security at the time of the gift. 

Inventories 
The inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, with cost being determined by 
using the first-in, fi rst-out method. 
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E · t and Depreciation d 
Property, qu•p.mcn t din the fmancial statements at cost an are 
Property and cqutpme~t arel?resen ~ dover the estimated useful lives of the assets 
depreciated by the stratght- me me o 
ranging from 3-20 years. 

Income Taxes . fr federal and state income taxes; accordingly, no provision 
The Department ts exempt om 
for income taxes is made in the financial statements. 

Estimates . formity with generally accepted accounting 
The preparation of financial statements to c~n t and assumptions that affect certain 

. t to make esttma es 
principles requtres man~gemen A d. ly actual results could differ from those 
reported amounts and dtsclosures. ccor mg , 

estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents f h flow the Department considers all highly liquid 
For purpose of ~e statement o cas . ' d initial maturity of three months or less to 
investments available for current use wtth an 
be cash equivalents. 

Note 2 - Property and Equipment 
. t owned by the Department at December 

The following is a summary of property and eqUtpmen 

31,2003: 

Equipment and furniture . . 
Less: Accumulated Deprectatton 

Property and Equipment, Net 

$ 50,276.00 
37.358.52 

$ 12,917,48 

Note 3 Capitalized Leases 
. . urchased an office building to house various 

The National Association ofFree Will ~ap~Jsts PTh B d of Directors has entered into an 
departments and agencies. of t~c deno~a.tton~d ae ~:to contribute to the debt service co~ts 
agreement to lease space m. this new butld~ge until~e debt has been retired. The constructton 
during the construction penod and ~o ~ontinu d b . amortized over a period of twenty years. 
period costs of $4,0 18.00 were capitalized a~ t ~e m:fzation as of December 31, 2003 were 
Amortization expense for 2003 and accumu a e a 
$200.89 and $2,511.78, respectively. 

Note 4 Notes Receivable 

. . f the Department's notes receivable at December 31' 2003 
Followmg IS a summary o 

Note receivable from Howard Gwartney; 
Locust Grove, Oklahoma; dated May 10, 2001; 

Due upon demand 
$ 53,000.00 

Interest receivable on this note at December 31, 2003 was $ 
2,650.00. 

6 

A- 173 



-

Note 5 - Deferred Revenue 

Deferred revenue consists of golf tournament fees and life membership dues received for future 
years as of December 31,2003. There were no deferred meal tickets for 2003. 

Note 6 - Related Parties 

A loan of $4,000.00 was received in May 2003 from the director to purchase a car. The loan was 
paid back in October 2003 and no balance was due at December 31, 2003. 

Note 7- Restricted Fund Balance 

The restricted fund balance is revenue designated for specific projects and consists of the 
following as of December 3 1, 2003. 

Missions 
Build A House campaign 
Lifetime Membership 
Master's Hands Projects 

Total 

7 

$ 11,422.33 
48,676.00 
98,642.42 
13.950.00 

$172.690,75 
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Office Operations 
Rent 
Equipment & Supplies 
Telephone 
Postage 
Total 

Accounting 
Bookkeeping 
Audit 
Total 

Resource Development 
Printed Materials 
Total 

Department Travel 
National Association 

Salaries 
Director 

Salary 
Housing 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Total 

Secretary 
Wages (40 hrs/Wk@8.50) 
FICA 
MED 
Total 

Total Salaries 

Total Expenses 

Salary Breakdown 

2002 2003 2004 2005 Director 
31,880 31,880 31,880 Salary 30,600 

19,800 20,400 20,400 20,400 Housing 
2,460 2,61 4 2,614 2,614 Retirement 
8,400 3,600 6,500 6,500 Insurance 

61,260 58,494 61,394 61,394 Total 

Proposed Budget for 2005 

ExQenses Income 

Dues 21,000 
22,692 

6,000 
6,000 Father's Day Offering 

71,720 Together Way 3,000 
4,000 

2,500 Softball 
4,000 34,192 Golf 
9,000 Gifts 

Sales 6,000 

Endowment Income 8,000 
900 

5,000 BAH 1,500 
Master's Men Conferences 2,000 2,400 

136,720 Total Income 

7,200 
7,200 

10,000 
2,500 

31,880 
20,400 

2,61 4 
6,500 

61,394 

17,680 
1,097 

257 
19,034 

80,428 

136,720 
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FOREIGN MISSIONS 

c vaties on our Fields- 2003 A Summary of the A ti .. 

Free Will Baptist Forei M' · . cou~tries in 2003: Brazil, Fra~e, ~~~;~n:v~ont~ued to have missionaries on the ground in ten 
Spam, and Uruguay. In addition we w . rt oa~t, Japan, Panama, Russia, South Kor 
Partnerships with two non-gove,;,men.::~rwtth natiOnal pastors in Cuba, Nepal, and Ch;::',; 
BaptiSt, enable Free Will Baptist people t g~n~zatl~ns (NGOs), one of which is Free Will . 
these restricts the access of traditional . o ~mms_ter tn seven additional countries Each of 

Our internation 1 mi~Sionanes. · 
sustained a efforts are expenencing the blessin f G . . . gr~wth. Ten years ago, in 1993 w g~ o od as we see SJgmficant and 
With a co~bmed atten~ance of7,397. T~oue ~,~ 2:0 orgamzed chur~h.es and mission works 
procla~~tiOD of Our miSSiOnaries and nation r od S power and prOVISIOn, and the faithful 
and miSSIOn works with a combined attend a pastors, we now have 690 organized churches 
recorded 2, 153 salvation decisions. ance of 26,902. Jn 2003 overseas ministries 

30,000 

25,000 

20,000 

15,000 

10,000 

5,000 

0 

Overseas Attendance Growth 
(Last 10 Years) 

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 

Nearly 300 students are enrolled in B 'bl . . acce~erate the efforts of church planting M I e ~~tutes and seminaries. This promises to 
ordamed, and lay pre~c~ers with whom ~e :;k~ ese students will join over 400 licensed, 

Eleven new missionaries went to the tiel . . 
Derby (M-Team in France); Tim and Di K d(~ 2003. !hey mclude: Micah and Becky 

eener -Team m France); Darren and Dana Portell 
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(M-Team in France); Joni Thomas (Japan); Matthew and Brooke Turnbough (Spain); and. 
sean and Jill Warren (M-Team in France). In addition, nine career and three short-term 

missionaries received preliminary or final approval. 
As these begin their missionary service we mourn the loss of two former foreign 

missionaries. Marvis Eagleton passed away on February 2 1, 2003. She and her husband, Ken, 
served as missionaries in Brazil from 1958-1999. Damon Dodd passed away on April 2 7, 
2003. He and his wife, Sylvia, served in the early days of our work in Cuba. 

ln 2002 we evacuated all of our missionary personnel from Jvory Coast because of the 
civil war and accelerated anarchy. In July of2003 two couples returned to Abidjan. One of 
these couples served in an area still under rebel control. Circumstances did not allow them to 
stay. They have since resigned and returned to the States. The situation has improved some in 
the first ha If of 2004. The missionaries still assigned to Ivory Coast plan to return before the 

end of this year. Denominational mobilization efforts have quickened as more individuals and churches 
find their role in global evangelism. Ten years ago few Free Will Baptists traveled to our 
mission fields to use their gifts, training. and abilities. Now it is almost impossible to track 

how many are involved. The Missionary-In-Residence house was dedicated on the campus of Free Will Baptist 
Bible College in Nashville, Tennessee. It was named the Laura Belle Barnard House in 
memory ofthe fi rst missionary ofthe reorganized denomination in 1935. Over 100 men and 
women donated their skills to completely remodel the house. Special thanks goes to Women 
Nationally Active for Christ and Master's Men for their sacrificial help. 

2003 - Financial Summary 

The economy here in the States continued to be sluggish throughout 2003. For the last 
two years many missions agencies have seen a decrease in giving. That has not been the case 
with Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions. In 2002 income gained 3.4% over 2001. In 2003 
that grew substantially to a 9.3% gain over 2002. This was a record year in giving as income 

surged to $6,2 10,7 10.57. 

1 .7% 

Interest, Gains, Misc. 
$106,466 

2003 Sources of Income 
$6,210,710.57 
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Expenses for 2003 were $5 691 5 I 8 79 . 
grew by 4.5%. This co · . ' ' · · ~ereas mcome grew by 9.3% 

First FWB Church Florence sc 26,017.49 Praise the Lord! mbmatJOn allowed the Mtssion to end in the black by $5,1 ~xf;7s;s only 20 
' . 8. 21 Ina FWB Church Ina IL 23,883.00 

Total Expenditures for 2003 
?? Peace FWB Church Florence sc 23,702.89 --
23 Bethel FWB Church Kinston NC 23,507.00 

$5,691 ,518.79 
24 Franklin Communi ty Church Franklin TN 21.477.27 

M 
25 Bethel FWB Church South Roxana fL 21,288.33 

26 Cofer's Chapel FWB Church Nashv ille TN 20,792.46 

Department r,..vel 27 Good Springs FWB Church Pleasant View TN 20,020.92 
and Board 28 Westside FWB Church Johnsonville sc 19,405.98 $124.496.23 Missionary 

Mlsslona;x Field 
Medical and 29 First FWB Church Jacksonville NC 18,373.25 tmu,..nce 

Supporting lnl•trfes $421 .706.80 Sand Hill FWB Church Coward sc 18,309.32 $897.488.97 30 
31 Parker's Chapel FWB Church Greenville NC 18,175.00 

Mlsalo .. ry Auto Mlulonary Field 32 Townsend FWB Church Townsend DE 18,046.77 
r,..n&portallon 

Missionary Social M~~!11~~~ry 
Housing 

$183,039.46 $453,576.86 33 Locust Grove FWB Church Locust Grove OK 17,878.00 Security and $334 943 •98 Retorement • · 
34 Tippett's Chapel FWB Church Clayton NC 17,870.02 $398,328.19 

~ 2003~ 1,522 churches and hundreds ofind' . . . 
35 Liberty Bible FWB Church Gainesville GA 17,775.25 

36 New Hope FWB Church Ina IL 17,444.60 
Free ~til Bapttst Foreign Missions (up from 1 422 ;vJduals supporte~ mtsstons efforts through 37 Peace FWB Church Wilson NC 17.094.87 
the Wtlness of Christ around the world. We w~uld liast yea~). Each. grft enabled us to extend 38 Verdella FWB Church Liberal MO 17,081.66 
churches that gave over $10 000 ln 2003 keto gtve spectal recognition to those 
80 last year). ' · we recorded 90 churches in this category (up from 39 Ruth's Chapel FWB Church New Bern NC 16,506.45 

40 Gilead FWB Church Scranton sc 15,927.02 
I Donelson FWB Church 41 First FWB Church Star City AR 15.862.78 

Nashville 2 Unity FWB Church lN S I 04,874.42 42 Woodward FWB Church Woodward OK 15,478.50 
3 Victory FWB Church 

Greenville NC 90,874.86 15,445.46 East Wenatchee 43 First FWB Church Beaufort NC 
4 Limestone FWB Church WA 84,592.76 
5 Limestone 44 Bethlehem FWB Church Ashland Cit) TN 15.204.00 

First FWB Church TN 84,104.00 Russellville 45 Piney Grove FWB Church Chipley FL 15,203.20 6 Nonnan First FWB Church AR 67,347.83 
7 Central FWB Church 

Nonnan OK 55,330.00 
46 Bethany FWB Church Timmonsville sc 14,692.50 

8 Macedonia FWB Church 
Royal Oak MI 44,498.02 

47 Porter FWB Church Portsmouth OH 14,667.39 

9 Purdy 48 First FWB Church Washington NC 14,657.87 Firs£ FWB Church MO 42,497.23 
10 Kirby FWB Church 

Albany GA 38,903.47 49 Allen Chapel FWB Church Batesvi lle AR 13,93 7.08 
J I Pleasant Acres fWB Church 

Taylor Ml 35,591.55 50 First Bible FWB Church New Castle IN 13,879.92 
NewBern 12 Bethany FWA Church NC 34,409. I 6 51 Winfield First FWB Church Winfield AL 13,756.85 

13 Horse Branch FWB Church 
Broken Arrow OK 32,654.89 52 Southern Oaks FWB Church Oklahoma City OK 13,751.00 

14 Cross Timbers FWB Church 
Turbeville sc 32, 147.96 Nashville 53 First FWB Church Ada OK 13,452.50 

15 Fellowship FWB Church TN 31,526. 13 
16 Kingsport 54 Piney Grove FWB Church Guin AL 13,391.95 

Gamer FWB Church TN 28,661.66 
17 Hannon FWB Church 

Gamer NC 27,840.30 
55 Trinity FWB Church Darlington MD 13,327.08 

Liberal 56 Liberty FWB Church Lancaster sc 13,160.00 18 Sherwood F orcst FWB Church MO 27,016.00 
19 New Bern 57 Faith FWB Church Goldsboro NC 13,141.10 First FWB Church N LitrJe Rock NC 26,598.98 

N Little Rock AR 26,486.98 58 Calvary Fellowship FWBC Fenton MO 13,140.50 

59 Red Bay FWB Church Red Bay AL 12,965.98 

3 60 Westerville FWB Church Westerville OH 12,929.09 

61 Temple FWB Church Greenville NC 12,753.59 

62 Mt Olive FWB Church Guin AL 12,662.11 
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63 First FWB Church Northport AL 12,466.68 
64 Double Branch FWB Church Unadilla GA 12,385.75 
65 Nev. Hope FWB Church Joelton TN 12,287.81 
66 Ca"anaugh FWB Church Fort Smith AR 12,237.92 
67 Huntsville FWB Ch urch Huntsville AL 12,085.41 
68 Gospel L1ght FWB Church Bonne Terre MO 12,000.00 
69 Umon Chapel FWB Church Choco'"' inity NC II ,961.00 
70 Poplar Springs FWB Church Glen MS 11,957.45 
71 Temple FWB Church Darlington sc 11,759.57 
72 Bcllvicw FWB Church Colquitt GA 11 ,409.1 4 
73 f irst FWB Church Darlington sc 11.408.00 
74 Calvary FWB Church Nonnan OK 11 ,390.00 
75 Calvary FWB Church Norman OK II ,290.00 
76 Landmark FWB Church Cary NC II ,205.09 
77 Harrah FWB Church Harrah OK 10,761.00 
78 Uni ty FWB Church Smithfield NC 10,731.86 
79 Rejoice First FWB Church Owasso OK 10,675.00 
80 Phillip's Chapel FWD Church Northport AL 10,623.92 
81 Harvest FWB Church Fort Wayne fN 10,588.79 
82 Statesboro FWB Church Statesboro GA 10,529.35 
83 Oak Park FWB Church Pine BlufT AR 10,448.75 
84 Tupelo FWB Church Tupelo MS 10,405.38 
85 Immanuel FWB Church Durham NC 10,373.00 
86 Mt. Zion FWB Church Pell C ity AL 10,338.05 
87 Cramerton FWB Church Cramerton NC 10,238.95 
88 Harrison FWB Church Minford OH 10,200.00 
89 First FWB Church Springtield MO 10,145.74 
90 New Haven FWB Church Ernul NC 10,107.61 

M issio;:.ec ial recognition also is due the top 10 states in giving to Free W ill Baptist Fore ign 

~ennessee ... _. ...... ....................................... $97 1 ,690.99 

M~rth C~olma ········································· 72 1,144.83 

Ar
lkssoun ····················· 5.>"'.>"', 147.78 •••••••••••• 0 •••••••••••• 0 •••• 

Okl ansas ................................................... 532,099.43 
S ~oma ... _. ............................................. 506,981.40 

ou Carohna ......................................... 441 ,983 _17 
Alabama......................... 357 G · ········· ················· 446.09 

eorgJa ............... · 1 74,698 ?2 Illinois . ······················· ············· - • ·-
Michi ~·:················································· 227.186.00 

g ····················· ? J7?51 19 ••••••••••• 0 •••• 0 •• 0 0 •••••• 0 - ~-. 0 
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Churches giving over $1,000 to the World Missions Offering 

The World Missions Offering in April is the major fundraising effort for the su pport of 
denominational mobilization s tateside. Our ability to continue a fof\\.ard advance is d irectly 
proportionate to the growth in this offering. Each year a special thrust for this offer ing is made 
by Women Nationally Active for Christ. In 2003 they gave $23,304 .22. Once again, thank 
you ladies. Below is also a list of the churches which gave over$ I ,000 for this offering. 
While 33 churches gave over $1,000 in 2002, that number was increased to 38 in 2003. 

Unity FWB Church Greenville NC $4,036.00 

West Tulsa FWB Church Tulsa OK 3,950.00 

First FWB Church Poteau OK 3,540.45 

Sand I I ill FWB Church Coward sc 3,000.00 

I !eritage FWB Church Columbus OH 2,569.43 

Horse Branch FWB Church Turbevi lie sc 2,124.50 

Piney Grove FWB Church Guin AL 2,000.00 

Good Springs FWB Church Pleasanl View TN I ,896.00 

First fWB Church Stanley NC 1,788.00 

Oakwood FWB Church Woodlawn TN 1,727.00 

Wyandotte FWB Church Manstield OH 1,700.00 

Prospect FWB Church Erwin NC 1,536.91 

first FWB Church Russellville AR 1,522.72 

Double Branch FWB Church Unad1lla GA 1.500.00 

Fir:.t FWB Church Dickson TN I ,452.00 

Urbana FWB Church Urbana OH 1,350.00 

Ina FWB Church lna IL 1.330.00 

Calvary FWB Church Salem IL 1,324.47 

Vista FWB Church Van Buren AR I ,256.15 

FWB Church of St. Croix St. Croix Vl I ,200.00 

New Hope FWB Church Sumner WA 1,140.20 

Southwest FWB Church Oklahoma City OK 1,120.00 

Cofer's Chapel FWB Church Nashville TN 1.072.75 

Springfield FWB Church Springfidd Oll 1,036.55 

Way oflhe Cross FWBC Shelby NC I .026.00 

Limestone FWB Church Limestone TN 1,025.00 

Ryanwood Fellowship FWBC Vcro Beach FL 1.004.00 

East Nashville FWB Church Nashville TN I ,003.00 

Ballew's Chapel FWB Church Grubbs AR I ,000.00 

Inez FWB Church Inez KY 1,000.00 

Ten M1lc FWB Church Madison Hc1ghts ~1 1.000.00 

Bethd FWB Church Kinston NC 1,000.00 

Rocky Pass FWB Church Marion NC I ,000.00 

Community FWB Church West Jefferson OH 1,000.00 

Northridge FWB Church Guymon OK 1.000.00 
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Bethlehem FWB Church 
Woodbine FWB Church 
Thomaston Community FWB 

Ashland City TN 
Nash\ille TN 1,000.00 
Thomaston TX l .000.00 

0 
r.ooo.oo 

. ne of the mobilization targets of the For . . . 
financial underpinning ofthe M' . . elgn MISSIOns Department is to. 
ar . . 1ss1on to provrde a bold 21 s• mcrease the 

ea IS mcredible. Free Will Baptist men and w . cent~ry th~ust. Potential in this 
can be good stewards of the resources God h o.men are mcreasmgly mterested in how th 
unexpected financial blessings and want t ask gJven them. Some have experienced ey 
advance the Kingdom. Others want their ~s:~;~ sure to use their resources in a way that Wtll 

deat~. Est~te. planning promises to be a fertile fi o advance th~ cause of Christ long after their 
:~reJgn MJssrons is determined to conrinue our celd for ~nancJal planning. Free Will Baptist 
e ow shows the contjnued growth of thee d oncert~ effort toward this goal. The table 

S900.ooo 
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n owment WJth the Free Will Baptist Foundation. 

Endowed Amount 0 Earnings 

'- , __ 
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Tribute to our Missionaries and Staff 

Our missionaries serve in man c . 
throughout the. w~rld have negative f:eli~rn::~c:.ted situati~ns throughout the world. Many 
awareness of nsk rn the global evangelismg t ar_d the UnJted States. This bas heightened the 
be a front-burner issue for years to come le~:rpn~;· Unfortunately, terrorism will probably 
serve the Lord with gladness. They are ;igh~ whe mr hst of all the challenges, our missionaries 

ere I ey want to be. 
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The home front team in Foreign Missions is made up of the most dedicated, hard­
working and pleasant people with whom I have had the privilege to work. The past year has 
been very transitional. Three new employees have been hired: Doug Little began working on 
August l, 2003 as the Director of Stateside Development. April Bybee was hired as his 
assistant. Tracy Jennette is the Administrative Assistant to the General Director. Each brings 
a unique and valuable contribution to our team. 

Since the last National Association the three most senior members of our home front 
team in Antioch have retired. Shirley Lauthem (35 years), Don Robirds (32 years), and Carole 
Ragan ( 18 years) brought a priceless contribution to the task. We praise the Lord for their 85 
combined years of selfless service. 

Board Meetings and Actions 

National Association Meeting- JuJy 24, 2003 

After the National Association the Mission had a mini-retreat with the missionaries on 
stateside assignment, retired missionaries, the board and staff. After the retreat the board met 
at the Hampton Inn in Tampa. Members present were: Milton Worthington (chairman), 
Randy Wilson (vice-chairman), Danny Williams (secretary), Bill Jones, Sherwood Lee, Jerry 
Norris, David Shores and Bill Van Winkle. 

Final approval was given to Shane and Joy Davison to serve as career missionaries in Cote 
d'Ivoire. 

The board approved the bylaws of the Hanna Project (NGO). 

A one-year leave of absence was granted to Curt and Mary Holland. A three-month extension 
to their leave of absence was granted to Stan and Brenda Bunch. Dale and Sandra Bishop 
were reappointed to another term of service in Japan. Mike and Deleen Cousineau were 
reappointed to another term of service in Cote d'lvoire. The status of Robert and Pam West 
and Kenneth and Rejane Eagleton was changed to career missionary. 

The following designations were approved from the Anticipated Opportunities budget: $7,500 
was approved in the 2003 budget to be raised for visiting professors in Russia. An additional 
$7,500 was approved in the 2004 budget to be raised for visiting professors in Russia. The 
earnings from the Foundation Endowment Trust #3-238 were designated to Support Services. 

E-mail BaUot- September 23, 2003 

The Board accepted the retirement of Drs. John and Esther Chang to be effective September 
30, 2003. They will, however, continue to supervise Free Will Baptist ministries in Korea and 
the funds sent there through the budget. 
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Conference Call - October 8, 2003 

The following board members art" . . 
(Chairman), Danny Williams (~ec:•pated •.n the conference call: Milton Worthington 
Shores and Bill Van Winkle and G tary)l, DB~ II Jones, Sherwood Lee, Jerry Norris David 

, enera •rector James Forlines. , 

The board approved the composition of the H . 
Conley, secretary-treasurer and Edd' p anna ProJect board: Steve Lytle, chairman R b 
concerning the Hatma Proj;ct were ~~le~yne .. IT~e recommendations from Frank Ingrah~ o 

untJ a er the December board meeting. 

A VISION Project for the South lndi B. . 
to raise $60,000 through th An . . a •ble lnsttt~te was approved. Permission was gran .. ed 

e hcipated Opportumties budget. • 

A retirement bonus was approved for Carole Ragan. 

Semi-Annual Meeting- December 8 and 10, 2003 

Members _p~esent were: Milton Worthington chair . . 
Danny Williams (secretary) Bill Jo Sh ( man), Randy Wilson (vice-chairman) 
Winkle. and David Williford. nes, erwood Lee, Jerry Norris, David Shores, Bill 'van 

Approval was given to Shannon Little to . . serve as a career miSSionary in Japan. 

The newl> revised Handbook was ad . . . 
Emplm·ee Handb k I opted m ItS entirety. The newly revised Home omzce 

· 00 was a so adopted in its entirety. '»' 

The Hanna Project By-laws were amend d - . 
amendments. The amended section read~: by substitution on Article IX which deals with 

9.1 The ?eneral Director of the Board of Forei' . . 
meetmg or at a special meetin call d fi gn MISSions, at any regular annual 
Trustees of the Board ofF ore _gg M ~ . or tha~ purpose, shall present the Board of 

I n tsstons With the proposed amendment· 

9.2 The Board of Trustees of the Board f F . . . , 
amendment under consideration ando ore•gn MISSIOns shall take the 
next meeting subsequent to the ~n ~hall ?ot vote on th~ amendment unti l its 
Free Will Baptists. Approval oft~u:::~sJOn of the ~atJOnal Association of 
Board ofTrustees ofthe Board fF . dm~n~ requires a majority vote of the 

0 ore1gn M ISSJons. 

The Bo;: ::o:ted :e follo~ing r~s~lution concerning the retirement of Don Robirds: 

. oar . of Fore•gn Missions give a special . occ~JOn of hts retirement on December 31 2003 comm~ndatJon to Don Robirds on the 
as missionaries to Brazil and fo th. ' . For eight years he and Carol served 

' r Jrty-two years he served as Director of 
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Communications, Publications, and Public Relations. The rising awareness of the 
needs of an unreached world among our denomination is due largely to Don and his 

sacrificial work. 

The Board adopted the following resolution concerning the retirement of Shirley Lauthem: 

We the Board of Foreign Missions give a special commendation to Shirley Lauthem on 
the occasion of her retirement on January 31, 2004. For thirty-five years she served as 
the Administrative Assistant to the General Director. Her selfless devotion to others 
has set the tone for the whole Mission. Though she bas never visited a mission field, 
few have had such positive impact on each missionary who has served with the Mission 

during these years. 

A retirement bonus was approved for Don Robirds and Shirley Lauthem. 

The Medicare Supplemental Program was extended to a ll full-time employees. The length of 
employment required to benefit from the program was raised from I 0 to 15 years. 

The board endorsed the concept of the Global Outreach Church network. They also endorsed 
the creation of the Ambassador Corps for those formerly associated with the Mission. 

The following Field Chainnen were approved: 
Uruguay Jaimie Lancaster 
Japan Don McDonald 

The following missionaries were approved for another term of service: 
Japan Don and Ruth McDonald 
Japan Debbie Griffm 
Japan Ken and Judy Bailey 
Russia Mike and Cathy Corley 

The firm of Warren, Denney, and Wallace CPA were approved to do the 2003 audit. 

The following projects were approved granting permission to raise funds through the 

Anticipated Opportunities budget: 

VISION Project 
Special Project 
Special Project 
Special Project 

Uberlandia, Brazil -
M-Team vehicle 
Korea Ministries 
FWBBC Missions -

$50,000 
$25,000 
$ 7,800 
$ 1,000 

A promissory note of$150,000 was approved through the Free Will Baptist Foundation for the 

purchase of the Miharashidai church property in Japan. 
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The board approved the annual Missionary Retreat to be held July 16-1 7, 2004 prior to the 
National Association in Kansas City. 

A two-year assignment to Brazil was approved for Kristen Wilson. 
Mobilization and Recruitment Director Eddie Payne was approved to work out the final details 
for an overseas internship for Patrick McDaniel. This is to complete the practicum with 
FWBBC to acquire the new missions major degree. 

1 1 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of D~rectors of the 
Board of Foreign Miss•ons of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 

Antioch. Tennessee 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the Board of Foretgn Missions of 
the National Association of Free Will Baptists (a nonprofit organization) as of December 31. 2003 and 2002, and 
the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Organization's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the finanCial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and. disclosures in the financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signifiCant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Board of Foreign Missions of the National Association of Free Wtll Baptists as of 
December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the changes In its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended tn 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 

March 29, 2004 
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BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF F.REE ~~Ll BAPTISTS 

Statements of Financtal Posttton 
December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Cash and cash equivalents - Notes 1 & 2 
Investments in trusts - Notes 1 & 2 
Investments - Notes 2 & 10 
Accounts receivable from employees and 

ASSETS 

missionaries - Note 2 
Property and equipment, at cost. net of accumulated 
depreciation - Notes 1 & 3 
Prepaid expenses 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Supplemental retirement insurance payable 
Accrued severance pay payable 

Total liabilities 

Commitments - Notes 7 & 8 

Net assets (deficit) 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted - Note 4 
Permanently restricted - Note 4 

Total 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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2003 
$ 1,650,765 

1,432.711 
19,739 

100,648 

112,169 

$ 3,316.032 

$ 217,068 
416,088 
150.623 

783.779 

2002 
$ 1,290,854 

1,249,501 
16,344 

100,143 

128,759 
392 

$ 2.78(2.993 

$ 180,818 
385,613 
151.957 

718.388 

( 329,778) ( 
2,835,790 

26.241 

365,996) 
2,407,360 

26.241 

2.532.253 2.067.605 

$ 3,316,032 $ 2,785,993 



--

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Statements of Activities 
For the Years Ended December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Unrestricted 
Revenue: 

Contributions - Notes 1 & 5 
Investment income 
Gain (loss) on investments 
Projector lease income 
Gain (loss) on disposal of property & equipment 
Net assets released from restrictions: 

Restrictions satisfied by payments 

Total revenue 

Expenses: 
Support services 
M issionaries 
VISION campaign 

Total expenses 

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 

Temporarily restricted 
Revenue: 

Contributions - Notes 1 ,4 & 5 
Net assets released from restrictions: 

Restrictions satisfied by payments 

Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets 

Permanently restricted 
Revenue: 

Contributions - Notes 1 & 4 

Increase In permanently restricted net assets 

Total increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets - beginning of year 

Net assets - end of year 

See accountants' report and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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2003 

$ 1,124,037 
4,569 

106,097 
7,535 

( 3,028) 

4.542.403 

5,781,613 

1,202,992 
4,404,136 

138,267 

5,745,395 

36,218 

4,970,833 

( 4,542.403) 

428.430 

464,648 

2,067,605 

$ ,,53,,253 

2002 

$ 1,040,774 
78,559 

( 3,293) 
10,805 

( 10,518) 

4.207.845 

5,324,172 

11167,319 
4,087,272 

120.573 

5,375,164 

( 50,992) 

4,565,003 

( 4,207,845) 

357,158 

306,166 

1,761,439 

$ 2.067.605 

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Statements of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended December 31. 2003 and 2002 

ooerating activities 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 

Adjustments to reconcile increase in. net as~~~s t? 
net cash provided (used) by operating activities. 

Depreciation 
Loss (gain) on investments . 
Loss (gain} on disposal of property a~~ .eq~lpment 
Changes in operating assets and liabilitieS: 

Decrease (increase} in accounts receivable 
Decrease {increase) In prepaid expenses and 

deposits 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and 

accrued expenses 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Investing activities 
Purchases of equipment 
Proceeds from sale of equipment 
Purchases of investment 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Financing activities 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

See accountants' reoort and accompanying 
notes to the financial statements. 
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2003 

$ 464,648 

54,774 
( 106,097) 

3,028 

( 505} 

392 

65,391 

481,631 

( 87,475) 
46,263 

( 80,508) 

( 121,720) 

-0-

359,911 

1,290,854 

$ 1.650,765 

2002 

$ 306,166 

58,784 
3,293 

10,518 

( 9,343) 

( 392) 

5 614 

374,640 

( 87,047) 
74,378 

( 112,096) 

( 124,765) 

-0-

249,875 

1,040,979 

$ 1,290,854 



BOARD OF FQREIGN MISSIQNS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31.2003 and 2002 

Note 1 -Qrganization and summary of significant accounting policies 

The Board of Foreign Missions of the National Association of Free Will Baptists is a 
nonprofit organization affiliated with the National Association of Free Will Baptists, located in 
Antioch, Tennessee. The purpose of the Organization is to establish and support Free Will 
Baptist Mission Churches throughout the world. The Organization's support comes primarily 
from donor contributions. 

The Organization is exempt from federal Income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists. In addition. the Organization has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service 
not to be a "private foundation" within the meaning of 509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
There was no unrelated business income for 2003 and 2002. 

The following significant accounting policies have been followed in the preparation of 
the financial statements: 

Basis of accounting 

The Organization prepares its financial statements using the accrual basis of 
accounting, which involves the application of generally accepted accounting principles; 
consequently, revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses are 
recognized when incurred. 

Basis of presentation 

Financial Statements presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board in its Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 
117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 117, the 
Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to three classes of net assets; unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net 
assets, and permanently restricted net assets. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles includes the use of estimates that affect the financial statements. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Contributions 

The Organization accounts for contributions in accordance w ith the recommendations 
of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in SFAS No. 116, Accounting for Contributions 
Received and Contributions Made. In accordance wtlh SFAS No. 116, contributions received 
are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support, 
depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions. 
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Note 1 -

NATI~~~Rfs~66:~6~~~~~~~g~IEC ~~~TISTS 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2003 and 2002 

f ·anificant accountina policies (Continued) 
Qrganization and summarv o Sl_ 

Contributions (continued) 
. an increase in temporarily or perma~ently 

All donor-restricted support IS reported ~~h restriction. When a restriction expires ~that 
restricted ne~ assets d.ependir;;c~~:':n~=t~~ep~rpo:e restriction is accomp~s~e~, ~~ie~~~~ 
Is, when a stipulated time res ifted to U(\(est.c\cted net assets and reporte 10 e 

~~s~~~~~e~e~:~~~::::t~~~:ed from restrictions. 

Property and equipment and depreciation . 
. . alizin at cost. all expenditures for 

The Organization follows the practice oJ cap~~tlmaf~d useful life of at least two years. 
property and equipment in excess ~f ~t2~00 ~;slsa~ver the useful lives of the assets generally 
Depreciation is computed on a stralg - me 

as follows: 

Automobiles . 
Office furniture and eqUipment 

5 years 
3- 10 years 

ded as a separate component in 
The net property and equipment balance has been recor 

unrestricted net assets. 

Investments · 
d of equity securities and are valued at quoted market pnce. 

Investments are compose 

Investments in Trusts . . h 
. sts established and mamtamed by t. ~ 

Investments in Trusts are comp~s~~ of~~~~~~ the two largest trusts in debt s.ecun!le~. 
Free Will Baptist Foundation. The F:s~s ~t~arket value. The remaining trusts are mves e 10 

and preferred stock and values the t which approximates market value. 
government securities and valued at cos . 

Cash and cash equivalents 
th Board considers all cash on 

For purposes of the Statem~nt~ ~f ~~~s~e~~~=iru~ents with maturity of three months or 
deposit, money market funds and hlg.h Y q 
less when purchased to be cash eqUivalents. 

-6-

A- 193 



Note 2-

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31.2003 and 2002 

Summa of si nifica t concentrations t financi I instruments 

~s of December 31, 2003 and 2002 th . . 
located m the United States and the Free win e B~ard had d~poslts With a financial lnslitu . 
Tennessee. Accounts at the financial instil ti Baptist Foundation, Inc., located in AntiOCh lion 
D~posit Insurance Corporation. A u on are ins~red up to $100,000 by the F , 
unrnsured. The Board also has a~~~ts at ~e Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc., a~eral 
othe~ receivables which are uninsured ~~=~~~:b:e ~om employees and missionaries and 
receivable and the corresponding risk ~f account~gn?o:s~ summary of those deposits, accounts 

fnteres.t beari.ng deposit accounts with 
financ1al mshtution 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

f~erest ~earing deposits on account with the 
ree Will Baptist Foundation Inc 

Common stock ' · 
Total investments 

Ac_co~nts receivable from employees and 
m1ss1onanes 

Total 

Interest bearing deposit accounts with 
financial institution 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

Interest bearing deposits on account with th 
Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc. e 

Common stock 
Total investments 

Ac.co~nts ~eceivable from employees and 
m1ss1onanes 

Total 
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Account 
Balance 

$1.650,765 

1.650.765 

1,432,711 
19.739 

1.452.450 

100.648 
$3.203.863 

December 31. 2003 
Amount Amount of 
Insured/ Accounting 

Secured Risk of loss 

$100.000 

100.000 

s 100,00Q 

$1.550.76§ 

1.550.765 

1,432,711 
19.739 

1.452.450 

100.648 
$3,103,86.3 

December 31.2002 

Account 
Balance 

$1.290.854 

1.290.854 

1,249,501 
16.344 

1.265.84§ 

100.143 
$2,656,842 

Amount Amount of 
Insured/ Accounting 

Secured Risk of loss 

$100.000 

100.000 

$100,000 

$1.190.8§4 

1,190.854 

1,249,501 
16 344 

1.265.84§ 

100,143 
$.2.556.842 

Note 3-

Note 4-

Note 5-

Note 6-

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2003 and 2002 

Property and equipment 

A summary of property and equipment is as follows: 

200~ 
Office furniture and equipment $ 68,851 
Cameras and projectors 111 ,733 
Automobiles 93,654 
Computer eqUipment 77,~26 

352,164 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 239,995 

$ l 12,36.9 

2002 
$ 68,851 

111 ,732 
76,022 
71,068 

327,673 
1~8,914 

$ 128.Z59 

Depreciation expense, computed utilizing the straight-fine method amounted to 
$54,774 ($58,784 in 2002). 

Restrictions on net assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes: 

Missionaries 
VISION campaign 

2003 
$2,775,418 

60,372 
$2.835,Z9Q 

2002 
$2,348,098 

59,262 
$2.407.360 

These net assets are restricted due to donor restrictions. They are released when 
the donor restriction is satisfied. 

Permanently restncted assets are restricted to: 

Support Services Endowment 
MK Scholarship Endowment 

Support services allocation 

$ 25,031 
1 210 

$ 26,211 

$ 25,031 
1 210 

$ 26.241 

The Board charges a fee against the foreign field accounts to reimburse the 
unrestricted net assets for support service expenses. These fees are presented as 
transfers from the temporarily restricted net assets to the unrestricted net assets. 

Pension plan 

The Board participates in the master pension plan of the Board of Retirement and 
Insurance of the National Association of Free Will Baptists. The Board contributes 5% of 
gross salary for missionaries and administrative employees. Employees are allowed to 
contribute but are not required to contribute. Employees with two years of service may 
participate. Pension expenses amounted to $92,723 ($91 ,812 in 2002). The pension plan 
is a defined contribution plan. Under the plan, an account is maintained for each participant 
and upon retirement the participant can either receive a lump-sum distribution or purchase 
one of several types of annuity contracts. 
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Note 7-

Note 8-

Note 9-

Note 10-

Lease 

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 2003 and 2002 

The Board entered into a new lease agreement on July 1, 2000. The term of the 
lease was July 1, 2000 to August 31, 2000, and then beginning September 1, 2000 the 
lease became a year-to-year lease. The rent expense for the year amounted to $74,988 
($7 4,988 for the year ended December 31, 2002). 

Commitments 

The Board provides health insurance for its 95 (82 in 2002) employees on a partially 
self-insured basis. The board has an insurance policy with International Medical Group for 
claims in excess of the deductible. The deductible is $2,500 and the coinsurance is 80% of 
the next $5,000. The deductible and coinsurance are paid out of Missionary funds. All 
cla1ms are processed by International Medical Group. During the year the Board paid 
$82,738 ($89,052 in 2002) in benefit payments and $208,278 ($179,862 in 2002) in 
insurance premiums. 

The Board has entered into an Indemnity and Hold Harmless Agreement with 
Am South Bank. As part of the agreement, AmSouth Bank will guarantee to Citibank that it 
will honor checks written on the Board of Foreign Missions' AmSouth Bank account by the 
Board of Foreign Missions' Cote d'lvoire Mission employees up to $20,000 per check. In 
exchange, the Board of Foreign Missions will indemnify and hold harmless AmSouth Bank 
from any and all claims, liabilities, actions or causes of action that arise as a result of 
AmSouth Bank's agreement to guarantee checks to Citibank. 

The Board entered into an agreement with the Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc. to 
guarantee a loan that the Foundation made to the Japanese Field Council for the purchase 
of a building in Hokkaido Japan. The original amount of the loan was $155,000. 

Fair values of financial instruments 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Board in estimating its 
fair value disclosures for financial instruments: 

Cash, cash equivalents, investments in trusts, receivables and payables: The 
carrying amounts reported in the statements of financial position approximate fair 
values because of the short maturities of those instruments. 

Investments: The fair value of investments is based on quoted market price for 
those investments. 

Investments 

Investments are stated at fair value and consist of equity securities: 

Cost 
Equity securities $ 79.520 

Investment return is summarized as follows: 

Net realized and unrealized income (loss) 
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December 31, 2003 

Fair 
Value 

s 19,739 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

(Depreciation) 
($ 59}81) 

$_3.39.5 

Note 10-

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS Of THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31. 2003 and 2002 

Investments (continued) 

Investments are stated at fair value and consist of equity securities: 

December 31. 2002 
Unrealized 
Appreciation 

(Depreciation) 
($ 63.176) 

Cost 

Equity securities 
$ 79,520 

Investment return is summarized as follows: 

Net realized and unrealized income (loss) 
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Fair 
Value 

$ 16.344 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Board or Directors of the 
Board of Foreign Missions of lhe 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 

Antioch, Tennessee 

Our report on our audits of lhe baste financial statements of the Board or Foreign Missions of the 
National Assoc1atJon of Free Will Baptists for 2003 and 2002 appears on page 1. We conducted our audits 
•n accordance with auditing standards generally accepted •n the United States of America for the purpose of 
forming an opinion on lhe basic financial statements taken as a whole. The schedule of functional expenses 
IS presented for the purpose of additional analysis and Is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the aud1ts of the 
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

March 29, 2004 
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NATION Schedule of Functional Expenses d 2002 
For the Years Ended December 31. 2003 an 

2003 2002 
Support services: 

Video and audio visual 
Heartbeat 

$ 25,298 $ 46,103 
35,524 

Other publications expense 
Postage 
Publicity 
Telephone 
Dues 
Paper and supplies 
Together Way Program 
Retreat 
Tracts and books 
Seminar and training 
convention expense 
Department auto 
Board members 
Administrative - overseas travel 
Department insurance 
Department travel 
Travel insurance 
Honorariums 
Missions promotion 
Recruiting and candidate expense 
Salaries 
Housing 
Social Security 
Employer payroll taxes 
Retirement 
Hospitalization 
Office travel allowance 
Legal and professional 
Office rent 
Off-site storage expense 
Computer software expense 
Office equipment . 
Maintenance of office equipment 
Office supplies 
Bank service charges 
Office help 
Staff recognition 
COLA indexes 
Benevolence 
Staff retreat 
Miscellaneous 

Depreciation . od in 
Visitor meals, entertainment & 1 9 9 
Mobilization network 

Total support services 

See accountants' reoort on supplementary information. 
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35,174 
1,926 

36,464 
44,450 
10,350 

210 
2,088 
2,919 
5,322 
4,085 
5,927 
7,640 

30,523 
14,804 

4,548 
23,082 

333 
771 

4,839 
3,576 

479,651 
85,800 
23,345 
24,731 
27,750 

103,630 
6,540 
7,811 

74,988 
1,680 
6,481 
7,559 

856 
17,612 

734 

2,493 
4,275 

395 
683 

1,995 
54,774 

1,574 
3.306 

$1.202.992 

3,378 
40,538 
26,399 
13,826 

179 
4,427 
5,872 
3,759 
3,082 
4,555 
5,297 

21,609 
11,713 

742 
4,068 
6,939 

642 
1,050 

10,941 
2,274 

485,359 
72,100 
23,840 
25,823 
25,736 
93,356 

8,027 
7,220 

74,988 
1,680 
8,910 
7,475 

900 
8,223 
1,325 

358 
201 

4,455 
155 
27 

2,390 
58,784 
3,060 

10 
$1.167.319 



BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS 

Missionary expenses: 
Ivory Coast 
France 
India 
Brazil 
Japan 
Panama 
Spain 
Uruguay 
Commonwealth of Independent States 
Unreached people 
Korea 
Overseas Apprentices 
Other projects 
Missionary medical 

Total missionary expenses 

VISION ~ampaign expenses: 
ProJect expenses 

Total VISION campaign expenses 

Total expenses 

See accountants' report on supplementary information. 
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2003 

$ 476,273 
794,634 
224,085 
604,933 
710,300 
222,732 
489,349 
269,861 
136,897 
27,544 
56,001 

263,038 
173,338 

( 44.849) 
4.404.136 

138,267 
138.267 

$5.745.395 

2002 

$ 722,233 
485,857 
206,925 
548,202 
624,643 
197,271 
456,620 
252,453 
112,528 
19,620 
64,876 

252,651 
191,469 

( 48.076) 
4.087.272 

120,573 
120.573 

$5,375.164 

Gene1'111 Director 
Salary 
Hou~ang and Utilities 
Social Security 
Re1ircmen1 
l n.~urance 

Total Cost of Employment 

Director of field Operations 
Salary 
Housing and Utilities 
Social Security 
Rclircmcnt 
Insurance 

fotal Cost of Employment 

Director of Stateside Development 
Salary 
Housmg and Utili1ies 
Social Security 
Retircmenl 
Insurance 

Total Cost of Employment 

Director of Member Care 
Salary 
Soc1al Sccurit} 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Total Cost of Employment 

Director of Financial Operations 
Salary 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Total Cost of Employment 

Director of Mobilization & Recruitment 
Salary 
I lousing and U1ilities 
Soc1al Security 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Total Cost of Employment 

Director of Public Relations 
Salaf} 
Housing and Ltilities 
Soc•al Security 
Retirement 
Insurance 

Total Cost of Employment 

Veh1cles provided for staff 

Home Front Personnel 
Compensation Detail 

Budget 2004 

$33.534 
28.080 

9,936 
3,081 

14.025 
88,656 

$30.145 
18.720 
7.880 
2,443 

14,025 
$73,213 

$30,145 
18,720 
7,880 
2,443 

14,025 
$73,213 

$48.870 
7,787 
2,444 

14.025 
$73.125 

$48.870 
7,787 
2.444 

14,025 
$73,125 

$32.235 
16,630 
7,880 
2,443 
5,500 

$64,688 

36,073 
12.792 
7,880 
2,443 

14.025 
S73,213 

No1c Mcd1cal 1nsurancc amount does not mclude portion pa1d pc!'l>onally 

IL. 
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Actual 2004 

$31,533 
27,000 

9,439 
2,927 

13,250 
S84, 149 

$27,222 
19,200 
7,486 
2,32 1 

13,250 
$69,479 

$27,222 
19,200 
7,486 
2,321 
5,258 

$61,487 

$46,422 
7,397 
2,321 
5,258 

$61,398 

$46,422 
7,397 
2,321 

13,250 
$69,390 

$28,422 
18,000 
7,486 
2,321 
5,258 

$61,487 

Proposed 2005 

$32.795 
28,080 

9,817 
3,044 

13,250 
$86,985 

$28,311 
19,968 
7,785 
2,414 
9,400 

$67,878 

$28,3 11 
\9,968 
7.785 
2.414 
5,783 

$64.262 

$48.279 
7.693 
2,414 
5,783 

$64,169 

$48,279 
7,693 
2,414 

13,250 
$71,636 

$29.559 
18,720 

7,785 
2,414 
5,783 

$64,262 



Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions 
Consolidated 2005 Budget 

Fields and Projects Personal Ministry Home Office 
Ivory Coast .. Allowances Allowances Allocation 

Project 
Brazil 

....... ..... . ' s 390,601.98 s 148.000.00 Allowances 
France .: ..... :: :. : 

• • • .... • •• 0 ••• 520.96602 $ 49,797 85 s 113.600 00 73.50500 67.597 14 lnd1a 
........... .......... 864.183.62 101,400.00 139.15144 

Japan .. · .. · · .... · .. · · .... · .. · 69.95960 49.800.00 
99.595.71 165.616.87 ........ ·····. ······· ........ 615.690.57 8.29964 116.200.00 Korea ... _ 268,040.00 61,797.85 

Russ1a/CJ.S 
• • •···· ••••• 0 ..... .. .. 104,52000 

Panama .. 
. -.. .. . . . . . .... ... 57.514.96 9.500.00 154.000.00 

Spain ........ 
. 204,91093 8.299 64 103.60000 19,650.00 24,898 93 

Uruguay 
...................... 533,519.73 49.550.00 73.550.00 

Cuba .......... ...... ••••••••• 0 ...... 178,462.33 24.90000 
45,098 21 556.250.00 

Other fields 
............ " ..... 24,898 93 61.900.00 

Projected m1ssio~ar). ~pp~i~t~ent~ 12.600 00 
43,000.00 

Other an11c1pated opponunilles __ 49.797 85 
757,500.00 

Total 
Field Budget 

s 701 99984 
801.219.60 

1.230. 796 20 
244,259 24 

1 050.048 42 
154.000()() 
178.914 60 
323.0098s 

1.184.417 95 
290,161 25 
43.000 00 

770,100 00 
Total fields and projects 

300,000.00 349,797 85 
.. $3,435.809.74 $ 

200,00000 200.000()() -- 744,345.00 $ 452,681 .76 $ 2.888,888.31 $ 7,521. 724.80 

Home Front Budget 
MobilizatiOn ................... . 
Field Su ............. · ................. · .... . ppon . . .. • .. ............... .. 
Administrative ·--· · .. · .. ..... ......... . ....... .. .. .. " · .. • • " " - .. · · ......... • .... 407,908 26 
Less. mJSSJonaryiproj~ ali~tl~ns _ '9% · .. · .... · .... · · ...... :·:: ... : .. :::: :·:: : ... :. ·: :: :· :::: ......... ....... .......... ... 139,476 57 

Net Home Front Budget ... ...... ..... ....... .. .... ....... . ....... .. .. .. · ---- .. ...... ... 946,945 70 
Total Operational......................... .. · .. · · • .... . . .. .. . .. . ... .:·::: ::::: ........ · .. · ...... · ......... · . .. (452,681 76) 

""""""'"'"'"' """'" • "" • " • • " " "" • "'"' • " s 1 nA1 II:. AD n .... ....... . . .. .. .... .. . .. .... ....... . ,..,.. ,~. 
...... . .. - .... . ....... .......... . $ B.563,373.57 

VISION Projects _ 
Special Projects .. .. · · .... · .. · .... . .. . _ ... . _ ..... __ 
Video & Film DiVISion .:---: ............... . - .... · .. · .. · .... · ............... : ::: ·::::: .... . --- ..... '.. -- $ 5,479, 770.00 
Restricted Access NGO · .... ...... · ............... · ..... ...... ...... ........ . .. ........ · .... · .. • .. 1,266,000.00 

.. .. . .. .... .. ............................... : : ::----· .. ... .. . . .... . ............ .. .. .... . . ..... .... 250,000.00 
.... 0 .... 0 

..... .... . • .. . ...... ....... . .. .. ... 705,{)()().00 

Grand Total Budget .. . .. .. ······ ..... . .. .. . .... . ....... . 
. .. ······· . ............. . 

.......... ... ............................ $16,264,143.57 

Note 
Budgets for foreign expenduures are sub eel to 
extreme fluctuations in the value or '"" d!lll change where 

u "' o ar occur. 
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Mission 

Free Will Baptist 
Bible College 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 
President's Report 

3606 Wcsr End Avenue 
NashviUe, TN 37205-2498 

615-383-1340 
Fax: 615-269..Q028 

www.fwbbc.edu 

For sixty-two years, Free Will Baptist Bible College has been fulfilling its mission, "to 
equip men and women. through Bible-based education, to serve Christ and His Church." We arc 
building on our legacy to provide excellence in Christian higher education, helping students to 
fmd God 's calling for their lives and preparing them to fulfill it. 

Our desire is to teach our students to bring "into captivity every thought to the obedience 
of Christ'' (2 Corinthians 10:5). Vocationally, we aim to provide our churches with pastors and 
other vocational Christian ministers; to equip church planters and cross-cultural missionaries to 
extend the ministry of our churches to the ends of the earth; and to supply our churches with 
strong lay leaders who will serve as salt and light in non-church-related careers . 

Growth 
Free Will Baptist Bible College is in a growth mode. Our enrollment has increased by 

20% over the past two years, and our dormitory student enrollment has increased by 25% over 
that period. 

We have experienced a substantial increase in net assets. equity, and cash reserves. This 
increase was made possible in large part by the purchase of a new building on West End Avenue 
for the iLeam Academy (early childhood center), as well as the sale of a tangential property on 
Central Avenue, a block away from our core campus. 

This year we will experience a substantial surplus in our financial audit, owing to the sale 
of the Central Avenue property. Yet, even with that sale, a surplus would have been impossible 
were it not for painful budget cuts, including personnel cuts, and sacrificial efforts by the college 
family to decrease spending. 

Renovations continue on campus. Codes issues forced the delay of the renovation of the 
iLeam building, which will be completed this summer. We have also begun renovations on 
Welch Library that will span the next three years. Though campus renovations have increased 
our debt, they have also greatly increased our assets and the beauty of our campus. 

The Adult Degree Program had a good start and is experiencing gradual growth. This 
summer we will add a program in post-baccalaureate teacher licensure, which will complement 
the evening programs we have in Biblical studies (B.S., general Christian ministries track), 
Business and Leadership (B.S.), and Business Administration (A.S.). 

Our fastest growing degree program is our Pastoral Ministry major. Under the creative 
leadership of Terry Forrest, student enrollment in this program has doubled. This corresponds 
with the college's renewed initiative to address the shortage of pastors among Free Will Baptists 
and to graduate more Pastoral Ministry majors than ever. 

We have experienced tremendous growth in our B.S. program in business, and our new 
programs in history and early childhood have attracted great interest. Our Missions program is 
experiencing new life. Our new Missions program coordinator, Ronald Callaway, brings almost 
three decades of cross-cultural ministry experience to the classroom, and is aiding in our goal to 
make global mission a priority of every student at Free Will Baptist Bible College. We are 
eagerly anticipating the arrival of our 2004-05 missionary-in-residence, Donald McDonald, and 
his family, who arc coming borne from Japan to serve at the college for one year. 
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We are also pleased to announce two new faculty members. James Stevens has jomed the 
college family as Chairman of the Department of Music, and alumnus Rachel Callaway will 
begin teaching English in the fall. 

Thanks 
I want to say thank you to hundreds of churches and thousands of alumni and friends who 

have steadfastly supported us. Thank you for sending us bright, service-oriented. and spirituall} 
minded students. Thank you for your intercessory prayers for our faculty, our staff, our students 
and prospective students, and our future. Finally, thank you for your sacrificial giving to Free 
Will Baptist Bible College. We accept no government funds; so without the financial support of 
friends like you, we cannot continue Lo provide excellence in Christian higher education. Thank 
you. 
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Type of Aid 

tnstitutional Loans . 
Student worker earmngs 
FWBBC Scholarships 
Tennessee Grant Programs 

Financial Aid Report 
2003-2004 

Number of Recipients 

67 
80 

Federal SEOG 
Federal Work Study Program 

256 
16 
26 
17 

132 
180 

85 
46 
18 

Federal Pell Grant 
Federal Subsidized Stafford Loan Program 
Federal Unsubsidized Stafford Loan Program 
Federal PLUS Loan Program 
Alternative Loans 
External Scholarships 

128 

Total Financial Aid Administered, 2003-2004 

Welch Library 

Amount of Aid 

$ 102,154.17 
160,327.56 
348,677.50 

46,935.00 
19,041.00 
25,511.00 

299,033.50 
642,600.28 
293,091.00 
287,677.55 
130,373.78 
162,780.12 

$2,518,202.46 

. nd recordings, video-cassettes, 
Total books, bound volumes, mtcroforms, 

80~----------------------- 154,820 
instructional materials etc.--------------------
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ANNUAL REGISTRATION REPORT-2003-04 

Enrollment-------------------- --------------------------------------------------------· --365 

Enrollment Breakdowns by: 

State: 
Alabama------------------------ 16 
Arizona -------------------------- 1 
Arkansas ------------- ------ 28 
California ------------------------ 3 
Florida ------------------------------- l I 
Georgia ------------------------------ 19 
Illinois ------------------------------ 23 
Indiana ----------------------------- 9 
Kansas -------------- 3 -----------------
Kentucky ----------------------- 8 
Louisiana-------- ------------- 1 ----·-

Missouri--------------- 12 ----
North Carolina --------------- 29 
Ohio -------------- 9 

______ , ____ _ 
Oklahoma ------------------------ 1 
Pennsylvania --------------------2 
South Carol ina ------------------------ 5 
Tennessee ---------------------------- 113 
Texas ----------------- 5 --------------
Virginia--------------- 20 ------·---
Wisconsin ------------------------ 1 
West Virginia -------------------4 
Foreign ----------------- 18 ----------Michigan ------------------------- 15 

Mississippi-------------------- 9 
The srudent body represe ts 24 Japan, Russia, Spain, and nZim~:~.and 8 foreign countnes (Albania, Bahamas, Brazil, Canada, 

Classification: 
Freshmen---------- __ 149 
Sophomores ------------ 74 
Juniors-------------------- 6) 
Seniors ---------------- 67 
Special-------------------- 12 

Other Categories: 
New-----------------94 
Returning --------- 2 1 
Continuing--------- 204 
Transfer -----------36 
Special--------------- 10 

Male ---------------- 177 
Female -------------- 188 

Full-time ------------ 304 
Part-time -------------- 6 1 

Free Wtll Baptist-- 328 
Other----------------- 3 7 

Vocational: 
Pastoral -------- *45 
YMICE ---------- 31 
MISSIOns -------- 36 
MmtStry Emphas1s . 5 
Undeclared ------45 

Business----- 43 

Enghsh --------7 
General Studies - --- 2 

H1story ----------- 5 
MUSIC ------- 20 
Psychology --- 22 

*1 here arc some pastoral students listed in other maJors. 
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DormiLOry --------256 
Commuters---------- 109 

Single -------------307 
Married ------------- 58 

Exercise Science - II 
Special- 10 
Teacher Education 83 

Synopsis of Minutes 
December 10-11, 2003 

The Board voted to grant the president's request to hire a contractor to begin work 
on the iLeam building as soon as possible. The Board voted to take $150,000 from 
the sale of the 3611 Central Avenue property to apply to the iLeam property 

renovation. 

The Board also voted to spread Welch Library renovations over three summers (or 

less), beginning as soon as possible. 

Synopsis of Minutes 
May 10-12,2004 

President Matthew Pinson reported that the college has experienced an increase in 
net assets, a stronger equity, and more cash reserves due primarily to the sale of the 
3611 Central Avenue property. Campus renovations are continuing. However, iLeam 
renovations are behind schedule due to delays in obtaining permits. 

The Pastoral Training program leads the growth of several successful degree 
programs, with a substantial enrollment increase. The Board commended Rev. Ralph 
Hampton for his years of service and gave him the title Professor Emeritus. 

The Board approved a 2004-05 budget of $6,033,945. 
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Free Will Baptist 
Bible College 

2003-04 Financial Report 

Independent Auditors' Reoort 

The Board of Trustees 
Free Will Baptist Bible CoUege 

3606 W= End Avenue 
Nashville, TN 3n05-2498 

615-383-1340 
Fax: 615-269-6028 

www.fwbbc.edu 

76 I Old l:fkkory lloWevon! 
Sullot 206 
a-aw-1. TN J1f111 
TEL: 61S/377.JC&S 
FAX. 615/J17..:M88 

We have anditM tbe accompanying statements of financial position of Free Will Baptist 
Bible College as of May 31, 2004 and 2003, and tbe relAted statements of activities and 
cbanges in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements 
are the responsibility of the College's ID.B.IlBgCIDenL Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financi111 statements based on our audits. 

We conducted oilr audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standuds require that we plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about ~'hethcr tbe fi.nancial statements are free of material 
misstatemenL An audit includes enmining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amolllltlJ and disclosures in tbe 6.nancial statemerus. An audit also includes assessing- the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as weU as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe tbat our audits provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financi.a.l position of Free Will Baptist Bible College as of May 31, 2004 and 
2003, and the chaJ:rges in its net assets and cash flows for the years then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenca. 

Ja.ne 30, 2004 
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FREE~B~TBIDLECOLLEGE 

Statements of Financial Position 

May 31, 2004 and 2003 

A.ssets 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments in marketable securities, at market value 
Accounts receivable: 

Student accounts 
Employee and other 
Pledges receivable 
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 

Prepaid expenses and escrow deposits 

Inventories 

Total current assets 

Non current assets: 
Cash: 

Restricted for endowments 
Restricted for student loans 

Investments in marketable securities, at market value: 

Restricted for endowments 
Held under life income agreements 

Campatgn pledges 
Loans to students, less allowance for doubtfu11oans 

of$26,000 in 2004 and $15,000 in 2003 

Total non current assets 

Property, plant and equipment: . 
Investment in property, plant and eqwpment 
Accumulated depreciation 

Net property, plant and equipment 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Current portion of long-term debt 

Notes pay11ble 
Student deposits and agency funds 
Accrued salaries 
Deferred revenues - summer school and other 

Total current liabilites 

Long-term debt 
Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted funds 
Temporarily restricted funds 
Permanently restricted funds 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accompanying notes to ftnancial statements. 
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$ 

s 

s 

l!llM_ lim 

688,364 291,157 

12,531 11,104 

112,866 41 ,812 

86,425 63,498 

99,529 49,580 
(20,000) (16,000) 

37,611 63,640 

38,311 60,724 

1,055,637 565,515 

317,930 296,683 
416,242 414,086 

503,641 469,797 

3,628 3,247 

50,000 59,300 

135,954 163,059 

1,427,395 1,406,172_ 

8,535,447 7,480,361 

3,340,046 3, 1)9,523 

5,195,401 4,340,838 

7,678,433 ~12,525 

153,567 95,040 

4,974 4,444 

1,566,033 690,805 

162,193 116,008 

127,586 110,141 

47,230 18,333 

2,061,583 1,034,771 

37,968 42,616 

2,099,551 1,077,387 

3,883,638 3,589,964 

359,7 12 336,200 

1,335,532 1,308,974 

5,578,882 5,235,138 

s 7,678,433 6,312,525 



FREE WILL BAPTIST BmLE COLLEGE FREE WILL BAPTIST BmLE COLLEGE 

Statements of Activitie3 and Changes in Net Assets Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended MAy 31, 2004 and 2003 For the years ended MAy 31, 2004 and 2003 

2004 2004 
Temporarily Permanently 

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total 
T emporarily Permanently 

Funds Fqgd:J Funds 1JMM lOOl 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total 

Revenues: Fugds Funds Funds ~ lD:Q1 
Tuition and fees s 2,212,972 2,212,972 1,914,212 Cash flows from operating activities 
Federal grants and contracts 
Private gifts 

41,628 41,628 43,030 Cash collected from students s 3,413,724 3,413,724 3,011,058 
1,289,536 209,983 19,144 1,518,663 1,517,777 Federal grants 21,302 21,302 46,838 

Endowment income 2,117 1,717 
Investment income 

3,834 4,730 Federal Pell grants considered to be agency 
12,548 2,322 2,780 17,650 9,360 

Gain (loss) on investment transactions (169) 847 34,351 35,029 (35,340) 
fund transactions 309,478 309,478 261,713 

Gain on sale of College property 258,662 258,662 Private gifts and grants I ,273,706 159,298 1,433,004 1,299,397 

Sales and services of auxiliary enterprise 1,196,724 1,196,724 1,050,326 Endowment income 2,117 1,717 3,834 4,730 

Other sources 21,625 {29,7 17) (8,D92} (1,451) Lnvestment income 12,548 1,941 14,489 7,002 

4,994,0 15 256,497 26,558 
Other revenues 18,887 18,887 (21,649) 

Net assets released from restrictions 
5,277,070 4,502,644 Cash paid for scholarships, to vendors 

232,985 (232,985) and for payroll (4,359,546) (232,985) ( 4,592,531) (4,409,998) 

Total revenues 5,227,000 23,512 26,558 5,277,070 4,502,644 Cash paid for Federal Pell grants (309,478) (309,478) (261,713) 

Expenditures: Net operating activities cash flows 361,436 (48,727} 312,709 _(62,6B} 

Educational and genenl: Ca~b 02~ Cc2m ini~tiug activiti~ 
Instruction 1,447,788 1,447,788 1,308,010 Marketable securities purchased (I ,593) (391,537) (393,130) (245,873) 

Academic support 385,988 385,988 371,518 Proceeds from sale of plant assets 306,382 306,382 

Student services 589,186 589,186 548,957 Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 392,891 392,891 228,103 
Institutional support 1,423,61 5 1,423,615 1,307,651 Expended for plant assets (1,114,530) ( l ' 114,530) (476,708) 

Total educational and general 
expenditures 3,846,577 3!846,577 3,536,136 

Student notes receivable, net change 16,105 16,105 (1,331} 

Auxiliary enterprises: Net investing activities cash flows (809,741} 17,459 {792,282) {495,81 12 
Dormitories 448,775 
Dining hall 

448,775 41 1,879 C!!sb 02»::1 U:2m l:l!Pital a~:!ivities 

Bookstore 
506,425 506,425 469,480 Campaign pledges receivable collected 9,300 9,300 35,900 

Snackshop 
118,407 118,407 93,992 Gifts received for: 13,142 13,142 14,861 

Total auxiliary enterprises Endowments and student loans 19, 144 19,144 135,040 

expenditures 1,086,749 1,086,749 990,212 Proposed new campus 16,566 16,566 84,460 

Other student loan transactions: 
Total expenditures 4,933,326 4,933,326 4,526,348 lnterest income on student loans 5,746 5,746 8,042 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 293,674 23,512 26,558 (23,704) 
lnvestment income 2,780 2,780 2,358 

343,744 Collection costs and other transactions (24,4~ {24,463) {15,707) 

Net assets at beginning of year 3,589,964 336,200 1,308,974 5,235,138 5,258,842 Net capital activities cash flows 25,866 3,207 29,073 250,093 

Net assets at end of year $ 3,883,638 359,712 1,335,532 5,235,138 
Ca~b 02»:s from lln!ll!l:ine: a~:tiviti~s 

5,578,882 Proceeds from notes payable advances 879,191 879,191 298,601 

Repayment of long-term debt (4,118) (4, 118) (3,611) 

lnterfund activities (25,598) 22,861 2,737 

Notes payable for student loans, net (3,963) (3,963} (20!00Ql 

Net financing activities cash flows 845,512 22,861 2,737 871,110 274,990 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 
and cash equivalents 397,207 23,403 420,610 (33,350) 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
beginning of year 291,157 710,769 1,001,926 I ,035,276 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
at end of year s 688,364 734 172 1,422,536 1,001,926 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Statements of Cash Flows, continued 

For the yesrs ended May 31, 2004 and 2003 

2004 

Unrestricted 
Temporarily Permanently 

Restricted Restricted 
Funds Fupds Fupds 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following: 
Current assets s 688 364 
Non current assets: ' 

Cash restricted for endowments 317,930 
Cash restricted for student loans 416,242 

Total cash and cas h equivalents s 688,364 734,172 

Reconciliation of increase (dec ruse) in net assets to 
net operating activities cash Oows 

Increase (decrease) in net assets s 293,674 23,5 I 2 26,558 
Transactions considered to be capital additions· 

Gifts for endowments and student loans . (19,144) 
Proposed new campus 
Campaign pledges receivable collected 

(16,566) 

Change in campaign pledges receivable 
(9,300) 

Net other transactions from 
9,300 

srudent loan funds 26,937 
Depreciation 
(Gain) loss on investment transactions 

212,381 

(Gain) on sale of College property 
169 (847) (34,351) 

(Increase) decrease in current assets: 
(258,662) 

Accounts receivable: 
Student accounts (71,191) 
Employee and other (2,601) (20,707) 
Pledges receivable 

Less allowance for doubtful accounts 
(15,830) (34,119) 

Inventories 
4,000 

Prepaid expenses 
22,4 13 

Increase (decrease) in current liabilities: 
26,029 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 58,527 
Student deposits and agency funds 46,185 
Accrued salaries 17,445 
Deferred revenues 28,897 

Net operating activities cash flows s 361,436 (48,727) 

See accompanying notes to financial st2tements. 
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Total Total 
lruM ~ 

688,364 291,157 

317,930 296,683 
416,242 414,086 

I ,422,536 1,00 1,926 

343,744 (23,704) 

(19, 144) (135,040) 
(16,566) (84,460) 

(9,300) (35,900) 
9,300 49,500 

26,937 9,785 
212,381 192,132 
(35,029) 35,340 

(258,662) 

(71,191) (5,398) 
(23,308) (12,480) 
(49,949) (28,209) 

(9,300) 
22,4 13 491 
26,029 (58,144) 

58,527 (22,782) 
46,1 85 45,908 
17,445 4,329 
28,897 6,010 

299,409 (62,622) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial State ments 

For the years ended MJay 31, 2004 and 2003 

The Free Will Baptist Bible College operates under the auspices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. and 

is governed by a Board of Trustees. 

(1) Summary of Sjgpjficant Accounting Policies 

Basjs of Financial Statemept Presentation 
The financial statements of the College have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to the College, 
the accounts of the College are maintained in accordance with the principles of "fund accounting". This is the 
procedure by which resources for various purposes are classified for accounting purposes into funds that are in 
accordance with activities or objectives as specified by donors, in accordance with regulations, restrictions, or 
limitations imposed by sources outside the institution, or in accordance with directions issued by the governing board. 

These financial statements, however, have been prepared to focus on the entity as a whole and to present 
transactions according to the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions in conformity with Statements 
of financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 116 "Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions 
Made" and No. 117 "Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations". This has been accomplished by 
classifYing fund transactions into three categories of net assets: unrestricted net assets which have no donor­
imposed restrictions, temporarily resoicted net assets which have donor-imposed restrictions that expire in the future, 
and permanently restricted net assets which have donor imposed restrictions which do not expire. 

Expiration of Donor-Imposed Restrictions 
The expirauon of a donor-imposed restnction on a contnbution is recognized in the period in which the restriction 
expires and at that time the related resources are reclassified to unrestricted net assets. A restriction expires when 
the stipulated time bas elapsed, when the sttpulated purpose for which the resource was restricted bas been 

fulfilled. or bot!L 

Pledges Receivable 
These amounts, less an appropriate reserve, are recorded at their esumated fair value with amounts due later man 
one year at the present value of estimated future cash flows. 

Prope rty. Plapt and Equipment 
Plant assets, consisting of land, buildmgs, other land improvements, equipment and furnishings, library books, and 
costs related to proposed new campus are stated at ca;t or estimated fair value at date of gift. Expenditures for 
acquistion of assets in excess of $250 are capitalized as investment in plant. 

Depreciable assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, ranging 
from 5 to SO years. The current provision for depreciation is reported as an expenditure of the College. 

Inventor ies 
Inventories, consisting of books and supply items, are valued at cost, with cost being determined on the first-in, 

first-out method. 

Investments 
Investments are reported at market value to comply with Financial Accountmg Standards No. 124, "Accounting for 

Certain Investments of Not for Profit Organizations." 

Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disela;ure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date d the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reponing period. Acrual results 

could differ from those estimates. 
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(1) 

(2) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BmLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Summary of S ignificant Acc:ountigg Policies. continue<! 

Jgcome Taxes 
The College is exempt from income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 50l(c)(3); accordingly, no provision 
for income taxes has been made in the accompanying financial statements. 

Casb agd Casb Equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows. the College considers all cash on hand, deposits in financial institutions 
and highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equ1valents. 

Compensated Absences 
Employees of the College are entitled to paid vacation, paid sick days and personal days off, depending on job 
classification, length of service and other factors. It is impractical to estimate the amount of compensation for 
future absences, and accordingly, no liability has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements. The 
College's policy is to recognize the cost of compensated absences when actually paid to employees. 

Fair Yalue of Financial Instrumegts 
The carrying value of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate fa1r value 
because of the short maturity of these instruments. The carrying values of liabilities are not materially different 
from the estimated fair values of these instruments. 

Contributed Services 
In kind contributions, when made, are recorded as contribution revenue and an offsetting expense if the contribution 
meets the requirements prescribed by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.. 
Volunteers make significant contributions in the form of time donated for service to the College. The value of such 
contributaons are not reflected in these statements because they to not meet the stated requirements. 

Scholars hip Allowances I Tuitiog and Fees 
Colleges and universities are required to report all tuition and fee revenue net of any scholarship allowance. A 
scholarship allowance is defined as the difference between the stated charge of goods and services provided by the 
institution and the amount that is billed to the student and/or third parties ma.k.mg payments on behalf of the student. 

Opera tion and Maintenapce of Plagt 
Expenditures for operation and maintenance of plant are allocated among functional expenditure categories based 
on actual usage of buildings as determined based on square footage. 

Financial Statement PresentaUon 
Certain reclassifications may have been made to the amounts as reported in the prior year to cortform to current year 
presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on reported net assets. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
The College is the institution of higher education of the National Association ot Free Will Baptists, Inc. and offers 
Bible based educational services to members of the denomination. The College extends credit in certain instances 
to students for educational costs and makes loans to students from the Loan Funds. The College also maintains 
certain accounts for sponsored groups, staff purchases, student telephorae charges, etc. The College also has 
pledges receivable which are dispersed among numereous supporters of the College. These accounts are not 
collateralized and are subject to accounting risk of loss amounting to the outstanding balance at any point in time. 

Further, the College has cash funds invested at several financial insttrutions and has risk of accounting loss for funds 
amounting to approximately S 1, 100,000 since the balance at certain financial institutions is greater than the FDIC 
insurable limit. The College also owns marketable securities which are subject to accounttng risk of loss amounting 
to the recorded balance 
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(3) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Jnvcstments - Marketable Securities . · by type the relationship between 
Investment securities are stated at market value. The foUowmg table summanzes 
,. .. ....,;no value and market value of the investment assets. 
~.,...., Excess of 

Market Market Over 
value (Under> Cost 

Cost or 

B.ui1 
Balance May 31,2004 

Permanently Restricted Funds: 
260,973 Common stock s 

Bonds 89,994 

Variable annuity contracts 157,297 

297,815 36,842 

88,644 (1,350) 

117,183 (40,114) 

Temporarily Restricted Funds: 
8,121 Variable annuity contracts 

6,995 (1,126) 

Unrestricted Funds: 
4,900 Common stock 

Variable annuity contracts 6,362 

s 527,656 

3,112 (1,788) 

6,05 1 pl 1) 

519,800 {7,847) 

Balance May 31, 2003 s 498,309 484,148 (14,161) 

As reported on tbe Statement of Fiuncial Positioo: 
lDM 1lHll 

12,531 11 ,104 s Curreot assets 

503,641 469,797 

3,628 3,247 

519,800 484,148 

Noa current assets: 
Restricted for endowments 
Held under life income agreements 

$ =====~== 
Reconciliation of gain oa. investmeat tran.sac:tioas: 

Realized gain on sale of securities . 
Unrealized gain due to change in the curnmulauve 

change in market value pools 

Uarealized Uorealized 
Cumulative Cumulative 

s 

Gains 

36,842 
(1,350) 

35,492 

46,235 

28,715 

6,314 

I.osses 

(40,114) 

(1,126) 

(1,788) 
(311) 

(43,339) 

(60,396) 

s 35,029 
Gain on investment uansactioos . 

. 594 from certain donors in which the College ts the 

(4) 

The Free Will Baptist Foundation holds funds amountmg to $234, d wh' h will pass to the CoUege at a future 
income beneficiary. Further, the Foundation also holds funds from onors IC 

time amounting to $434,257. 

Net Assets Relelllltd From Restrictions " II 
. . rari1 tn' ted net assets as •O ows: Donor imposed restriettons exptred on tempo ~ rc:s c 

Expenditures made for donor imposed restnctions: 

Private scholarships . 
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant 

Federal Work Study Program 
Other instructional and institutional 
Renovation expenditures 
Proposed new campus land maintenance and expense 

Net assets released from restrictions 

s 

s 

60,258 
21,217 
20,411 
S5,984 
69,593 

5,522 

232,985 

· and $261 713 fOr 2004 and 2003, respectively, are not 
Federal Pelt grants to students amountmg to $309,478 . . • Federal Petl ts are considered to be agency 
included in expenditures or net assets released ~m restnctl~~ fu ds are n::der the control of the College. 
transactions in that the student payments are enutlements an e n 
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(S) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BffiLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Rcmajninr Net A.sse~ of Temporarily Restricted Funds 
Net assets of temporarily restricted funds are available forth fi II . 

Proposed new campus 
Scholarships 
Life income funds 
Other instructional and institutional 

Net Assets 

e o OWUlg purposes: 

Net assets of the College consist of the foUowing as of May 31, 2004 and 2003: 
2004 

Temporarily Permanently 
Up restricted 

s 3,883,638 
Restricted Restricted 

Operations 
Life income funds 
Unexpended funds restricted for: 

Operating purposes 
Plant facilities 

Student loan funds 
True endowment funds 
Scholarship endowment funds 

Total net assets 

Propert)'. Plant and Equipment 

s 3,883,638 

3,353 

170,081 
186,278 

359,712 

Components of property, plant and equipment are as follows. 

Land 

Propos~ ne~ campus, land and costs incurred to date 
Renovation 10 progress (current campus) • • 
Buildings 
Equipment 
Library books 

Acc~ulated depreciation and amortization 
Net mvestment in plant 

560,269 
131,184 

__ 644,079 

1,335,532 

s 

s 

s 

~ 
186,278 
119,115 

3,353 
50,966 

359,712 

lJIDll 
3,883,638 

3,353 

170,081 
186,278 
560,269 
131,184 
644,079 

5,578,882 

~ 
514,871 

1,007,740 
163,416 

4,512,580 
1,713,032 

623,808 
8,535,447 
3,340,046 

s 5,195,401 

WJ 
174,767 
109,295 

2,972 
49,1 66 

336,200 

2003 
Im!.l 

3,589,964 
2,972 

158,461 
174,767 
583,351 
131,184 
594,439 

5,235,138 

200J 
296,519 

1,007,740 
239,549 

3,748,445 
1,608,248 

579,860 
7,480,361 
3,139,523 
4,340,838 

Depreciation and amortization charged to expenditu • •Th . res S 212,381 192,132 
e College conunued renovation projects for certain buildin . . 

expend approximately $475,000 in future periods. gs on the eXisting campus. The College expects to 

Relocation Campaje;n 
The College began its Relocation Campi go, to last five . . 
enable the College to relocate It was ti . years, 10 March 1998, With the purpose to raise funds to 
including $6,000,000 to provide an ad~ti~ubs~ ~e Campa~gn would raise approximately $12,000,000, 
the new campus were to be provided by the sal f ~y o~ o~ratton of the College. The remaining funds to constru.ct 

e o e CX!Sttng campus and long-term borrowing. 

In December 2001, the College's Board ofTrus~ ed 
postponement was necessary since the Campai ~:r~rov ·S::Ian to place the relocation project on bold. This 
successful in obtaining a suitable bas gn . ~rat the funds necessary, nor was the College 
relocation at this time. pure er fur the eXISting campus, to enable the College ~ proceed with the 
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(8) 

(9) 

(10) 

FREE Wll..L BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Relocation Campajp. continued 
The fuUowing explanation was made by President Pinson in his subsequent annual repat to the denomination: 

"Because of the downward trend in enrollment and the resulting finanCial difficulties the College is facing, as well 
as the withdrawal of ... (the) dfer to purchase the current campus, the Board of Trustees bas voted to postpone 
relocation until some of these problems can be addressed. Money given for the relocation bas been well invested. 
The progress and work that has occurred up to this point will enable us, when the time is right, to proceed with the 
the relocation. Funds received for relocation will continue to be wisely invested. We are poised for growth, and 

relocation is still a part of our long-range plan." 

£!ede;es Receivable 
Pledges receivable are recorded at estimated realizable value after an allowance for potential Wlcollectible pledges. 
Further, pledges receivable expected to be collected in years after the next fiscal year are discounted to their present 
values of future cash flows using an 8% interest factor. The following summarizes pledges receivable: 

Qpl:[Btigos (BII ~!lnsi!J~[~ (gjlj '!!lh:!:tibl~); 
Post dated check books and bank draft agreements 

Unrestricted contribution 

Contribution restricted for scholarships 

R~l!!!:&ti!lm Camp1ig:n and R~:llgnti!I D g( EJ.istio& Campus: 
Uncollected pledges 
Less allowance for potential uncollectible pledges 
Less present value of future cash flows discounted at 8% 

Ngls:s faxabh: and L2ne:-:r~:m D~:bt 
Notes payable: 

Permanently Restricted Funds - Student Loan Funds 
5% unsecured demand notes payable to individuals 

Unrestricted Funds- Notes Payable: 
Non-interest bearing, unsecured demand notes to individual 

Unsecured demand note, for the purpose of purchase of property or 
renovation of certain facilities on the existing campus, in the maximum 
amount of S 1,500,000, bearing interest at 1.25% above the UBOR rate. 
The Loan shall expire March 2005, if not demanded sooner. 

Unsecured revolving line of credit, for the purpose of operational cash 
needs, in the maximum amount of$500,000, bearing interest at 1.25% 
above the LIBOR rate. The loan shall expire March 2005, if not 

:w.lM 
s 69,529 

5,000 

25,000 

s 99,529 

s 158,000 
(108,000) 

s 50,000 

~ 

s !07,842 

100,000 

1,358,191 

demanded sooner. No amount is outstanding on this Line of credit. 
Total notes payable S 1,566,033 

Unrestricted Funds- Long-Term Debt 
I 0.99% installment obligation, with monthUy payments of $787, 
including interest and principal, maturing September 20 I 0, secured by a 
grand piano. $ 42,942 

Less current portion oflong-tenn debt 4,974 

lOO.l 
49,580 

49 580 

167,100 
(105,400) 

{2,400) 

61,700 

Wl 

111,805 

100,000 

479,000 

690,805 

47,060 
4,444 

42,616_ 
Long-tenn debt S 37,968 

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows: 2005- $4,974; 2006- $5,541; 2007- $6,182; 

2008- $6,823; 2009- S7,697; 2010-$8,583 and 2011 - $3,142. 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BmLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Pension Plan 
The College bas a defined benefit pension plan which covers all regular employees, except full-time students, hired 
prior to attaining age 61 following completion of one year of service and attairunent of age 21. Service for benefit 
and Yesting purposes shall be the number of plan years in which the participant completes at least 1,000 hrurs. The 
benefits on retirement are determined based on average compensation during the three coosecutive years during 
the last ten years prior to the participant's normal retirement date which produces the highest average. Employees 
are not required to contribute toward the cost of the plan. The College's funding policy is to fund pension costs 
accrued. The plan assets coosist of investments held and managed by Sun Trust, Inc., the plan administrator. 

The following table sets forth the plan's funded status and amounts recognized in the College's statement of financial 
position: 
Reconciliation of benefit obligatio.u: 

Benefit obligation at beginning of year 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Participant contributions 
Plan amendments 
Gain due to actuarial experience 
Gain due to changes in actuarial assumptions 
Benefits paid to plan participants 

Benefit obligation at end of year 

Reconciliation of asset value: 
Plan assets at beginning of year 

Actual rerum of plan assets 
Employer contributions 
Benefits paid to plan participants 

Plan assets at end of year 

Reconciliation of funded status: 
Funded status at end of year (liability) 

Unrecognized net transition obligation asset 
Unrecognized prior service cost 
Unrecognized net loss 

Amount included in prepaid expense 

Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year 

Vested benefit obllgation at end of year 

Reconciliation of unrecognized net loss: 
Unrecognized loss at beginning of year 

Amount of loss recognized during the year 
Loss due to actuarial experience 
Gain due to changes in actuarial assumptions 
Gain due to assets 

Unrecognized loss at end of year 

11 

A- 218 

lOOi 
s 2,629,163 

82,380 
200,609 

(21,451) 

(81,111) 
s 2,809,590 

$ 2,044,056 
131,270 
107,033 
(81,111) 

s 2,201,248 

s (608,342) 

627,615 
s 19,273 

s 2,537,240 

s 2,499,427 

s 635,963 
(30,378) 
(21,451) 

43,481 
s 627,615 

2,457,523 
84,565 

187,944 

(39,611) 

(61,258) 
2,629,163 

2,072,988 
(105,714) 
138,040 
(61,258) 

2,044,056 

(585,107) 
(24,915) 

635,963 
25,941 

2,358,108 

2,313,409 

408,567 
(13,004) 
(39,611) 

280,011 
635,963 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

(11) Pension Plan. contjnued 
~ 1001 

Net periodic benefit cost: $ 82,380 84,565 

(U ) 

(13) 

Service cost at end of year 
interest cost on projected benefit obligation 
Expected return on plan assets 
Amortization of transition obligation 
Amortization of prior service costs 
Amortization of net Joss 

Net periodic benefit cost 

Assumptions used for determination of net pe.uion cost: 
AsSumed discount rate 
Rate of compensation increase 
Expected long-term rate of return 
Actuarial valuation method 

Assumptions used (or determination of end or year obligations: 
Assumed discount rate 
Rate of compensation increase 
Expected Jong·term rate of return 
Actuarial valuation method 

s 

200,609 
(174,751) 

(24,915) 

30,378 
113,701 

7.75% 
4.00% 
8.50% 

Projected 
Unit Credit 

7.75% 
4.00% 

N/A 
Projected 
Unit Credit 

187,944 
(174,297) 
(24,911) 
21,628 
13,004 

107,933 

7.75% 
4.00% 
8.50% 

Projected 
Unit Credit 

7.75% 
4.00% 

N/A 
Projected 
Unit Credit 

Group Health Bepefits . . . through its membership in the 
1be College provides group health benefits coverage for par11C1panng employees . . f . xt 
TICUA Benefit Consortium. The Consortium is a partially self-insured ~ealth benefit plan constSt~: Sl ee~ode 
private colleges and universities in Tennessee, and is exempt unde: Sec~on ~O~(cX9) .of the ~~:OS p::~n~~ · 

Funding for the plan has been based upm actuarial calculations ustng histonca ex:penence o bel. that 
· ded tribut' ons Management now 1eves estimates of claims outstanding Clauns to date have excee con 1 · . cconii ly 

add·110nat costs will be incurred to satisfy future financial obligations ofTICUA Benefit Cons~rtiurn, a year'ng 1 . . fu ting' to S35 000 111 the current s 
management has provided a reserve agamst these potential ture costs amoun • 

financial statements 

Future Sale of Propertv · h · recorded in the financial 
The College has contracted to sell a house and lot for the sum of $309,500, whic IS S 2004 

Th' at · xpected to be completed by ummer . 
statements net of depreciation in the amount of $33,207. IS s e ~ e . ed in the financial statements 
This sale will result in net revenues of approx.imately $260,000, wh1ch Wtll be report 
for the period ended May 31, 2005. 
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SUMMARY OF FINANC IAL INFORMATION 

This summary IS provided to help the denominaJi b 
Baptist Bible College. on etter understand the overall financial condition of Free Will 

Unrestricted Funds Revenues and Expenditures 

Total Unrestricted Funds Revenues for the year end in Ma 31 
Funds Expenditures were $4,933,326, providing a $2:3 67~ in '2004: amounted to $5,227,000. Total Unrestricted 
should be notated that $258 662 of the increas d • ~ease m net assets at the end of the fiscal year. It 

' e was ue to a gam on sale of College property. 

Cash Flow Statement 

The combined cash flow of the College's operatin invest" · 
cash and cash equivalents of$420 610 Th. . g, ~~g, capttal and financial activit ies reported an increase in 
Permanently Restricted Funds. • . IS mcrease consists of$397,207 in Unrestricted Funds and $23,403 in 

Unrestricted Giving 

Private gifts provided $1,289,536 in Unrestricted fund R 
General Fund gifts, $205 164 from Estate gifts and $40s0 ;venuSes. ?f ll~at amount, $1 ,083,972 was provided from 

' • .rom pec1al gtfts. 

The college is deeply indebted to our man fi · 
FWBBC's revenue stream. y supporters, or gifts conunue to represent a sizable portion of 

General Fund Giving Keeps Tuition Costs Down 

Because of above-mentioned General Fund gifts, tuition aid b FW .. 
semester hour taken in 2003-2004 Or tr" d G P Y . BBC students was subs1d1zed $125 for every 
$269 

. . , unres ICie eneral Fund gl fts kept the t f t .. 
, mstead of $394. This gift subsidy saved each d ,· cos o u1110n per semester hour at 

total of $3,750 this past academic year Witho t "ftsstu enr t.afkmg 30 semester hours ( 15 hours per semester) a 
· u &1 • many o our students would be unable to attend FWBBC. 

Financial Obligations 

The College's notes payable and long-term debt h · d 
$207,842 (consisting of a $100 000 ·lnte t fi as m;rease . N~tes Payable to Individuals amounts to (A) 

' • res - ree note tor unrestncted se d $ I 07 84 · · 
permanently restricted for student loans). FWBBC h 1 d u • an ' 2 Ill mterest-bearing notes 
the acquisition of property and the renovation f ~ a ~0 . 1~awn (B) $1 ,358,19 1 on a bank note designed to fund 
$37,968 balance for a grand piano making th ot ~~IOus ul mbgs on campus. La~tly, the College has a (C) 
2004. ' e o notes paya le and long-term debt $1 ,604,00 I as of May 31' 

(A) The College has sufficient cash d · I" · 
the $100,000 available for unrestrict: u~:v:,g; t~e ~~~~a~:2the Notes fp~yable to I ndivid~als •. but chooses to keep 
(B) A 1 f h ' • as part o liS student financ1al a1d program 
. s a resu I o t e renovation projects and related $1 358 191 d b · · 
mcreased in excess of the amount invest . ' ' . e tmc~n:ed, campus property values have 
the affected properties. ed. Renovation debt will be substdlzed through income earned on some of 

(C) The $37,968 grand piano note balance is scheduled for maturity by September 2010. 

THIS lNFORMATION IS NOT PART OF THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued) 

Lnvestments 

FWBBC's investments in marketable securities gained $35,029 due to favorable market conditions. Of that 
amount. $28,715 was a realized gain, while $6,314 was an unrealized gain. 

Assets to Debt RJltio 

Total assets amount to $7,678,433. Our long-term liabilities ( listed in "Financial Obligations" above) come to 
$1,604,001, giving a 4.79 to I assets to debt ratio. Adding all other liabilities brings the total to $2,064,551, and 

gives a 3.72 to I assets to debt ratio. 

Statements of Financial Position (Balance Sheet) Remains Strong 

Total net asset<; grew $343,744 to $5,578,882, after deducting total liabilities of$2,064,551 from total a'>sets of 

$7,678,433. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents Trend Upward 

Total cash on hand increased 42%. Last year's total was $1,001,926 against this year's Sl ,422,536, broken down 
by $688,364 in unrestricted current assets, $317,930 in restricted endowments, and $4 16,242 in student loan funds. 

Relocation Campaign Update 

ln March, 1998, the college entered into a five-year, $12 million capital campaign for the purpose of providing $6 
million in operating (General Fund/Unrestricted Fund) revenues and $6 million for relocating and constructing a 
new campus. The Board of Trustees has voted to postpone relocation efforts until timing and finances are more 
favorable. (Refer to the auditor" s report, Note (7), page 9). 

THIS INFORMATION IS NOT PART OF THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIDLE COLLEGE 

Budget for the year ending May 31 , 2005 

Unaudited - Not Part of Audit 

Allocation of Allocation of 
Operation and Genera l Budget 

As Maintenance Institutiona l Arter 
Budgeted of Plant Expenses Allocations 

Revenues: 
Tuition and fees $ 2,960,945 2,960,945 
Private Gifts: 

Together Way/Unrestricted General Fund 1,300,000 1,300,000 
Estates and miscellaneous 296,500 296,500 
Grants and foundations 75,000 75,000 

Endowment income 2,000 2,000 
Investment income 20,000 20,000 
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 1,299,500 1.299,500 
Other sources: 

Net assets released from restrictions 80,000 80,000 

Tot a I revenues: $ 6,033,945 6,033.945 

E1. pend i tu res: 
Educationa l and genera l: 

Instruction $ I, 755,073 240,320 1.995.393 
Academic suppon 468, I I 8 53,305 521.423 
Student services 643,524 35,683 679,207 
Operation and maintenance of plant 841,075 (84 I ,075) 
Institutional support 1,473,155 192,408 (73,658) 1.591,905 

Total educational and general 
expenditures 5,180,945 (3 19,359) (73,658) 4,787,928 

Au xiliary enterprises: 
Expendatures 853,000 319,359 73,658 1,246,017 

Total expend itures $ 6,033,945 6,033,945 
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Free Will Baptist Bible College 
Salary Breakdown 

2002-03 2003-04 

President• 
Salary $60,000 60,000 

Social Security 4,590 4,590 

Retirement 0 •• 5,400 

Medical Insurance 6,960 9,048 

Life Insurance 240 240 

$71 ,790 79,278 

Academic Dean 
Salary $48,684 48,684 

Social Security 3,724 3,724 

Retirement 2,434 4 ,382 

Medical Insurance 2,940 3,840 

Life Insurance 240 240 

$58,022 60,870 

Advancement Director 
Salary $42,148 42,148 

Social Security 3,224 3,224 

Retirement 0 •• 3,793 

Medical Insurance 6,960 5,952 

Life Insurance 240 240 

$52,572 55,357 

Treasurer 
Salary $47,161 47,161 

Social Security 3,608 3,608 

Retirement 2,358 4 ,244 

Medical Insurance 2,940 3,840 

Life Insurance 240 240 

$56,307 59,093 

2004-05 

61 ,800 
4,728 
5,562 

10,860 
240 

83,190 

50,145 
3,836 
4,513 
4,608 

240 
63,342 

43,412 
3,321 
3,907 
7,128 

240 
58,008 

48,576 
3,716 
4,372 
4,608 

240 
61 ,512 

*Campus housing provided (with Social Security variation) . Vehicle 

provided. 
**Qualifies for pension benefits after one year of service. 
Note: Some administrators have chosen a voluntary reduction from 

listed salaries. 
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2004-05 State Gift Goals 

State ............................ . 
· · ···-···· · ··· · ···-············· - T. ls • • ...... .......... ..... ........... .. .. . ... ..... ............ £{)til 

~~bam a . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 90 000 

Ar~na · ·· ·· · · ··· · · ·· ·· · ··· ·· ······ ···· · ··· · ·· ··· ·· ·· · ··· ·· · ······ ··· · · · ·· ····· ·· ····· ................. 1:250 
ansas · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · 90 000 • • .............. 0 ••••••••• 0 •••• 0 ••••• 0. 0 ............. 0 ••• 0. 0 , 

California . ......... ............ ....... 9 000 D I . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ' 
e aware . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . . . .. . .. .. .. . . .. . 2 000 Fl . da . . . . .................................................. · · · ·.. ' 

on · · · ······ ······ ·· ········· · 48 00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ' 0 

Georgia ... . . .. .. .. . . .. .. . .. . .. . . .. .. .. . . .. .. ... ... .. .. . .. . .. .. .. . . 13 5 000 Ill" . . ............................... . 
tnots . .. . . .. . . .. .. . . .. .. 41 'ooo I d. . ..... .... ..... ... ... ....... ............................................... · · 

n tan a .. ....................... 9' 00 ............................................. ................... ........ ,5 

~~:~~k ................................................................................................... 250 
Lo . y ............................................................................................ 24 000 

utsana .................................. 1'000 ••••••••••••••••••• 0 •• 0 •••••• 0 ••• 0 •• 0 0 •••••••• 0 •• 0 0. 0. 0. 0... , 

Maryland ........................................................... 500 M" h. .. ................................... . 
tc tgan ... .......... .... .. 4o 500 M. . . . . ........................................................................ . 
LSSISStppt ......................................................................................... 37:000 

M. . ISSOUfl ......... . . 6 Nebra k ................... · ·· · ·· .... · · ·· · · ... · ·· ·· · · ··· · .. ·· ........................ · · ... 5,000 
s a ........................ .. 100 N M . . ..................................................................... . 

ew ext co . .. . .. ... .. . .. . .. .. ......... 300 •• 0 ••• 0 • 0 ••••• 0 •••••••• 0 0 •• 0 0 0 •• 0. 0 ......... 0 •••• 0 0 •• 0 ••• 0 0 ••••• 

North Carolina oh· ................................................................................. 201,000 
10 ....................................... 35 000 Okl h ............................................................ ' 
a oma ............................... . 35 500 ••• 0 ••••••••••• 0 ••••••••••••••• 0 ......... 0 ••••••••••••••• 0. , 

;outh Carolina ................................................................................... 95 ooo 
ennesscc .. ... .. .. ..... .. .. ..... 250,000 
~ ................................................................. . 

ex as . ... . . .. . . .. .. . .. .. ... .. . . .. .. . .. I 5 'ooo ....................... 0 ............... 0.......................... , 

Virgin Islands ....................... ........... .. 1 000 Vi . . . ................................................ .. 
trgtnta .. . ...... .. ... ............ ... .......... ........ ... . 33 '000 w hi .......................................... . 
as ngton ......................... ................................................................. 3:000 

West Vtrgmia .................. 9 500 WNAC ..................................................................... ' 
................................... 8 500 c d ............................................................ .. 

ana a......................... '600 ........................................................................... 

Matching Gifts ......................... .............. l8 000 Othe ............................................ ' 
r .............................................................. . 500 ........................................ 

G rand Total ....................................... ........................................... Sl,JOO,OOO 
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'L Randall 
House 

Randall House Publications 
Sunday School an d Church Train in g Departm en t 

114 Bush Rd. 
Nashville, TN 3 7217 

The Mission statement of Randall House Publications is as follows: 

The Mission of Randall House Publications 
is to promote the cause of Christ 

and serve the Church 
through the development and distribution 

of excellent, economical, effective, 
and evangelistic Bible-based 

curriculum and products. 

Everything we do is based on the above statement, and promoting the 
cause of Christ is the essence of our big picture mentality. I am 
convinced that only Heaven will truly reveal the effect of what we 
accomplish on this side of eternity. However, there are tangible 
barometers through which we measure our successes. 

Last Year 

The end of first quarter showed us at a $77,000.00 deficit. We came up 
with a plan to correct the bleeding of the red ink. In April of last year, we 
presented the plan to the board and with their approval began the 
organization phase of Randall House Publications. With a controlled 
implementation, these changes took the 2"d and 3rd quarters to transition. 
By this time, we had quite a mountain to move in relatively a short period 
of time . The reasons for such a reorganization was due to being very 
management heavy, continuous decline in units sold, marginal price 
increases in previous years causing an even income, unbelievable rise in 
health care costs, and the under utilization of employee hours. 

We have been operating in the black since implementing the plan. This is 
the result of very hard work by all of our employees. They show their care 
and concern for their denomination everyday. That is now four straight 
quarters of black ink. We are producing an incredible amount of work with 
emphasis on quality and excellence. 
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Curriculum Sales climbing 

For about fifteen to twenty years curri I h 
If you will notice the chart below you ~~llu;' a~ been on a slow decline. 
total units scales have started up'ward ~; c fsse_s are on the rise and 
must larger gains increased units by th~svtein I on Y slightly. We anticipate • me next year. 

O.mirulum Total Units 

SPR 89 FAll. SPR 92 SUM SPR 97 SPR 01 SPR 03 SUM FAll. 90 WIN SPR04 
94 03 03 03-04 

Book Publishing 

We have several of our titles now i II . 
This includes Quest for Truth G n a u.feway store.s across America. 
Minister's Manual, our letters, bo~~ce Fa~th Free. 'v'!'"' ,Randall House 
Testament. We are re ortin s, an our MmJster s Manual New 
our Randall House Publi~ationgti~l;;owth of 250% since the year 2000 in 

RHP Net Book Sales 

$150,000 t=~===========;========; 
$130,000 -
$110,000 . -· __ ,_,,_ ..... , .-- - _ ,_,, ....... - - _,. _ ,_ ,,_ .... --·-

::: ;:::.;~~~·= --·--;-:;::;-~·-.. ~ .. -~ .. --~· .. ~·-·="'""='-"'=-·-="'-="''":'"""="-~"""~-::1'·~--"·=-=-=-=--=-=i 
$30,00~ 9~98:---~1:9=99:----2-0!"""00 ____ 2.....,00_1_._ ----=-2~=-0=-=2· ·:·--= ·= --:1-2003 
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we are looking forward to growing our publishing ministry in order to 
provide you with broader categories of books. We would like to offer 
more titles for families, women, men and children. You can expect some 
great developments in this area in the very near future. 

CLEAR IS HERE 

CLE~R 
LEARNING SO LEARNING SYSTEM J., 

FOR KIOS 

While our publishing division is growing at all time new heights, it is for 
our curriculum that we exist. This is the year that CLEAR curriculum 
becomes available to our churches. You can begin ordering now for the 

fall Quarter (Sept, Oct, Nov) 2004. 

We have our product specialists here at the convention for the unveiling 
of the lines of CLEAR. They will help you get acquainted with the features 
that make CLEAR the exceptional choice. CLEAR curriculum is the answer 
to what you our teachers and churches have been asking us to produce. 
Let me highlight some key features here. 

• Conservative Bible-based 
• Christ centered 
• Application driven 
• East to teach 
• Family focus 
• High impact 
• Mission and evangelism emphasis 

CLEAR is going to help us teach our classes in a way that changes how 

they live not just what they know. 

Imagining Great Things, 

Ron Hunter, Jr. 
General Director/CEO 
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T<>rry A H1ll 
Emc'l R Harper 

SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH 
TRAINING BOARD AND 

RANDALL BOUSE PUBLICATIONS, INC. 

Financial Statements 

December 31, 2003 and 2002 
(With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon) 

Hill, Halper & As_c;oc;ates 
Certified Public Accountants 

Independent Auditors' Report 

The Board of Directors 
Sunday School and Church Training Board 
And RandalJ House Publications: 

761 Old Hickory Boulevord 
Su11e206 
Brenlwood, TN 37027 
TEL: 615/377·3485 
FAX 615/377-3488 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial pos1tion of Sunday School and 
Church Trammg Board and Randall House PublicatiOns as of December 31. 2003 and 
2002, and the related statements of acuvities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for 
the years then ended. These financial statements are the respons1bl111y of tJ1e Board's 
management. Our respons1bihty is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards reqUJre that we plan and pcrfom1 the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of matcnal 
miSStatement. An audit mcludes examining, on a lest basis, C\-ldence supponrng the 
an10unts and d isclosures m the financial statements An audit also includes assesslllg lhe 
accounting principles used and sig11i ficant est1mates made by management, as well as 
evalua1111g tJ1e overall fmaneial Stalement presentalion. We helieve that our audits prov1dc 
a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

ln our opinion, the financ1al statements referred to above present fairly. 111 all material 
respects, the financial position of Sunday School and Church Trainmg Board and Randall 
House Publications as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and changes 111 net assets and 
cashflows for the years then ended in confom1ity wtth accounting pnnciples generally 
accepted in Lhc United States of America 

April 6, 2004 
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SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBLICATIONS 

Balance S h eets 

December 31, 2003 and 2002 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and interest bearing deposits . . 
Cash invested with the Free Will Baptist Foundanoo 

Certificates of deposit 
Accounts receivable· 

Trade, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of S7 ,000 
Employees and other 

Total receivables 

Inventory 
Deferred charges and prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Property, plant and equipment, at cost: 

Land 
Building 
Printing service equipment 
Office and administrative equipment 
Automobiles and uuclcs 

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Net property, plant and equipment 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Current portion of long term debt 
Accrued expenses 
Due to affiliated organization 

Total current liabilities 

Lon~ term debt 

Total liabilities 

Unrestricted net assets 

Commitments 

See accompanying now to financial statements. 
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$ 65,139 
384,838 

50,000 

129,750 
952 

130,702 

328,461 
12,735 

971,875 

110,341 
824,325 
994,891 
635,286 

82,593 

2,647,436 
1,748,604 

898,832 

s 1,870,707 

s 90,522 
49,267 
47,200 

6,383 

193,372 

342,761 

536.133 

1,334,574 

s 1,870.707 

109,680 
393,649 

50,000 

64,225 
6103 

70 328 

41 6,758 
7,700 

1,048,115 

110,341 
736,603 
597,953 
617,773 

80,093 

2,142,763 
1,642,057 

500,706 

1,548,821 

95,990 

47,955 
7,229 

151,174 

151,174 

1,397,647 

1,548,821 



SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CllURCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBLICATIONS 

Statements of Activity and Changes in Net Assets 

Revenues: 
For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 

Net sales: 
Curriculum 
Randall House books 
Mecchandise 
Vacation Bible School 
Bookstore 
Printing 
Other sales 

Net sales 
Freight and handling 
Other income 
Interest income 
Gain on sale of assets 
Commission income on hymnal sales 

Total revenues 
Expenses: 

Cost of sales: 
Inventory at beginning of year 
Merchandise purchases 
Depreciation 
Ed.itonal 
Printing production 
Spanish department 

Less inventory at end of year 

TotaJ cost of sales 
Selling, general and administrative: 

Administrative 
Bookstore 
Bookkeeping 
BujJding 
Sales and promouon 
Shipping 
General 
Depreciation 
Interest C>.'])ense, includmg finance charges 

Total selling, general and administrative expenses 
Total expenses 

Increase in net assets from operations 
Other expenses: 

Printing contributed to the denomination 
DenominatJonal ministries 
Youth department 

Total other expenses 
Decrease in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 
Net assets, end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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s 

2003 

s 2,007,743 
159,313 
27,847 
22,137 

316,013 
142,279 
37,843 

21713,175 
119,748 
62,030 
16,538 

290 
39,680 

2,951,461 

393,621 
298,089 
47,746 

389,946 
714,981 

1,844,383 
305,324 

1,539 059 

248,182 
170,104 
265,150 
146,917 
162,164 
231,283 

86,946 
58,801 

3,563 
1,373,110 
2,912,169 

39,292 

21,890 
12,880 
67,595 

102,365 
(63,073) 

1,397,647 

1,334,574 

lim 

1,979,410 
91,099 
28,995 
22,646 

326,717 
128,519 
37,135 

2,6141521 
121,604 
68,748 
19,157 

105 
37,644 

2,861,779 

431,358 
304,377 
47,119 

365,514 
728,4&9 
29,762 

1,906,619 
416,758 

1,489,&61 

232,670 
135,829 
229,829 
143,743 
167,118 
240,227 
126,853 
57,776 

1,334,045 
2,823,906 

37,873 

32,635 
11,234 
78,718 

122,587 
(84,714) 

1,482,361 

1,397,647 

SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL BOUSE PUBLICATIONS 

Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 

Cash Flows from Operatine Activities 

Decrease in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile decrease in net assets to net operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Receivables 
Inventories 
Deferred charges IUld prepaid expenses 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Due to affiJiated organization 

Net operatine activities 

Cash Flows from lnyestine Activities 

Purchase of property, plantlllld equipment 

Net investing activities 

Cash F1ows from Financing Activities 

Proceeds from long tenn debt 
Repayments of long term debt 

Net financing activities 

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash at beginning of year 

Cash at end of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, as reported on the balance sbeet, as foUows: 
Cash and interest bearing deposits 
Cash invested with the Free Will Baptist Foundation 

Supplemental disclosures: 
Interest, including finance charges paid 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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s 

$ 

s 

100l 

(63,073) 

106,547 

(60,374) 
88,297 
(5,035) 

(5,468) 
(755) 
{846) 

59,293 

(504,673) 

(504,673) 

400,000 
(7,972) 

3921028 

(53,352) 

503,329 

449 977 

65,139 
3841838 

449 977 

$====3==,5=6~3 

2002 

(84,714) 

104,895 

11,475 
14,600 

1,562 

21,812 
7,189 
6,142 

82,961 

(100,602) 

(100,602) 

(17,641) 

520,970 

503.329 

109,680 
393,649 

503,329 



(1) 

SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBLICATIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2003 and 2002 

Summarv of Sienificant Accountine Policies 
Oreanization 
The Board operates under the auspices of the National Association of Free Wtll Baptists and is 
governed by a Board ofDirectors. 

Basis of Presentation 
The financial statements of the Board have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

The Board adheres to the provisions of Statement of Financial Standards (SF AS) No. 117 
"Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations". Under SFAS No. 117, the Board is 
required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three 
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets; temporarily restricted net assets; and permanently 
restricted net assets, if any. In addition, the Board is required to present a statement of cash 
flows. 

Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost of market, with cost being determined by use of the 
first-in, first-out method. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs, 
renewals, and betterments that do not significantly extend the useful lives of assets are expensed 
as incurred. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method. 

Income Taxes 

The Board is exempt from federal and state income taxes; accordingly, no provision for income 
taxes is made in the accounts. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all cash on hand, deposits 
with financial institutions, and debt instruments with an original maturity of three months or less 
to be cash and cash equivalents. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements reqwres management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
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(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

SUNDAYSCHOOLANDCHURCHTRAnUNGBOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBLICATIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Summary of Si~ifieant Accountine Policies. continued 

Fair Value of Financial Statements . . ts able and accrued 
The carrying value of cash, accounts rece1vable, mventory, accoun pay . 

ximate fair value because of the short maturity of the instruments. The carrymg 
~:ue;:~~ ~~~~~ties are not materially different from the estimated fair value of these instruments. 

Channs in Presentation 
1 

ifi d t n£ 
CertaiJl amounts in the prior period financial statements may have been rec ass e o co onn 

to current presentation. 

Concentration of Credit Risk . · · 1 d 
The Board is a distributor of Bible based Sunday school an~ chu~ch trauung cum~uhum, ~ t 

ther denominational publications. The Board extends credtt to Jts customers w c consts 0 
rimarily of Free Will Baptist churches and religious bookstores. These acc~unts are not 

~ollateralized and are subject to accounting risk of loss arn~unting ~o thF e oudt~d~~:eal:~::~ 
· t · t. e Further funds invested with the Free Wtll Baptist oun a 10n ~ . . 

any porn m 1m · ' . d rtifi f d oSlt deposited m of $308 372 are subject to risk of accounting loss. Cash an ce cates o ep 
a local bank are insured by the F.D .I.C. Up to a maximum of$100,000. 

A&reement with Affiliated Oaanization to Distrib~te Hy~n~s B k fi the Executive 
The Board warehouses and distributes The Free W1ll Baptlst ymn _oo . or 
Offi of the National Association of Free Will Baptists. The Board mvotces the customer, 
coll:ts funds and remits $6.32 to the Executive Board. As of December 31, 2003aland ~02, 
respectively, the Board was warehousing approximately 11,500 and 17,500 hymn s Wl an 
estimated replacement value or $46,600 and $71,000. 

Beginning amount due to Executive Office 
Total sales ofhymnals 
Less total fees earned 
Less remittances to the Executive Office 

Amount due to Executive Office 

Since 

2003 Inception 

$ 7,229 
77,277 779,078 

(39,680) (394,987) 
(38,443) (377,708) 

s ===6~3=8=3= ====6 =38=3-

( 4) Inventory 
Inventories consist of the following: 

Finished curriculum 
Work in progress 
Bookstore 
Printing raw materials 
Warehoused other books and merchandise 

Total inventory 
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$ 
2003 

24,113 
54,087 
68,030 
23,137 

159,094 

$ ===3=28=,4=6=1 

2002 
30,023 
52,277 

132,280 
23,137 

179,041 
416,758 



(5) Pension 

SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 

AND RANDALL BOUSE PUBUCATIONS 
Notes to FUlADcial Statements. continued 

The Board participates in the master pension plan of the Board of Retirement and Insurance of 
the National Association of Free Will Baptists. The plan is contributory and is matched up to a 
maximum of 5% of compensation. Employees with two years of service may participate. 
Pension expense amounted to $39,604 and $42,275 for the years ended December 31,2003 and 
2002, respectively. The pension plan is a defined contribution plan. Under the plan, an account 
is maintained for each participant and upon retirement the participant can either receive a 
lump-sum distribution or purchase of several types of annuity contracts. 

(6) Lona-Term Debt 
The Board has a 5.06% installment obligation, repayable monthly at $5,666 including principal 
and interest, with final payment due October 2010. The outstanding balance as ofDecember 
31, 2003 amounted to $392,028. This obligation is secured by a printing press with a cost of 
$394,438. 

The installment obligation matures as follows: $49,267 in 2004; $51,821 in 2005; $54,507 in 
2006; $57,333 in 2007; $60,305 in 2008; and $118,795 in years thereafter. 

(7) Youth Department 
The purpose of the Youth Department is to provide ministries and services to youth and youth 
workers of Association. The following is a summary of the department's activities: 

2003 2002 

Revenue from conferences and related services $ 182 490 205 654 

Expenditures for conferences and related services 139,268 160,449 
General and administrative expenses 110 817 1232923 

Total expenditures 250,085 284,372 

Excess of expenses over revenues $ {67,595) F8,7182 

(8) Contributed Services to Denominational Ministries 
During the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Board contributed printing costs to 
the Denomination as follows: 

Church Directory 
Outreach Magazine 
Together Way 

Total contnbuted services 
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$ 

2003 

10,641 
9,709 
1 540 

$-===2=1=,8=90== 

2002 

14,550 
18,085 

32,635 

Description of Account 

Revenues: 
Sales - RHP 
Sales - Bookstore 
Freight & Handling 
Disposal of Assets 
Other Income 
Discounts Given 

Total Revenues 

Expenses: 
Cost of Outside Purchases 
Creative Services 
Cost of Printing Production 
Spanish 
Depreciation 

Total Cost of Sales 

General Expenses: 
Marketing Dept 
Bookstore 
Administrative 
Sales/Customer Servtee 
Shipping 
Building 
General 

Total General Expenses 

Total Expenses 

lncrease/(Decrease) in 
Assets 

Other Expenses 
Denominational 

Ministries 
Youth Department 

Total Other Expenses 
lncrease/(Decrease} in 
Assets 

2005 

$3.412,869 
$326,450 
$120,311 

$0 
$256,810 
-$515,450 

-- ----------·---
$3,600,990 

........ ..... ...... -------· 

$409,569 
$534,657 
$623,839 

$0 
$76,000 

$1 ,644,066 

$195,223 
$181 ,195 
$242,398 
$362,997 
$236,164 
$162,959 
$324,842 

$1 ,705,779 

$3,349,845 

$251 ,145 

-----------------

-$53.000 
-$68.959 

-$121.959 

$129,186 

==-=====~===-= 

Description of Account 
General Expenses 

Supplies 
Equ1pment Maintenance 
Equipment Rental 
Honorariums 
Board Travel & Expense 
Legal & Auditing 
Automobile Expense 
Bad Debt 
Recreation Fund Expense 
Taxes 
Payroll Services 
Miscellaneous 
Research and Development 
Depreciation 
Interest Expense 
Service Charge 

Total General Expenses 

2005 

$3,000 
$8,000 
$5,000 

$500 
$15,000 
$10,000 

$2,500 
$1,000 
$4,000 

$12,742 
$4,000 

$10,000 
$150,000 

$62,000 
$24,000 
$13,100 

$324,842 

Printing Production 
Salaries & Wages $169•359 

Travel Expense $1•000 
$1 000 

Supplies $
100 Entertainment 

Outside Printing $120·000 

Outside Bindery :~~·~: 
FICA $5:523 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Pressroom Supplies 

Pressroom Maintenance 
Pressroom Parts 
Pressroom Stock 

Pressroom Ink 
Bindery Supplies 
Bindery Maintenance 

Bindery Parts 
Camera Film - Negatives 
Stripping Supplies 
Stripping Plates 
Miscellaneous 

Total Printing Production 
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$26,901 
$18,000 

$10,000 
$5,000 

$160,000 

$14,000 
$6,000 
$2,500 

$2,500 
$20,000 

$500 
$28,000 

$500 

$623,839 



Description of Account 2005 
Administrative 

Salaries & Wages $124,480 
Housing Allowance $30,778 
Travel Expense $25,000 
Supplies $5,000 
Equipment Maintenance $2,000 
Equ1pment Rental $1,000 
Conventions & Seminars $3,000 
Dues & Subscriptions $500 
Entertainment $3,000 
Postage $3,000 
Telephone $2,500 
FICA $11,616 
Retirement $14,404 
Insurance $13,121 
Automobile Expense $2,500 
Miscellaneous $500 

----·------
Total Administrative $242,398 

Creative Services 
Salaries & 
Housing 
Travel 

Wages $257,623 

Supplies 
Equipment Ma~ntenance 
Conventions & Seminars 
Software Supply 
Dues & Subscnptions 
Art Services 
National Expense 
Entertainment 
Postage 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Curriculum Development 

Writer's Fees 
Register of Copyrights 
Miscellaneous 

Total Creative Serv1ces 

$47,128 
$5,000 

$12,000 
$4,500 
$2,500 
$2,500 

$300 
$7,500 
$2,500 
$1,000 

$500 
$14,374 

$8,740 
$41,592 
$25,000 

$100,000 
$1,000 

$900 

$534,657 
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Descript ion of Account 2005 
Marketing 

Salaries & Wages $36,571 
Housing Allowance $581 
Travel Expense $10,000 
Supplies $8,000 
Equipment Maintenance $500 
Conventions & Seminars $6,500 
Dues & Subscriptions $500 
National Expense $12,000 
Entertainment $2,500 
Postage $18,000 
FICA $4,632 
Retirement $1,789 
Insurance $18,151 
Advertising $60,000 
Promotion $15,000 
Miscellaneous $500 

------·-----------
Total Marketing $195,223 

Sales/Customer Service 
Salaries & Wages $226,978 
Travel Expense $1•000 
Sup~hes $8•000 
Equ~pment Maintenance $1 O,OOO 
Equ1p~ent Rental $500 
Royalt1e~ $8,000 
Conventions & Seminars $5 000 
Dues & Subscriptions $1 :ooo 
Postage $5,000 
Telephone $20,000 
FICA $17,364 
Retirement 
Insurance $

2
•
000 

Promotions $4
2

•
855 

Miscellaneous $
15

•
000 

$300 

Total Sales/Customer 
Service $362,997 

Salaries & Wages 
Supplies 

Building 

Equipment Maintenance 
Equipment Rental 
Telephone 
FICA 
Insurance 
Building Maintenance 
Utilities 
Bu1ld1ng Insurance 
Miscellaneous 

Total Building 

$21,745 
$8,000 
$5,000 
$1,000 
$1,500 
$1,664 
$4,750 

$35,000 
$50,000 
$34,000 

$300 

$162,959 

Description of Account 2005 
Denominational Ministries 

Team Church Travel $3,000 
Team Church Supplies $1,000 
Team Church Promotion $2,000 
TEAM Church Expense $19,500 
Together Way Printing $2,000 
Outreach Magazine/Outword $40,000 
Church Directory- Yearbook $5,000 
Stewardship Lessons $2,000 
Scholarships $3,000 

---------------------
Total Denom. Ministries 

OM Revenues 
DM Expense 

DM Profit/(Loss) 

SCM Revenues 
NYC Fees & Collections 
Truth & Peace Collections 
YET Collections 
NYW Retreat Collections 
Youth Collections 
SpringBoard 

Total SCM Revenues 

$77,500 

$24,500 
-$77,500 

-$53,000 

$80,556 
$63,468 

$6,658 
$25,786 

$3,249 
$13,723 

$193.439 

Salaries 
Travel Expense 
Supplies 

Bookstore 

Equipment Maintenance 
Software Fees & Services 
Convention & Seminars 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Promotion 
Postage 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Advertising 
Workshops Expense 
Miscellaneous 

Total Bookstore 

$105,977 
$10,000 

$1,000 
$500 

$3,000 
$1 ,500 

$500 
$5,000 
$3,500 
$8,107 
$3,587 

$22,224 
$15,000 

$1,000 
$300 

$181 ,195 

SCM Expense 

Salaries & Wages $53,659 
$15,277 

$2,460 
$2,737 

$154 

Housing Allowance 
Travel Expense 
Supplies 
Fundraising Expense 
Conventions & Seminars 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Entertainment 
Postage 
Telephone 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
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NYC Expense 
Truth & Peace Expense 
NYET Expense 
NYW Retreat Expense 
SpringBoard 
Convention Workers' 
Salaries 
Miscellaneous 

Total SCM Expense 

SCM Revenues 
SCM Expense 

SCM (Revenue/Expense) 

$228 
$350 

$82 
$1 ,977 
$2,259 
$5,274 
$2,878 

$27,1 45 
$41,059 
$54,805 

$3,789 
$22,490 
$19,076 

$6,405 
$294 

-------------------
$262,398 

====-======= 
$193,439 

-$262,398 

-$68,959 



GENERAL DIRECTOR 
2004 

RONALD HUNTER, JR 
SALARY $36,085 
HOUSING ALLOWANCE $27,n8 
CHRISTMAS BONUS $1,228 

COMPENSATION TOTAL 
INSURANCE $65,091 

SOCIAL SECURITY 
$13,452 

RETIREMENT $3,193 
BENEFITS TOTAL 

$16,645 
TOTAL PAY PACKAGE 

$81,736 

ASSIST ANT DIRECTOR 
CLARENCE LEWIS 
SALARY $57,553 
HOUSING ALLOWANCE $0 
CHRISTMAS BONUS $863 

COMPENSATION TOTAL 
$58,416 INSURANCE $5,503 

SOCIAL SECURITY $4,469 
RETIREMENT $2.878 

BENEFITS TOTAL 
TOTAL PAY PACKAGE 

$12,850 
$71 ,266 

EDITOR IN CHIEF 
KEITH FLETCHER 
SALARY $32,648 
HOUSING ALLOWANCE $16,912 
CHRISTMAS BONUS $743 

COMPENSATION TOTAL 
$50,303 INSURANCE $15,181 

SOCIAL SECURITY $3,848 
RETIREMENT $2.478 

BENEFITS TOTAL 
TOTAL PAY PACKAGE 

$21,507 
$71,810 

SCM DIRECTOR 
DEAN JONES 
SALARY $23,060 
HOUSING ALLOWANCE $15,277 
CHRISTMAS BONUS $575 

COMPENSATION TOTAL 
INSURANCE $38,912 

SOCIAL SECURITY 
$15,150 
$2,9n 

RETIREMENT $1.917 
BENEFITS TOTAL 
TOTAL PAY PACKAGE 

$20,044 
$58,956 

•**SCM DIRECTOR LISTED AT 85% 
(COMPENSATION) 
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2005 
PROJECTED 
PACKAGE 

$36,432 
$30,778 

$1.293 

$14,400 

$3,361 

$59,280 
$0 

$889 

$5,400 
$4,603 
$2.964 

$34,135 
$16,912 

$766 

$14,400 
$3,964 
$2.552 

$24,210 
$15,277 

$592 

$14,400 
$3,066 
~1,974 

$68,503 

~17,761 
$86,263 

$60,169 

~12,967 
$73,136 

$51 ,813 

~20,916 
$72,729 

$40,079 

119,440 
$59,519 

Summary of the Minutes 
for the Sunday School and Church Training Board 

2003-2004 

The Board had three meetings in the past year. The first meeting 
was held at the National Association in Tampa, Florida. At that meeting, 
we received a presentation of the new CLEAR Learning System, approved 
seven writers, approved a special meeting with the Bookstores in 2004 to 
discuss contract issues, elected officers and determined committees. 

The second meeting was held at Randall House in December after 
the Leadership Conference. At that meeting, we approved one writer and 
approved the speakers for the Youth Worship Services for NYC '04. 

The Bookstore Committee met with the Bookstores at Randall 
House Publishing on March 16-17, 2004 to discuss contract issues. 

The third meeting was held April 26-27, 2004 at Randall House. At 
that meeting, we reviewed the 2003 audit and approved the 2005 
budget. We accepted the 2005 NYC theme, decided to continue to 
publish both Free Will Baptist and non-Free Will Baptist authors who will 
edify Free Will Baptists and help fulfill the mission statement of Randall 
House Publications, established guidelines for non-Free Will Baptist 
authors, approved three new writers, three new books, and we voted to 
grant the General Director a 5% increase. 

A- 239 



Commission for Theological Integrity Report 

The purpose of this commission is: (1) To alert our people to theological trends that could 
threaten our theological integrity as a denomination, (2) To prepare materials that wiH contribute 
to the continued preservation of the theological integrity of the denomination, and (3) As need 
and opportunities arise, to conduct seminars on subjects which are pertinent to the purpose of the 
commiSSIOn. 

On November 3-4, 2003 we sponsored our eighth annual Theological Symposium. It met 
at Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College in Moore, Oklahoma. Papers were read on a variety of 
subjects. The interest was good. We continue to be encouraged by the quality of the papers that 
are read in our Symposiums. The Theological Symposium for 2004 will be conducted at Free 
Will Baptist Bible College in Nashville, Tennessee. It will begin Monday evening, October 25 
and go through Tuesday evening, October 26. 

At the National Association in 2000, we introduced the flrst issue of Integrity: A Journal 
of Christian Thought. The publication of the Journal is a joint venture of the Commission for 
Theological Integrity, Free Will Baptist Bible College, Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College and 
Randall House Publications. 

The second issue of Integrity: A Journal of Christian Thought was mailed to our pastors 
and denominational leaders in the summer of 2003. For this issue, Dr. Paul Harrison served as 
Editor-in-Chief. Dr. Robert Picirilli served as Associate Editor. They are to be commended for 
the excellent job that they have done. Dr. Harrison and Dr. Picirilli are now working on the third 
issue of the Journal. The third issue of the Journal will be out in the Summer or the Fall of 2005. 

For several years we have been sponsoring a seminar at our National Association on 
areas of concern. In the light of recent events on the world scene, we have felt an urgent need for 
us to increase our understanding of Islam. To achieve that need, we have asked Clint Morgan to 
conduct our seminar. The title of his paper is " Islam l 0 l: The Foundation of the Islamic Faith." 
Brother Morgan has had considerable experience in working in areas where there is a strong 
Muslim presence. This seminar is scheduled Tuesday afternoon 3:00-4:30 in the Convention 
Center in Room 221 0. 

We thank you for the privilege of serving you. 

In His Service, 

Leroy Forlines, Chairman 
Paul Harrison, Secretary 
Daryl Ellis 
Jeff Manning 
Matt Pinson 
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Commission for Theological Integrity 
January_ December 31, 2003 

Financial Report 

Bank Balance - January 1 ' 2003 

INCOME 

commission Income: 

The Together Way 
Interest on Bank Account 
Rest of The Family Offering 
Theological Symposium Papers 

Total commission Income 

Journal Income: 

Journal Sales 
FWBBC Gift 

Total Journal Income 

Total Income 

EXPENSES 

commission Expenses: 

Bookkeeping 
Convention Speaker/Digest of Reports 
Annual Meeting and Symposium Expenses 
Miscellaneous Office Expenses 

Total Commission Expenses 

Journal Expenses 

Total Expenses 

Bank Balance- December 31,2003 
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$2,957.05 
7.83 

219.15 
530.00 

3,714.03 

121 .00 
1.500.00 

1,621.00 

250.00 
597.92 

3,258.96 
8.42 

4,115.30 

4,482.16 

$8,938.81 

5,335.03 

8,597.46 

$5,676.38 

.... 

· . .. 
• 

'I 
.\,o &.. • ...&. ... i 



2005 
Commission for Theological Integrity 

Budget 

INCOME 

Journal Gifts 
Theological Symposium Papers 
Together Way Plan 
Interest Income 

Total Income 

EXPENSES 

Annual Meeting 
Bookkeeping 
Journal Expenses 
National Convention 
Office 
Theological Symposium Printing 

Total Expenses 
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$1 ,500.00 
800.00 

4,000.00 
50.00 

$6.350.00 

$2,000.00 
400.00 

2,225.00 
600.00 
125.00 

1 .000.00 

$6,350.00 

2004 Historical Commission Report 

The Commission completed work on the first in a series of historical pamphlets. 
The series is titled, The Free Will Baptist Heritage Series: Foundations of Faith and 
Practice. The first pamphlet, "The Washing of the Saints' Feet," was written by Dr. 

William F. Davidson and Dr. Robert E. Picirilli. 
To order copies of the feet washing pamphlet, contact Randall House 

Publications, P .0. Box 17306, Nashville, TN 37217. 
Dr. Robert Picirilli will write the second historical pamphlet on the possibility of 

apostasy. This pamphlet will be available in time for the 2005 convention in Louisville, 

Kentucky. The Commission authorized installation of built-in bookcases for the History 
Room in Welch Library at Free Will Baptist Bible College which houses the Free Will 

Baptist Historical Collection. Three members of the Commission (Robert Picirilli , Darrell Holley and Jack 
Williams) will serve as a committee to prepare a written Collection Development Policy 

for the Historical Collection. The Commission suspended work on the Historical Guidebook project and will 

revisit it at a later time. 

Financial Report, 2003 

Balance on hand, December 31, 2002 ................................................... $ 10,236.89 

2003 Deposits/Earnings 
Together Way (designated and undesignated) ..... 3,007.19 
Interest (Am South Bank) ............................................ 33.68 

Total ............................................................................... 3,040.87 

2003 Expenditures 
Paul Kennedy (travel) ............................................... 486.50 
Joe McKnight (travel) ............................................... 609.99 
2002 Digest Fee ......................................................... 44.92 
2003 Digest Fee ......................................................... 48.96 

Total .......................................................................... ($ 1,190.37) 
Balance in bank. December 31, 2003 ....................................................... $ 12,087.39 
Trust Fund at FWB Foundation, December 31, 2003 ................................... 21,558.65 
Total on hand, December 31 , 2003 ........................................... .............. $ 33,646.04 

2005 Budget 

Income Gifts (The Together Way) .......................................... $ 2,400.00 
Interest (AmSouth Bank) .................................................. 400.00 

Total $ 2,800.00 

Expenses Books, materials. labor .............................................. $ 1 ,000.00 
Pamphlet Project ............................................................. 500.00 
Research Grant ............................................................ 1,000.00 
Travel ........................................................................... 1,100.00 
2004 Digest fee ................................................................. 50.00 

Total $ 2,800.00 
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Whore outreach becomes professional communication 

FREE WILL BAPTIST l\IEDIA CO'\tJMISSIOI\ 

The Free Will Baptist Media Commission stands at a crossroads in its ministry. Our vision to 
help Free Will Baptists present Christ and our denomination to the world in the ve1y best way has not 
dimmed. We believe Free Will Baptists still have the best doctrine and the best people in the world 
and we long to a!->sist this great denomi11ation to reach more people in more ways than ever before. 

Our present!)' ofTered products iJ1clude radio and TV ad\ ertisements, \ideo brochures about 
the heritage and ministry of Free Will Baptists for local churches to usc in their outreach ministry, and 
a musical collection on cassette. CD. and \ideo of some of the best Free Will Baptists musical talent. 
We are present!) 1nthe process of convening all of these matenals to d1gital fom1at for long term 
pre sen at ion and case of distribution. This project bas caused some delay 1n the prompt response to 
product requests but we believe ,.,.e will be able to respond'' ith a better \er ... ion of our products in a 
much more ttmely manner in the future . 

Vvc arc \Cry happ)' to report that the Med1a Commtsston began 2004 DEBT FREE. Sadly. our 
income from dcs1gnatcd gilts, our portion of the Cooperative Program. and from sale ofproducts has 
not been enough to allo\\ us to launch into any recent major prOJecto., but we contmue to look at '' ays 
to usc our available resources 111 the best possible wa} to help carry ollt our mission. 

The Mcd1a Comm1ssion looks back at \\hat has been accompltshed \\ith great rejoicing. We 
look ahead at what needs to be achieved with great antictpation. We stand at a cross roads of oppor­
tunity and chal lcnge as we look for ways to assist our churches and the denomination in their use of 
modern methods and means to proclaim the old time gospel message. Your prayers and mput are 
appreciated. 

Mike Jones. Chairman (SC) 

Doug Kite. Secretary-Treasurer (NC) 
Ke"in Non·is (MI) 
Monte McKenLie (GA) 

Sandy GoodfeiiO\\ (TN) 

Media Commission 2005 Budget 
Income: 

Touethcr Wa\ ...... ............................. $2000.00 ~ . 
Designated G1fts ................................ S 1500.00 
Scrnces Sales .................................... S 1500.00 
Total .................................................. $5000.00 

Cxpense: 

Conumssion Expense .......................... $2000.00 
Product Production ............................. $2000.00 
Convent• on Expense ........................... $1000.00 
Total .................................................... $5000.00 
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Income 

NAFWB Media Commission 
2003 Financial Report 

$63.54 Alabama 
568.11 Arkansas 
339 69 California 

37.41 Florida 
263.00 Georgia 

88.36 Illinois 
6.30 Indiana 

41.88 Kentucky 
82.54 Michigan 

537.04 Missouri 
189.73 Mississippi 
772.26 North Carolina 
128.92 Ohio 
360.28 Oklahoma 
554.49 South Carolina 
428.59 Tennessee 

39.88 Texas 
4.38 West Virginia 

33.35 Others 
Total Gifts: 

Interest 
Sales 
Projects 

Expenditures 
Loan Payment 
Project Expense 
Convention 
Postage 
Commission Expenses 
Merchant account fees 
Advertising 
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$4,539.75 

14.88 
1111 .64 
1201.45 

$6,867.72 

$2,936.00 
375.00 
779.40 

34.56 
412.08 
351.70 
250.00 

$5,138.74 



FWB Music Commission 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 

July 18-22, 2004 

The Music Commission has been active in planning the music for the 2004 National 
Convention in Kansas City, Missouri. The commission held its annual meeting at First 
Free Will Baptist Church in Gastonia, North Carolina. on January 8-9. 2004. The agenda 
at this meet ing, presented by Dr. Randy Sawyer, was as follows: 

l . Evaluate and discuss the 2003 National Convention music. 
2. Plan the entire music program for the 2004 National Convention. 
3. Discuss plans for a new hymnal. 
4. Discuss future projects and vision for the commission. 

I. Evaluate and discuss the 2003 National Association Convention music. 
A. Met with Keith Burden for flfst time as Executive Secretary. 
B. Thanked Scou Bullman for years of service. 
C. Dr. Sawyer recommended that Chris Truett be the new Convention Music 

Coordinator. and the commission approved. 

II. Plan the entire music program for the 2004 National Association Convention. 
o Selected Worship Leaders for 2004 convention. 
u Selected choir songs for 2004 convention. 
o Selected special music (others to be selected a:o. suggestions were submitted). 

lll. Discuss plans for a new hymnal. 
u Current hymnal stock at Randall House: approximately I I ,000 copies FWB 

vers1on. 
J Based upon a discussion with Secretary Burden, the conclusion was drawn that 

there is no money available for a hymnal survey at this time. (This survey was a 
part of the Music Commission's 2003 proposals.) 

CJ It may be possible and much more cost-effective to reprint the current hymnal. 

IV. Discuss future projects and vision for the commission. 
This year's Music Commission project is another compilation of ideas from various 
ministers of music. The booklet is entitled Fun & Functional Music Ministry. In the 
60-page guide one will find practical and helpful ideas to a..<.;si~t in the organization of 
a music mini.., try in the local church. The guide gives admini-.trative insight to areas 
such as: 

:J Resources for Music Ministry 
:J Adult Choir Concepts 
CJ Youth/Children· s Choirs 
.J The Pastor & Worship Leader Relationship 
o General Music Ministry Ideas 
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u AudioNideo Ministry Tips 
:J Other Resources 
o Choir Rehearsal Anecdotes . . 

· th 1f mUSIC 
. o ur local churches in developm~ e . 

The commission has a heart for helpmo o . ·on members are actively mvolved m 
and worship ministries. Some of ~he ~:~~~~s for churches in the ~ea ~f music 
helping other churches by presenu~g . an effort to place pracucal ideas and 

s of comptlattOnS are . t ed and worship. These type h. h will provide Christ-ceo er ' 
resources into tbe hands of our. churdcheosrwshitpc for our local churches. 

d ized mustc an w passionate, an organ 

V. Conclusion nk 11 those who have contributed to the 2004 NHa~io~~l sono 
We would like t~ tba: . a . see and hear God's people praising un I . n ~Will 
Convention musiC. It IS a JOy.to . .t A man once asked the questlo ' . 
God does not need our worship; ~eHdeshiies 't~ endure it?" Let's pray that God will 

orship or wtll e ave 
God embrace your ":' h . we come before Him. 
embrace our worship eac ume 

. . t articipate in the convention m~sic every year. 
There are numerous opp~rturuues o p o more people to participate m the . 
The commission would like to enchoudraolee is printed each year in the convenuoakn 

. · An advance sc e u . h Please m e conventiOn mustc. N · al Convenuon broc ure. 
edition of Contact, as well as in the atton e others to use their talents for the 

b . volved next year and encourag 
plans to em 
Kingdom. 

Respectfully submitted, . . . 
The Free Will Baptist MuslC Commtsslon 

Dr. Randy Sawyer, Chairman 
Donnie Burke 
Jerry Carraway 
Doug Little 
Chris Truett 
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Music Commission Financial Statement 
1 anuary- December 2003 

Beginning Balance 

Income 
Together Way 
Rest of the Family Offering 
Music Sales 

States and Churches 
Alabama 
Texas 

Total Income 

Expenses 

Donelson Church, TN 
Roaring Creek Church NC 
Unity Church, NC ' 

National Convention 
Music Commission Meetin 0' 

Pre-Convention Rehearsal 
0 

FWB Foundation -Loan Payment 
Office Expense 

Total Expenses 

Ending Balance 

$ 51.05 
16.72 

237.37 
7.24 

160.00 

Income Proposed Budget for 2005 

Co-op 
Music Sales 
States and Churches 

Total Income 

$ 2,000.00 
1.000.00 

500.00 

$ 2,143.22 
231.39 

1,193.50 

472.38 

917.28 
1,118.34 
1,099.77 
3,099.03 

22.26 

$ 3,361.39 

$ 7.401.88 

(6,256.68) 

1.145.20 

$ 3,500.00 
Expenses 

National Convention 
Board Meetings 
Office Expenses 

Total Expenses 

1,500.00 
1,500.00 

500.00 
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3,500.00 
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Statistical Report Reporting Period 2003 

.r -.. 0 ... e-g 
"' ·- ... - .. .. .. .. 

1 . ., 
"I 0 ... ... :0 0 c z 

Alobomo 14 14 153 
Arizona 1 1 6 
Arkansas¥ 15 15 213 
Assn. of Mexi<O 5 5 28 
Col~ornia 7 7 54 
Canada 1 1 10 
(olomdo £ 1 1 8 
Florida 9 9 70 
Georgia • 10 10 117 
Howoil 1 
Idaho* 2 8 
Illinois 7 7 43 
Indiana 3 2 25 
Kansas 2 2 9 
Kentucky 10 10 146 
Mid-Mantle ; 1 1 7 
Mexko Assn. * 3 16 
Michigan 6 5 43 
Mississippi 3 3 50 
Missouri 18 18 185 
Monlono* 2 
New Je/Sey 1 1 2 
New Mexko 1 1 4 
North Carolina 8 8 187 
Northeast t 1 l 4 
Northwest§ 1 1 6 
Ohio 19 19 152 
Oklahoma 24 23 241 
Puerto Rico 1 
South (orolina 6 6 122 
South Dakotu 1 
Tennessoo 8 a 213 
Texas 6 6 52 
Viroin Islands 1 1 1 
Virginia B 8 92 
West Viroinia 21 21 187 ... . ? 

TOTAlS 223 215 2 461 

¥ Includes 5 Louisiana churches 
£ Includes 1 Wyoming church 
•Includes 1 Alosko church 
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1 
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4 
6 
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1 
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1 
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50 
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92 
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76 85 85 60 249 17,603 698 
4 2 4 41 166 61 

93 115 88 as 620 19144 1 065 
14 14 0 28 20 28 
47 7 42 12 214 2,890 163 
3 7 5 s 27 286 2 
8 8 21 20 

32 38 38 29 281 5,735 396 
42 75 78 37 290 8,791 540 
1 1 19 45 26 

262 
27 16 23 12 150 3,774 199 
16 5 14 7 85 1,120 75 
9 3 4 66 385 69 

44 102 40 85 750 16,134 807 
2 5 5 2 

215 193 
15 36 33 15 163 2,249 253 
90 94 101 76 488 14,961 670 

21 
2 1 64 

3 1 2 1 56 3 
86 89 153 22 1,190 15,497 1 537 
1 3 4 16 249 52 
6 0 4 2 32 270 27 

74 78 65 79 573 9953 626 
151 70 143 70 860 24 128 1 262 

1 1 5 
34 88 80 42 522 5,051 599 

1 4 
66 56 78 32 627 33100 754 
31 19 32 16 106 1 799 342 
1 l 15 192 1 

32 60 38 49 209 6,348 405 
45 142 87 100 544 8 491 181 
2 7 4 31 30 

1 056 1209 1 259 870 B 407 198 795 11 084 

t Delaware, Maryland, New Jersey, Pennsylvania 
t Moine, New Hampshire, Rhode Island 
§ Oregon, Washington 
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320 378 17,981 

19 42 208 
604 461 19 605 

28 28 
132 31 2,921 

5 (3) 283 
18 2 2 

207 189 5,924 
243 297 9,088 
19 7 52 

0 262 
99 100 3,874 
17 58 11178 
17 52 437 

522 285 16,419 
0 0 
0 0 

110 83 83 
90 163 2,412 

457 213 I 5,17 4 
0 21 

4 (4) 60 
5 (2} 54 

890 647 16_144 
8 44 293 

10 17 287 
368 258 10 211 
552 710 24 838 

0 0 
282 317 5,368 

0 0 
351 403 33 503 
46 296 2 095 
3 (2) 190 

96 309 6,657 
181 8,672 
30 29 

5 494 5 590 204 353 

*Did not report 
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15048 2 426,349 
248 426]61 

18 695 10 980.176 
1068 
2 738 2,080,911 

299 754,244 
205 305,273 

5 818 2,226,400 
9,301 5,959,503 

39 100,000 

3 706 2,624,142 
1,169 

370 239,464 
15,793 

2,144 1,276,565 
4,104 2,501,405 

14,563 9,051,840 

60 
so 

22 063 34,903,049 
250 
239 221,764 

9 551 6 245 504 
22 563 14 686 101 

25 
6,S05 4,277,699 

18,000 
19 622 2 047 641 
2 798 2 252 926 

197 91 291 
6,622 1,156,921 
8,672 2,783,349 

58 43992 
194 583 09 681270 
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Alabama 12 39 17 889 952 
Arizona 6 1 2,097,500 
Arkansas¥ 45 63 47,827,197 
Assn. of Mexic 
California 23 16 22.986.100 
Canedo 3 3 1.356.512 
Colorado£ 3 1 2,481,736 
Florida 26 37 16,279,933 
Georoio • 34 56 31101 238 
Howoii 1 1 
Idaho* 
Illinois 24 18 14 860 000 
Indio no 
Kansas 2 1 422 110 
Kentucky 4 
Mid-Atlontic t 2 3 000,000 
Mexico Assn.* 
Michioon 6 890 000 
Mississippi 35 27 10,717,700 
Missouri 60 46 50 311 300 
Montano* 
New Jersev 275 000 
New Mexico 2 
North ( nrolino 109 65 78.?05.598 
Northeost t 3 1 
Northwest & 3 2 BOO 000 
Ohio 38 24 41 839.791 
Oklahoma 57 55 66,459,478 
Puerto Rico 
South Carolina 38 38 118,700 321 
South Ookoto 162 000 
Tennessee 35 44 40.073.500 
Texas 16 14 8,529 711 
Virain Islands 1 1 2.350 000 
Viroinio 23 9 22 445 462 
West Virainio 44 12 54 089 360 
Wis<Onsin 1 486_,000 
TOTAlS 642 579 665,637,500 

¥ Includes 5 Louisiana churches 
£ Includes 1 Wyoming church 
• Includes 1 Alaska church 

Statistical Report 
Reporting Period 2003 
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6 743 911 495 88 227 48 
156 92 29 24 8 

10,483 1, 941 1,019 231 312 61 
560 280 200 14 14 

3.362 40 168 71 79 10 
332 16 65 0 7 1 
65 27 8 5 1 

2,829 441 435 225 95 16 
4 643 1104 690 178 134 27 

45 2 1 

1 771 491 193 45 71 13 

284 45 31 55 12 2 
7 892 1 051 660 158 408 27 

10 

110 214 24 55 5 
3,011 612 283 205 59 3 
8 084 916 682 253 301 47 

28 2 
4 2 

14.518 1.073 1.471 346 330 91 
180 4 
274 30 23 6 

.8.239 240 503 249 318 26 
22,338 2,497 1,104 286 373 56 

25 1 
4 400 770 672 324 183 4 

30 1 
7.043 1 236 638 137 364 49 
1,481 94 215 134 61 11 

100 75 10 4 
3 673 489 597 75 172 21 
8 075 462 475 71 412 26 

27 2 
120,691 14,706 10,986 3,412 4,035 561 

t Delaware, Maryland, New Jersey, Pennsylvania 
t Moine, New Hampshire, Rhode Island 
§ Oregon, Washington 
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345 6 5 4 
2 

465 4 6 5 1,153,811 
20 175,000 
73 1 4 8 2 1 694.656 

1 
127 4 2 1 
401 2 2 2 790 000 

1 

1.110 1 1 750 000 

4 
388 2 1 2 

17 

41 
128 2 2 1 
343 3 1 3 3 450,000 

1 
4 

602 4 6 5 1 1 
6 
3 1 1 

232 1 1 
514 5 4 5 1 15,350 000 

1 
117 5 5 4 3 1}25,000 

424 4 1 3 1 1 
51 1 
2 1 1 1 

238 1 3 4 1 1 
322 1 2 

5,982 45 48 52 12 5 21,088,467 

*Did not report 
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